

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2019                                                                                     EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
REVISED AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting February 6, 2019 - Page 1 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 5:30 p.m. 


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda 


   


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


Information for possible action 


2.2. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint (Govt. 
Code Section 54957) 


Information for possible action 


2.3. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code 54957.6) 


SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update to and 
receive direction from the Trustees regarding negotiations 
with the GSCFT for 2018-19. 


2.4. Conference With Legal Counsel Anticipated 
Litigation (Govt. Code Section 54956.9): 
Specify facts that lead to exposure to litigation 


Number of Cases: 1 


Case: California Voting Rights Act – Trustee Area Elections 


2.5. Property and Liability Claims  


   


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  


3.2 Agenda changes, additions or deletions  


   


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


   


1/336







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2019                                                                                     EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
REVISED AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting February 6, 2019 - Page 2 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


5. Superintendent's/Students’ Reports  


5.1. Superintendent's Report  


5.2. Students’ Reports  


   


6. Board Members' Reports  


6.1. Board Members' Reports  


6.2. Board President's Report  


   


7. Approval of Minutes  


7.1. Minutes of January 16, 2019  


7.2. Minutes of Study Session January 23, 2019  


   


8. General Public Business  


   


8.1. Consent Agenda Non-Contract Items: 
These matters may be passed by one roll 
call motion.  


 


8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated  


8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified  


8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Bids & Quotes  


8.1.4. Warrant Register  


8.1.5. Disposition of Surplus Property  


8.1.6. Transportation Safety Plan  


8.1.7. Item Removed from Agenda  


   


8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


8.2.1. Superintendent: Contract: Clifford Moss – 
Pre-electoral Services 


 


2/336







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2019                                                                                     EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
REVISED AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting February 6, 2019 - Page 3 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.2.2. Educational Services/Special Education: 
Agreement for Professional Services – 
Deborah Bell 


 


8.2.3. Educational Services/Student Services: 
Agreement for Professional Services – 
Balance4Kids 


 


8.2.4. Educational Services/Student Services: 
Memorandum of Understanding – Healthy Kids 


 


8.2.5. Educational Services/Soquel High: Over Night 
Field Trip 


 


8.2.6. Educational Services/Costanoa: Consultant 
Service Agreement – Anna Paganelli 


 


8.2.7. Educational Services/Santa Cruz High: 
Consultant Service Agreement: Planned 
Parenthood 


 


8.2.8. Educational Services/Bay View: Memorandum 
of Understanding – Corre La Voz 


 


8.2.9. Educational Services/Curriculum: College 
Readiness Block Grant-CIA Plan Revision 


 


8.2.10. Educational Services: NSF Computer Science 
for All Grant 


 


8.2.11. Education Services/Gault: Consultant Service 
Agreement – Project GLAD 


 


8.2.12. Business Services: Consultant Services 
Agreement – Jerene Lacey 


 


8.2.13. Elite Interactive Solutions: Change Order #1: 
Harbor High Additional Camera Locations 


 


   


8.3. Consent Agenda: Bond Projects Contracts, 
Agreements, Proposals, Bids & Change 
Orders 


 


8.3.1. BSN Sports: Quote: Harbor High Sports 
Equipment 


 


8.3.2. CRW Industries, Inc.: Proposal & Contract: 
Mission Hill Projector Screen Installation 


 


3/336







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2019                                                                                     EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
REVISED AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting February 6, 2019 - Page 4 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.3.3. CRW Industries, Inc.: Change Order #3: 
Branciforte Small Schools: Power for Dryers 


 


8.3.4. CRW Industries, Inc.: Change Order #4: 
Mission Hill DSA Structural Requirements 


 


8.3.5. Enviroplex: Change Order #3: Harbor High 
Integrated Stucco to Concession 


 


8.3.6. Leach Group: Proposal & Contract: Harbor 
High Pool DSA Inspector of Record 


 


8.3.7. M3 Environmental: Proposal & Contract: Gault 
Lead Abatement Oversight 


 


8.3.8. M3 Environmental: Proposal & Contract: Santa 
Cruz Hazardous Materials Inspection 


 


8.3.9. M3 Environmental: Proposal & Contract: Santa 
Cruz Hazardous Materials Inspection 


 


8.3.10. Ross Recreation: Quote: Branciforte Small 
Schools Playground Kickplates 


 


   


8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.4.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


   


8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  


8.5.1. Educational Services  


8.5.1.1. Elementary ELA Task Force Update  


   


8.5.2. Business Services  


8.5.2.1. Bond Oversight Committee Annual Report 
 


8.5.2.2. Bond Projects Update  


8.5.2.3. Preliminary Enrollment Projections 2019-20  


8.5.2.4. 2nd Quarter Investment Report  


   


8.5.3. Human Resources  


   


4/336







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2019                                                                                     EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
REVISED AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting February 6, 2019 - Page 5 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.4. Governance/Superintendent  


8.5.4.1. 
Public Hearing: Potential Composition of 
Trustee Areas Prior to Drawing of Maps 


 


8.5.4.2. Settlement Agreement and General Release of 
Claims related to California Voting Rights Act 


 


8.5.4.3. Board Policy 3515: Campus Security - First 
and Possible Final Reading  


The Governing Board is committed to providing a school 
environment that promotes the safety of students, 
employees, and visitors to school grounds. The Board also 
recognizes the importance of protecting district property, 
facilities, and equipment from vandalism and theft. 


8.5.4.4. Discussion: Possible Items for Future Meeting 
Agendas 


At the May 23, 2018 Governance Session, the Board of 
Education agreed that each board meeting agenda would 
include an opportunity for discussion of future agenda items. 


 
  


9. Adjournment 
 


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary) 
 


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


12. Adjournment  


 


The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District 
Office, Superintendent’s Office, 133 Mission St. Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95006.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as 
any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open 
session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in 
closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Sarah Miller by 
telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por favor 
haga arreglos por anticipado con Sarah Miller por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 


5/336







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2019                                                                                     EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
REVISED AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting February 6, 2019 - Page 6 of 6 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on February 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on February 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on March 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting on March 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting on April 17, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting on May 15, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on June 12, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on June 19, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6/336







 


 


    
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING  


OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


January 16, 2019 
 
 
 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:33 p.m. in the Board Room of 
the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:33 p.m. in the County 
Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Jeremy Shonick Student Board Representative Christin Perez, Costanoa HS  
Patty Threet  Deb Tracy-Proulx Claudia Vestal 
 
Absent: Deedee Perez-Granados  
Absent: Cindy Ranii 
Absent: Student Representative Josh Selvartham, Soquel High School  
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Tracy-Proulx welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular 
Meeting of the Board of Education. 
 
Agenda Changes 
None 


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 


   
None 


SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Munro was pleased to report that Harbor High School staff voted to move forward with 
International Baccalaureate candidacy. She also reported that all schools are beginning their second round of 


7/336







 


 


MAP assessments. In collaboration with the County Office of Education, SCCS will focus on addressing 
outcomes for homeless youth in our schools. The Superintendent has collaborated with the GSCFT to revise 
certificated staff’s working condition survey, and it is now open for completion for both certificated and 
classified employees. Superintendent Munro had the opportunity to attend a School Services workshop of the 
Governor’s proposed budget to learn how it will affect SCCS and the state. To help fund high school athletic 
transportation, SCCS received a grant from the Santa Cruz Community Foundation. The Superintendent met 
with the Santa Cruz City Manager to discuss our school portions of the City Charter. She was also able to 
attend the ACSA Superintendents Academy, where she and Assistant Superintendent Coito collaborated on 
and presented a report on systemic change.  
 


STUDENT BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
Student Board Member Report 
Student Board Member Perez reported on behalf of Costanoa High School that in December, students 
displayed their artwork for families and the community in a Skateboard Exhibition, which was created in a 
skateboard design class. Costanoa teachers will be conducting an All-Day Restorative training this week. The 
student Board member also reported that students at Costanoa are participating in an online contemporary 
photography class provided by Cabrillo College Extension for their third year. Finally, the student Board 
member reported that students participated in an Ethics Bowl Competition at UCSC, and that the volleyball 
team made the Volleyball League Championship.  
 


BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
Board Members’ Reports 
Board Member Vestal reported that she attended the Delta Board meeting, and was given a presentation 
report from students regarding the world religions class. The students felt that they had learned much more 
about Eastern religion and are now interested in pursuing similar classes at Cabrillo. She also noted that 
Delta’s 25-year anniversary celebration is upcoming, and attendees would be by invitation. Finally, Board 
Member Vestal reported that Schools Plus have sent letters out to grant recipients, and Gault and Monarch 
teachers will be among them. 
 
Board Member Shonick reported that a friend had referred a Youth Ambassador Scholarship, which offers an 
annual summer scholarship to juniors or seniors to go to Italy for a homestay of 2-3weeks. He believes the trip 
is almost completely financed by the scholarship. Board Member Shonick ended his report by welcoming 
Student Board Member Perez to the meeting. 
 
Board Member Threet began her report by welcoming Executive Assistant Sarah Miller and Student Board 
Member Perez to the meeting, and expressed thanks for the student report. She also commended the Ethics 
Program at Cabrillo to be nationally recognized. Board Member Threet attended the swearing in of new 
Superintendent of the County Office of Education Faris Sabbah, and noted her pleasure in his retaining office. 
She also thanked former Superintendent Michael Watkins for his service to the County Office of Education, 
and noted that he was honored in an article in the Sentinel. Board Member Threet also attended the Mid 
County Democratic Meeting earlier this month. She was pleased that the present leadership from the 
bargaining unit has strongly advocated for schools. Finally, Board Member Threet reported that she had a 
conversation with a Soquel High School student who conveyed that she was happy finals came before winter 
break this year. 
 
Dr. Coonerty had nothing to report, but welcomed Student Board Member Perez to the meeting. 
 


8/336







 


 


Board President’s Report 
Board President Tracy-Proulx reported that a presentation on the State of the Governor’s Budget would be 
taking place at the County of Education Annex building to provide an update on Governor Newsom’s budget 
for next year. 
 
 


 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 


1. MSP (Vestal/Coonerty) 5-0-1, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of December 12, 2018. 
Student Board member Perez abstained because she was absent for this meeting. Superintendent 
Munro reports that there was change to the minutes of the Staff Report for better clarification to the 
last portion, and reads revision aloud.  


2. MSP (Vestal/Coonerty) 5-0-1, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of the Finance Authority 
Meeting on December 12, 2018. Student Board member Perez abstained because she was absent for 
this meeting. 


 
GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 


Consent Agenda  


8.1.1. Personnel Actions – Certificated, 8.1.2. Personnel Actions – Classified, 8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Bids & 
Quotes, 8.1.4. Warrant Register, 8.1.5. Budget Transfers, 8.1.6. Disposition of Surplus Property, 8.1.7. Annual 
Developer Fees Report, 8.1.8. Williams Quarterly Report, 8.1.9. School Accountability Report Cards, 8.2.1. 
Educational Services/Special Education: Agreement for Professional Services Monterey Bay Therapeutic 
Center, 8.2.2. Educational Services/Special Education: Agreement for Professional Services Steps to Success, 
8.2.3. Educational Services/Special Education: Revised NPA Balance for Kids, 8.2.4. Educational 
Services/Special Education: Revised NPS Bay School, 8.3.1. Azzie’s Storage: Quote Harbor HS field project 
containers for track & field equipment, 8.3.2. Belli: Change Order #1 Harbor HS electrical utility infrastructure, 
8.3.3. Bogard Construction: Change Order #1 District Office minor tenant improvements, 8.3.4. CRW: Change 
Order #1 B40SS modernization phase 1 for additional picnic tables, 8.3.5. CRW bid and contract: Natural 
Bridges site work, 8.3.6. CRW proposal and contract: B40SS site work, 8.3.7. Enviroplex: Change Order#1 
Soquel HS new snack shack additional stainless steel countertop, 8.3.8. Leach Group proposal and contract: 
Harbor HS new electrical switchgear DSA inspection, 8.3.9. Leach Group proposal and contract: B40SS new 
classroom on site DSA inspection, 8.3.10. Leach Group proposal and contract: DLV new classroom on site DSA 
inspection, 8.3.11. Leach Group proposal and contract: BV new classroom on site DSA inspection, 8.3.12. OC 
McDonald: Change Order #1 Santa Cruz HS modernization phase 1 additional work, 8.3.13. Phil Allegri Electric: 
Change Order #1 Harbor HS new security system extra work, 8.3.14. Roofing & Solar Construction: Change 
Order #2 Santa Cruz HS re-roof additional time and materials, 8.3.15. Roofing & Solar Construction: Change 
Order #1 Harbor HS re-roof additional time and materials, 8.3.16. XL Construction: Change Order #1 Soquel HS 
pool additional time and materials. 


Dr. Coonerty motioned to pass the items for approval. Board member Vestal seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved by the following roll call vote: 
Roll Call Vote:   Coonerty – Yes Shonick – Yes  Threet – Yes  
   Tracy-Proulx – Yes Vestal – Yes  Perez – Abstain  
 
Closed Session Items 
8.4.1.  Report of Closed Session Actions 


9/336







 


 


1. The Board of Education took action on Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations and Appointments. 


2. Ms. Parks did not have any information to share with the Trustees regarding Public 
Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 


3. The Board of Education heard an update from, and provided direction to, Ms. Parks 
regarding negotiations with the GSCFT for 2018-19. 


4. The Board of Education received information regarding Special Education Final 
Settlement Agreement dated 12-07-2018.  


5.  The Board of Education conferred with Legal Counsel regarding anticipated litigation: 
Number of Cases: 1: Case: California Voting Rights Act-Trustee Area Elections 


 
ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 


 
8.5.1.1. Staff Report: CA Dashboard Update 


Assistant Superintendent Coito presented a report on an overview of the California School 
Dashboard, which is a web-based resource that districts and schools utilize to collect data on 
test scores, suspensions, graduation, and other student performance. She noted that its key 
advantages include: the amount of variables that indicate quality education is determined by 
more than one test score, more focus on addressing discrepancies among student groups, and 
more information to support the local strategic planning process. Ms. Coito provided a 
comprehensive breakdown of the Dashboard’s features, including easy to use reports 
determined by six state indicators and four local indicators. She also explained the Dashboard’s 
Growth Model, which is measured by the difference between status and change over time. 
Furthermore, performance is indicated on a color-coded scale. Ms. Coito provided the results 
for SCCS Elementary and Secondary District State Indicators to the Board for the past two years. 
Following that, she explained that SCCS is in Differentiated Assistance because any district that 
has two or more very low performance indicators becomes eligible under the new Statewide 
System of Support. Assistant Superintendent Coito concluded her report by stating goals, 
actions, and initiatives to address the data and Differentiated Assistance, which are outlined in 
the LCAP and Curriculum Master Plan and the Multi-Tiered System of Support practices. This 
report was informational in nature and no actions were taken by the Board of Education 
regarding this matter.  
 


8.5.2.1. New Business: Audits 
Senior Manager Charles Raibley of Crowe Horwath presented the 2017-18 Financial Audit 
Report to the Board. Mr. Raibley began by stating the Auditor’s responsibilities and the 
Management’s responsibilities. He reported that there were no material findings. Furthermore, 
he noted there were no difficulties conducting the audit, and that the management team was 
cooperative and supportive of process.  Trustees asked questions about internal controls and 
Mr. Raibley explained that there were no concerns about internal controls, or that would come 
up in the findings.  
 
Mr. Gaffney recommended approval of the 2017-18 Audit Reports. Following questions and 
comments from the Trustees, MSP (Vestal/Coonerty) 5-0-1, the Board of Education approved 
the 2017-18 Audit Reports. 


   
8.5.2.2. Staff Report: Bond Budget Update 


10/336







 


 


Mark Bartos of Bartos Architecture presented an update on Bond Measures A and B budgets for 
the Board. Mr. Bartos provided an overview of bond updates by each school site through 
November 30, 2018. Several of the Board Members asked for an update on the large project 
processes, which will be provided by the architects specific to each site. There were no public 
comments. 


 
8.5.2.3. Staff Report: Facility Fee Schedule 


Assistant Superintendent Gaffney presented a report of a revised draft of the SCCS Civic Permits 
Facility Fee Schedule, which reflects changes to the rates of employees and for particular 
facilities. Mr. Gaffney reported that the numbers of the fee scheduled had not been updated 
since some minor changes were made in 2014, and since salaries, benefits, and cost of living 
has increased since then changes will reflect the current year. Mr. Gaffney also reported that 
there is a community forum to be hosted in February to share and discuss facilities fees and 
district costs. . Furthermore, in the future facility fees will be reviewed annually to ensure we 
can offset costs. Example ideas were given for pool usage during summer and winter months. In 
concluding the report, Mr. Gaffney suggested that a synopsis of the facility fees budget be 
provided during a budget study session.  


 
8.5.2.4. Staff Report: Proposed Governor’s 2019-20 Budget 
 Assistant Superintendent Gaffney presented the Governor’s Proposals for the 2019-20 State 


Budget and K12-Education, as provided by School Services. Mr. Gaffney provided information 
on the State Budget and State Economy and the Education Budget. The information on the 
Education Budget included a cost of living increase toward Local Control Funding Formula. 
There is also some one-time relief to district’s contributions to STRS.  There is no new funding 
for Career Technical Education. Finally, in early care and education, money is available toward 
programs and services for children and families, most of which are one-time investments, and 
almost all are non-Proposition 98 dollars.  


 
8.5.2.5. PUBLIC HEARING: Soquel HS California Environment Quality Act Study Negative Declaration 
 Open: Board President Tracy-Proulx opened this Public Hearing at 8:34 p.m. 
 Public Comment: None 
 Closed: Board President Tracy-Proulx closed this Public Hearing at 8:34 p.m. 
 
8.5.2.6. New Business: Resolution 15-18-19 Soquel HS California Environment Quality Act Study 


Negative Declaration 
 Following the Public Hearing, Mr. Gaffney recommended approval of the Resolution 15-18-19 


Soquel HS California Environment Quality Act Study Negative Declaration.  MSP 
(Vestal/Coonerty) 5-0, the Board of Education approved the Resolution 15-18-19 Soquel HS 
California Environment Quality Act Study Negative Declaration. 


 
8.5.3.1. New Business: Resolution 16-18-19 District Needs 
 Ms. Parks recommended approval of the Resolution 16-18-19 District Needs. MSP 


(Vestal/Threet) 5-0, the Board of Education approved the Resolution 16-18-19 District Needs. 
 
8.5.3.2. New Business: Resolution 17-18-19 Tie Breaking Criteria 


11/336







 


 


 Ms. Parks recommended approval of the Resolution 17-18-19 Tie Breaking Criteria. MSP 
(Vestal/Coonerty) 5-0, the Board of Education approved the Resolution 17-18-19 Tie Breaking 
Criteria. 


  
8.5.4.1. New Business: Resolution 14-18-19 Trustee Area Elections 


Superintendent Munro reported that pursuant to Education Code section 35012, the Santa Cruz 
City Schools’ Board of Education is currently elected under a modified “at-large” election 
system.  On November 6, 2018, the District received correspondence asserting that the 
District’s current at-large elections violate the California Voting Rights Act (Elec. Code, § 14025, 
et seq.) (“CVRA”), and demanding that the District adopt “trustee-area” elections.  In a trustee-
area election system, each trustee must reside within the designated trustee area boundary, 
and is elected only by the voters in that trustee area.  The Board will review its current Board 
elections system and consider its options under the CVRA.  The Board will consider adopting a 
resolution to state its intent to move to a trustee area election commencing in November 2020.  
There are potential benefits for the District to shift to Trustee Area Elections.  Trustee area 
elections may reduce costs for individuals to run for school board, and it may attract more 
candidates for board service.  In addition, the public process involved in the transition will 
provide the Board and District additional formal venues to interact with and hear from our 
community. Tonight, the resolution is coming back for consideration following the winter break, 
and after an extension from the plaintiff allowing for a more inclusive public process. 
Superintendent Munro explained that if the initial resolution is passed, our legal counsel will 
negotiate a resolution agreement with the plaintiff and it will be brought before the Board in 
February. The resolution will also address the fact that that our Trustee Areas are defined by 
the city charter and not by our district. Superintendent Munro recommended approval of 
Resolution 14-18-19 Trustee Area Elections.  
Dr. Coonerty moved to approve the resolution. Board Member Threet seconded the motion. 
The motion was approved by the following roll call vote: 
Roll Call Vote:   Coonerty – Yes Shonick – Yes   
Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 


8.5.4.2. Information Item: Superintendent Mid-Year Update  
Superintendent Munro presented a mid-year report based on SCCS’s six District goals. For goal 
#1, the Superintendent reports the current process of finalizing and implementing the 
Curriculum Master Plan and English Learner Road Map, the final year of high school math and 
District-wide writing curriculum adoptions. Furthermore, piloting of new ELA and ELD materials 
in elementary schools with begin. SCCS is also working with NGSS to plan for implementation 
and curriculum adoption, while also beginning to create HSS framework in secondary. For Goal 
#2, ongoing support for MTSS, the transition of COE ROP staff and programs to SCCS, NSF 
Computer Science Grant goals, and refining PBIS. SCCS will also begin implementing Restorative 
Justice at BSSC, HHS, and SHS, and will use the Social Emotional Screening tool to identify 
students who need support. For Goal #3, support for RtI coordinators and coaches, and ongoing 
support for MTSS. For Goal #4, ongoing support for SCIL leadership and refining PLCs, Principals’ 
and Assistant Principals’ PLCs on site, and Teacher Leader PLC. Also, finalization of Curriculum 
Master Plan, explore staff housing options for recruitment, implementation of goals related to 
CA Labor Management Initiative to support collaboration with our bargaining units and build 
Partnership between Administration and Labor, and partnering with the Greater Santa Cruz 
Federation of Teachers to engage teachers in PD planning and feedback. SCCS is collaborating 


12/336







 


 


with the SCCCE to build opportunities for classified professional learning, implementing 
monthly grade span principal site visits, creating a culture where staff and students value state 
testing, and supporting Board collaboration with governance team meetings. For Goal #5, 
refinement of the current budget process to develop clear priorities and monitor program 
effectiveness (LCFF/LCAP), support of school sites and departments with budget management, 
implementing our Bond program, leverage Prop 51 and CTE dollars to augment Bond resources, 
and plan and prepare for renewal of parcel taxes. For Goal #6, communicate the District’s 
vision, goals and metrics with staff and community, recognize and respect differences, and 
organize, attend and support Board Community Meetings. Continue to be visible and connected 
with sites, continue to hold biannual Superintendent and Parent Leader meetings, ongoing 
participation in Rotary and the Santa Cruz Chamber of Commerce. Finally, collaboration with 
community partners like the Santa Cruz Education Foundation, Santa Cruz Warriors, Monterey 
Bay Economic Partnership, Wharf to Wharf, and Schools Plus to maximize community based 
resources, and to implement a new central office community calendar to support better 
internal and external communications. 


 
8.5.4.3. New Business: Board Policy Updates 


Policies are submitted through the GAMUT online board policy book updating process, which 
uses CSBA recommendations for review and change approximately six times per year in 
participating districts.  These recommendations reflect recent changes in education code 
and/or case law.  The policies have been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required 
customization for Santa Cruz City Schools has been included. Revised Board Policy 6172.1 
Concurrent Enrollment in College Courses is not submitted through the CSBA GAMUT process.  
This policy is submitted by Superintendent Munro and has been revised to reflect our current 
practices.  Board Policy 3515 Campus Security is new to SCCS. This policy is submitted by 
Superintendent Munro  
MSP (Threet/Vestal) 5-0, the Board of Education approved all policies except Board Policy 0415.  
This policy has been pulled for further review or revision by one-to-two Board Members, and 
will be presented for Board consideration this spring.   


 
8.5.4.4. Discussion: Possible Items for Future Meeting Agendas 


None 
 
9.  Adjournment of Meeting 


As there was no further business for the Trustees, Board President Tracy-Proulx adjourned this 
Regular Meeting at 9:04 p.m. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on January 16, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 23, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High 
School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on February 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting on February 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


13/336







 


 


5. The Regular Meeting on March 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting on March 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on April 17, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on May 15, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


9. The Regular Meeting on June 12, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


10. The Regular Meeting on June 19, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 


* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 
recording: 


 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Deborah Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


14/336







 


 


MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING/STUDY SESSION 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
January 23, 2019  


 
Convene Closed Session 
President Tracy-Proulx called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:10 p.m. in the History/Quiet Room of 
the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:07 p.m. in the Harbor 
High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Deb Tracy-Proulx  Sheila Coonerty Cindy Ranii   
Jeremy Shonick Patty Threet  Claudia Vestal 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Carolyn Post, Board Coach 
Greg O’Meara, Director of Student Services 
Members of the Audience 
 
Absent: 
Deedee Perez-Granados 
 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Tracy-Proulx welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Study 
Session of the Board of Education. 
 
Agenda Changes 
None 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
   


GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 
 


Consent Agenda 
There were no items on the consent agenda. 
 
Closed Session Items 
6. Closed Session Action Report 
6.1 Vote on Readmission of Expelled Student 
 MSP (Coonerty/Ranii) 6-0, the Board approved the readmission of expelled student #11-17-18. 


15/336







 


 


 
6.2. Report of Closed Session Actions 


1. The Board of Education heard information on the readmission of expelled Student #11-17-18 in 
order to vote on action later in the meeting. 


2. The Board of Education conferred with Legal Counsel regarding anticipated litigation: Number of 
Cases: 1: Case: California Voting Rights Act-Trustee Area Elections 


3.  The Board of Education heard an update from, and provided direction to, Ms. Munro regarding 
negotiations with the GSCFT for 2018-19. 


   
ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 


7.1 Board Governance 
Interdistrict Transfers 
Superintendent Munro, along with Assistant Superintendent Gaffney and Director of Student Services 
Greg O’Meara, provided a comprehensive presentation report on Santa Cruz City School’s Interdistrict 
Transfers (IDTs). Data was provided on the following categories: the number of elementary and 
secondary IDTs out of the District over three years, , total requests for IDTs across all grades over three 
years, and total denials for IDTs across all grades over three years. Data was also provided on private 
school enrollment in the Santa Cruz area over three years, and charter school enrollment in Santa Cruz 
but drawing from multiple counties. Mr. Gaffney presented three scenarios to potentially shift IDT 
practices and he shared plans for tracking more comprehensive data on why families are leaving our 
district. Superintendent Munro made recommendations to the Board, and asked for direction on next 
steps.  The Board agreed with recommendations to accept incoming 6th grade IDT students and to 
accept students who had moved from the district and were applying for IDTs up to site capacity.  
 
Enrollment Projections 
Assistant Superintendent Gaffney presented Decision Insight Enrollment Data reports to the Board for 
ten-year enrollment projections. He reported that Cabinet’s goals are to address declining enrollment, 
with attention to long-term retention, providing the best information to inform the Board, student 
recruitment, and marketing schools.  
 
Board Policy on Naming Facilities 
Assistant Superintendent Gaffney provided information on Board Policy 7310, Naming of Facilities. The 
Board reviewed the policy and discussed potential modifications.  Superintendent Munro will bring 
back a revised policy for Board consideration. 
 
Budget Processes and Audits 
Superintendent Munro and Assistant Superintendent Gaffney led the discussion on budget auditing 
and ensuring accurate MYPs. The Board discussed checks and balances relative to financials and 
internal controls. 
 
Role of Trustees 
Board Coach Carolyn Post discussed the role of Board members responding to community concerns 
based on the Governance Handbook.  
 
Pace and Flow of Meetings 
Board Coach Carolyn Post directed the Board in conversation of pace and flow of meetings and 
potential locations of future study session meetings.  


 


16/336







 


 


8. Adjournment of Meeting 
As there was no further business for the Trustees, Board President Tracy-Proulx adjourned this Regular 
Meeting at 9:04 p.m. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on February 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on February 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on March 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting on March 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting on April 17, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting on May 15, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on June 12, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on June 19, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 


* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 
recording: 


 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Deborah Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


17/336







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


  


  


AGENDA ITEM:                    Certificated Personnel Actions 


  


DATE:                                   February 6, 2019 


  


FROM:                                  Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:                          Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 


  


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the certificated personnel actions as submitted. 


  


BACKGROUND: 


The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, 


California Education Code and the negotiated contract. 


  


This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 


  


Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 


career opportunities. 


  


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


  


Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


  


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


  


 


 


 


 


 


  


18/336







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


2018-2019 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS: 


 


Certificated: 


 


Stefanie Da Silva, Escapades Choreographer, Harbor High, 11/19/18 - 6/7/19, not to exceed 70 hours. 


 


Stefanie Da Silva, Choreographer Enrichment Provider, Harbor High, 1/23/19 - 6/7/19, not to exceed 30 hours. 


 


Dusten Dennis, Yearbook Enrichment Provider, Branciforte Middle, 12/15/18 - 1/15/19, not to exceed 12 


hours. 


 


James Gaynor, Weight Conditioning Enrichment Provider, Harbor High, 1/14/19 - 6/7/19, not to exceed 110 


hours. 


 


Nathan Gonzalez, Drumline Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/19/18 - 5/8/19, not to exceed 50 


hours. 


 


Andrea Kopp, Bike Club Enrichment Provider, Branciforte Middle, 9/26/18 - 12/12/18, not to exceed 16 hours. 


 


Cynthia Imbrie, Dance Enrichment Provider, Westlake Elementary, 1/8/19 - 5/15/19, not to exceed 144 hours. 


 


Ilana Ingber, Arts and Crafts Enrichment Provider, Branciforte Middle, 9/26/18 - 12/12/18, not to exceed 16 


hours. 


 


Dwight Lowery, Weight Conditioning Enrichment Provider, Soquel High, 8/22/18 - 6/6/19, not to exceed 182 


hours. 


 


Dixie Mills, Color Guard Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/19/18 - 5/8/19, not to exceed 24 hours. 


 


Samuel Nitzberg, Speech and Debate Enrichment Provider, Migrant Program, 12/1/18 - 6/6/19, not to exceed 


45 hours. 


 


Calli Rickey, Cooking Enrichment Provider, Branciforte Middle, 11/2/18 - 6/6/19, not to exceed 80 hours. 


 


2018-2019 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS  (continued): 


 


Certificated: 


 


Therese Thompson Steinemann, Drama Enrichment Provider, Branciforte Small Schools - AFE, 10/1/18 - 


3/15/19, not to exceed 86 hours. 


19/336







 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           


 


AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 


  


MEETING DATE:   February 6, 2019 


 


FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   


  


  


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 


           


BACKGROUND: 


The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 


SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 


  


This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 


  


Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 


career opportunities. 


  


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


  


Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


  


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


  


 


 


  


  


 


20/336







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 


  


Reviewed by Classified Personnel Director: Keneé Houser 1/30/2019 


 


 •Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 


Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular): 


Bate. Darcy, Health Office Assistant - MH, 15hrs/9mos, effective 1/23/19 


Corsino, Andrea, Behavior Technician/SPED - BM, 15hrs/9mos, effective 1/14/19 


Martinez, Alyssa, Confidential - Executive Assistant I - ES, 40hrs/12mos, effective 2/1/19 


Playground Recess Coach & Yard Duty Monitor - Exempt to Regular - Per AB2160 - Eff. 1/7/19: 


Avila Moreno, Mario, Yard Duty Monitor - DL, 16.5hrs/9mos 


Carmichael, Catherine, Yard Duty Monitor - WL, 1.2hrs/9mos 


Carranza, Helena, Yard Duty Monitor - DL, 19.5hrs/9mos 


Dew, Christopher, Playground Recess Coach - BV, 15hrs/9mos  


Kenagy, Janelle, Playground Recess Coach - DL, 15hrs/9mos  


Morales, Catherine, Yard Duty Monitor - DL, 6hrs/9mos 


Mullins, Marsha, Yard Duty Monitor - DL, 14hrs/9mos 


Peterson, Scott, Playground Recess Coach - WL, 15hrs/9mos 


Shulman, Brian, Yard Duty Monitor - WL, 2.5hrs/9mos 


Solorio Cuevas, Olga, Yard Duty Monitor - DL, 7.5hrs/9mos 


Stephens, Debra, Yard Duty Monitor - BV, 7.5hrs/9mos  


Toledo de Bardales, Natasha, Playground Recess Coach - WL, 15hrs/9mos 


Vallderuten, Susan, Playground Recess Coach - GA, 15hrs/9mos  


Re-Hired:  


None 


Promotion: 


None 


Reclassification: 


None 


Demotion:  


None 


 


 


21/336







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  


Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: 


Carmichael, Catherine, Yard Duty Monitor - WL, from  6hrs/9mos to Yard Duty Monitor - WL, 


7.08hrs/9mos, effective 1/7/19  


Higgins, Tamara, Career Development Specialist - from 12hrs/9mos to 19hrs/9mos, effective 


2/1/19 


Additional FTE/Position:  


None 


39-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


39-Mo Reinstatement w/Increase in FTE:  


None 


63-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


Transfer:  


Espinoza-Saldana, Efrain, transfer from Yard Duty Monitor 4.5hrs/9mos and Paraeducator - 


Academic Intervention 15hrs/9mos - GA to Paraeducator 4.5hrs/9mos and Paraeducator 


Academic Intervention 15hrs/9mos - SMSC, effective 1/10/19  


Transfer W/Increase FTE: 


Aceves, Gagne, Marina,  from Paraeducator/SPED - 19.5hrs/9mos - BM, to Paraeducator/SPED -  


25hrs/9mos, effective 1/28/19 - SQ, effective 1/28/19 


Provisional Assignments (not to exceed 90 working days):  


None 


Leave of Absence:  


None 


Separation from Service: 


Bate, Darcy, Paraeducator - Afterschool Programs - MH - 10hrs/9mos, Resigned, effective 


1/22/19  


Gomez, Yolanda, Human Resources Technician - HR, 25hrs/12mos, effective 1/31/19 


Hernandez, Alejandra, Administrative Assistant IV - MH, 40hrs/12mos, effective 2/8/19 


Smith, Matthew, Food Service Worker I - FS, 17.5hrs/9mos, Released, effective 1/22/19  


Retirement: 


Gilmore, Kristi, Confidential-Benefits Specialist - BS, Retired, 40hrs/12mos, effective 2/1/19 


 


 


22/336







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  


•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 


New Temporary Employees/EWA: 


Grattan, Sadie, Substitute - Paraeducator, Paraeducator Academic Intervention, and Yard Duty 


Monitor - WL, Effective 1/22/19 


Gembe, Emmanuel, Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 240hrs, 1/8/19 to 6/30/19 


Johnson, Trevor, Behavior Technician - SPED - BV, effective 1/9/19  


Uribe Figueroa, Fernando, Sub Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 200hrs, 1/7/19 to 6/30/19 


Velasco Cuevas, Raymundo, Sub Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 120hrs, 1/8/19 to 


6/30/19 


Existing Temporary Employees/EWA: 


Avena, Hilario, MEP Credit Recovery Teacher - CP, not to exceed 12hrs, 1/16/19 to 2/28/19 


Berry, Cole, Instructional Specialist/Band - HH, not to exceed 40hrs, 1/23/19 to 6/7/19 


Casey, Patrick, Sub School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 160hrs, 1/9/19 to 2/7/19 


Goena, Ana, Paraeducator - Special Ed - GA, not to exceed 20hrs, 1/7/19 to 2/8/19 


Gonzales, Anna, Health Office Assistant - GA, not to exceed 20hrs, 1/8/19 to 3/14/19 


Lile, Seth, Sub Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 120hrs, 1/18/19 to 6/30/19  


Morris, Donald, Human Resources Technician - HR, not to exceed 100hrs, 12/19/18 to 6/30/19 


Rucker, Kyle, Director of Finance - Special Assignment - BS, not to exceed 125hrs, 8/30/18 to 


6/30/19 


Stuart, Emily, Paraeducator - HH, not to exceed 238hrs, 1/17/19 to 6/7/19 


Woods, Dexter, Sub Night Custodian - MO/Various Sites, not to exceed 240hrs, 12/19/18 to 


6/30/19 


Existing Regular Employees/EWA: 


Alves, Carolyn, Food Service Worker I - FS , not to exceed 25hrs, 12/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Carranza, Helena, Childcare - DL, not to exceed 20hrs, 1/7/19 to 6/10/19 


Carreno Contreras, Eunice, Food Service Worker III - FS, not to exceed 10hrs, 12/1/18 to 


6/30/19 


Fernandez, Javier, Night Custodian - BM, not to exceed 50hrs, 12/19/18 to 6/30/19 


Gonzales, Elisa, Parent/Community Support Coord. - CP, not to exceed 10hrs, 12/17/18 to 


6/9/19 


Gonzales, Laura, Health Office Assistant - BV, not to exceed 118.5hrs, 12/17/18 to 4/30/19 


Gregoire, Paula, Paraeducator, Special Ed - BV, not to exceed 2hrs, 1/16/19 to 1/18/19 


Huerta, Elva, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 20hrs, 1/1/19 to 6/6/19 


Jorgensen, Kimberly, Food Service Worker III - FS, not to exceed 10hrs, 12/1/18 to 6/30/19 


23/336







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  


Lawrence, Gloriana, Paraeducator, Academic Intervention - DL, not to exceed 48hrs, 1/22/19 to 


5/31/19 


Marizette, Gail, Office Assistant - BV, not to exceed 4hrs, 12/17/19 to 12/18/18 


Orellana, Jocelyn, Yard Duty Monitor - GA, not to exceed 15hrs, 12/1/18 to 6/6/19 


Kimpton, Reyena, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - BS, not to exceed 100hrs, 1/7/19 to 


6/5/19 


Shaheen, Patricia, Food Service Worker III - FS, not to exceed 10hrs, 12/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Silva-Robles, Fe, Parent/Community Support Coordinator - CIA, not to exceed 34hrs, 12/17/18 


to 6/9/19  


Solorio Cuevas, Olga, Yard Duty Monitor - DL, not to exceed 30hrs, 1/10/19 to 6/6/19 


Stiga, John, Paraprofessional - Academic Intervention - SE, not to exceed 45hrs, 1/7/19 to 


5/24/19 


Limited Term Retiree (not to exceed 960 hours per Government Code 21153): 


Glasgow, Amy, Payroll Technician - FI, not to exceed 12hrs, 7/3/18 to 12/13/18 


Routh, Patricia, Campus Supervisor - BM, not to exceed 14.5hrs, 10/30/18 to 10/31/18 


Stanley, Carol, Substitute Food Service Worker - FS, effective 1/23/19 


Out of Class: 


None 


•Employment Actions Concerning Exempt Assignments from the Classified Service• 


Stipend: 


None  


•Eligibility Lists Established• 


Paraeducator Academic Intervention  


Food Service Worker I 


24/336







1DODD_ATJEUB-24D39DB93EC84DDFB307E14C975EB268.doc9 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3 


    


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 


AGENDA ITEM: Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  
 
MEETING DATE: February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Asst. Supt., Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the purchase orders, quotes and bids 
as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors.  The following definitions are provided to clarify the 
differences between purchase orders, quotes and bids: 
 


Purchase Orders: For purchases routine in nature and over $2,500 but under the amount 
required for a quote. 


 
Quotes:  When purchases will be $6,500 to $15,000 for contracted work or 


$12,000 to $92,600 for materials/supplies, several vendors are 
contacted for written quotations.  This process, though not as rigorous 
as a bid, insures that the District has involved more than one vendor 
and will secure a competitive price. 


 
Bids:  A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, 


distribution of written specification regarding the work or materials, 
and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, must be followed for 
contracted work projected to cost $15,000 and over, or for materials 
and supplies in the sum of $92,600 or over.  Bids are solicited from a 
wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is 
made to the lowest responsible bidder, the District receives the best 
price available. 


25/336







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


February 6, 2019 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


      
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-A447D475698140418440731FB71392C5.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  


     


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-02522 DeLaveaga $6,700.00 Albert’s Plumbing Confirming for Payment - Sewer 
Line Repair.  Restricted – 
Ongoing & Major Maint. 


19-00420 Harbor High $12,300.00 Belli  Change Order 1 – Additional 
time to accommodate Utility Co. 
Bond, Measure A. 


19-00362 District Office $13,461.64 Bogard Construction Change Order 1 – Additional 
work performed.  Building Fund. 


19-02652 Natural Bridges $250,876.00 CRW Industries Gym Modernization Phase II – 
Modular Restroom Site Work. 
Bond, Measure B. 


19-01958 B40 Small Schools $10,629.89 CRW Industries Change Order 1 – Modernization 
Phase I, Picnic Tables, ADA 
Ramps.  Bond, Measure B. 


19-02492 Harbor High $2,632.00 Central Coast Sports Confirming for Payment – 
Basketball Officials.  Measure O. 


19-02573 Soquel High $7,048.00 Central Coast Sports Confirming for Payment – 
Basketball Officials.  Measure O. 


19-02641 Santa Cruz High $3,556.00 Central Coast Sports Confirming for Payment – 
Basketball Officials.  Measure O. 


19-00170 Various $5,000.00 Cintas Change Order – Custodial 
Supplies and Maintenance 
Agreement.  Unrestricted. 


19-02725 Natural Bridges $5,967.50 Comtel Systems Confirming for Payment – PA 
System repair.  Bond, Measure B. 


19-02519 Santa Cruz High $17,057.80 DWR Construction & BCI 
Builders 


Confirming for Payment – Pool 
Repairs.  Building Fund, High. 


19-00387 Finance $6,687.50 Decisioninsite Confirming for Payment – 
Second of two (2) payments. 
Enrollment Projections – Year 3 
of 3.  Capital Facilities Fund. 


19-02637 Various $3,000.00 Dilbeck & Sons Misc. repairs as required.  
Restricted – Ongoing and Major 
Maint. 


26/336







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


February 6, 2019 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


      
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-A447D475698140418440731FB71392C5.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  


     


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-00364 Soquel High $2,692.26 Enviroplex  Change Order 1 – Additional 
Countertop Footage.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


19-02623 Soquel High $9,450.00 First Serve Baseball Field Windscreens.  
Restricted – Facility Use Fees. 


19-00385 Facilities $15,000.00 Flyers Change Order for Fuel.  
Unrestricted. 


19-02653 Harbor High $19,000.00 International 
Baccalaureate 


Candidate Fee.  College 
Readiness Block Grant. 


19-02699 Harbor High $4,800.00 International 
Baccalaureate 


Confirming for Payment – Online 
Workshop for 8 attendees.  
College Readiness Block Grant. 


19-02681 Harbor High $5,500.00 Leach Group DSA Inspection for New 
Electrical.  Bond, Measure A. 


19-02682 
 


B40SS $11,000.00 Leach Group DSA Inspection – New Portable 
Classroom.  Bond, Measure B. 


19-02683 Bay View $11,000.00 Leach Group DSA Inspection – New Portable 
Classroom.  Bond, Measure B. 


19-02684 DeLaveaga $11,000.00 Leach Group DSA Inspection – New Portable 
Classroom.  Bond, Measure B. 


19-02491 Harbor High $3,260.00 MHB Volleyball Confirming for Payment – 
Volleyball Officials.  Measure O. 


19-02680 Various $5,000.00 Monterey Bay Telecom Open Order for Telephone, Clock 
and Intercom Repairs.  Restricted 
– Ongoing and Major Maint. 


19-02680 Harbor High $3,190.08 Nevco Scoreboard Wireless Controller and Receiver 
for Indoor Scoreboards.  
Restricted – Facility Use Fees. 


19-01955 Santa Cruz High $83,981.00 OC McDonald Modernization Phase I – Water 
Intrusion Mitigation.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


19-02538 Bay View $2,500.00 PG&E Confirming for Payment -
Modernization – Engineering 
Advance.  Bond, Measure B. 


19-02539 DeLaveaga $2,500.00 PG&E Confirming for Payment -
Modernization – Engineering 
Advance.  Bond, Measure B. 


27/336







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


February 6, 2019 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


      
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-A447D475698140418440731FB71392C5.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  


     


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-02622 Harbor High $6,488.91 Palo Alto Awning Fence Screens for Baseball Field. 
Bond, Measure A. 


19-01208 Harbor High $17,485.67 Phil Allegri Electric Change Order 1 – Multi-Project, 
Additional Wiring.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


19-01146 Santa Cruz High $7,656.56 Roofing & Solar 
Construction 


Change Order 2 – Additional 
Roofing Repairs.  Bond, Measure 
A. 


19-01147 Harbor High $140,849.36 Roofing & Solar 
Construction 


Change Order 1 – Additional 
Roofing Repairs.  Bond, Measure 
A. 


19-02613 B40SS $2,610.00 Santa Cruz COE Confirming for Payment – 
League Fees.  Measure O. 


19-00220 Various $5,000.00 Shiffler Equipment Change Order for Bathroom 
Partitions and Parts.  Restricted 
– Ongoing and Major Maint. 


19-02574 Santa Cruz High $8,341.77 Silke Communications Twenty-one (21) Radios.  
Restricted – 
Safety/JPA/Emergency. 


19-00086 Transportation $4,500.00 Watsonville Diesel Change Order to cover Bus 
Repairs.  Transportation – Home 
to School.   


66293 Special Ed $2,300.00 Deborah A. Bell            
SLP/AAC Specialist  


APS to provide augmentative / 
alternative communication and 
direct / consultation services to a 
new student during the period 
1/7/19 - 6/30/19.  Special Ed. 


 


28/336







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4 
 
1DODD_ATJEUB-691CD2655C5B487F8370EC4CBEC884C3 


 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report.  The report covers vendor warrants 
issued from 1/4/19 – 1/24/19. Hard copies of the report are available for public review at the 
Board Meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


29/336







30/336







31/336







32/336







33/336







34/336







35/336







36/336







37/336







38/336







39/336







40/336







41/336







42/336







43/336







44/336







45/336







46/336







47/336







48/336







      AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.5 
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-017B49806DEF4F019FA523E301D37A77.DOC 


 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property  
 
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of 
the surplus property on the attached list(s) in accordance with Board Policy 3270 and 
Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Education Code Section 17545(a) provides that the Board of Education may sell for cash any 
personal property belonging to the District if the property is not required for school purposes, 
or if it should be disposed of for the purpose of replacement, or if it is unsatisfactory or not 
suitable for school use. (b) The governing board may choose to conduct any sale of personal 
property authorized under this section by means of a public auction conducted by employees 
of the district or other public agencies, or by contract with a private auction firm. The board 
may delegate to the district employee responsible for conducting the auction the authority to 
transfer the personal property to the highest responsible bidder upon completion of the 
auction and after payment has been received by the district.  
 
Section 17546(a) If the governing board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, finds 
that the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed in value the sum of two 
thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500), it may be sold at private sale without advertising, by 
any employee of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. (b) Any item or items 
of property having previously been offered for sale pursuant to Section 17545, but for which 
no qualified bid was received, may be sold at private sale without advertising by any employee 
of the district empowered for that purpose by the board.  (c) If the board, by a unanimous vote 
of those members present, finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs of 
arranging a sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization deemed 
appropriate by the board, or it may be disposed of in the local public dump on order of any 
employee of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. 
 
Per Ed Code 60530(b), instructional materials may be destroyed by any economical means, 
provided that no instructional material shall be destroyed until 30 days after the governing 
board has given notice to all persons who have filed a request for such notice. 
 


49/336







SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 


MEETING OF FEBRUARY 6, 2019  
 


SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 


Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  


                 
SITE:   MISSION HILL MIDDLE SCHOOL 


        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 


 
1. Dell Optiplex GX270 13069  15 yrs Obsolete $0 


2. Dell Optiplex GX250 none  13 yrs Obsolete $0 


3. imac G4 none  13 yrs Obsolete $0 


4. monitor none  13 yrs Obsolete $0 


5. monitor none  13 yrs Obsolete $0 


6. monitor none  13 yrs Obsolete $0 


7. keyboard none  13 yrs Obsolete $0 


8. HP laserjet printer none  13 yrs Broken $0 


9. HP OfficeJet 6310 ALL In One none  13 yrs Broken $0 


       
       


       
     Total $0 


  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 


       


50/336







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.6 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM: Updated Transportation Safety Plan 


MEETING DATE: February 6, 2019 


FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services    


THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Endorse the updated Transportation Safety Plan.   The intent of this revision is to have one 
document provide guidance for both District employees and pupils to ensure the safe transport 
of pupils riding on SCCS schoolbuses. This update contains rules and procedures for District 
employees and pupils to follow, at schoolbus stops and aboard SCCS schoolbuses.   
 


BACKGROUND: 
The purpose of this updated Plan is to present a clear understanding of the dangers 
surrounding pupil transportation, and to provide guidance through procedures and rules for 
Pupils, Parents / Guardians, and School District employees to follow, to ensure the safe 
transportation of pupils aboard SCCS schoolbuses.   
 


The Paul Lee School Bus Safety law (EC 39831.3) created the requirement for Santa Cruz City 
Schools to have a Transportation Safety Plan.  Our current Transportation Safety Plan 
(attached) dates to 2009.  The passage of SB 1072 in September 2016 created new procedures 
to ensure no pupil is left unattended on a schoolbus, codified in VC 28160(b), requiring a Child 
Safety Alert System in every schoolbus.  The updated Transportation Safety Plan contains these 
new procedures.  
 


This update of the Transportation Safety Plan includes provisions requested by the California 
Highway Patrol (VC 34501.6), and fulfills the notification requirements providing guidance to 
pupils and their parent(s)/guardian(s) to follow while riding aboard a schoolbus 
(EC39831.5(a)(1) and EC 39831.5(a)(1)(D)).  The Transportation Safety Plan shall be distributed 
to school sites and made available on-line at the SCCS Transportation web page (EC39831.3(b)).  
Updates to the Transportation Safety Plan shall be made as required by statute or best practice. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
No fiscal impact.  
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 


Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Emil F. Frates, Transportation Supervisor  


51/336







1  


 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
 


 
 
 
 


TRANSPORTATION 
SAFETY PLAN 


 
Procedures to Ensure  


Safe Pupil Transportation 


by School Bus


52/336







2  


 


Transportation Safety Plan (Revised and SCCS Board approved 02/06/2019) 


This document is required by California Education Code 39831.3.  


The purpose of this document is to provide insight and guidance for Pupils, Parents/Guardians, School 
District employees and the Public, on the procedures and rules governing the transportation of Pupils in 
prekindergarten, kindergarten, and grades 1 to 8, inclusive, when traveling to or from a school or school 
activity aboard Santa Cruz City Schools (SCCS) schoolbuses. (EC 39831.3 inclusive) 


The intent of this document is to ensure the safe transport of Pupils while traveling aboard SCCS 
schoolbuses. (EC 39831.3(a))    


Additional statutes and references have been added to this document: as requested by the California 
Highway Patrol; to fulfill public notice requirements outlined in Education Code; to clarify the authority over 
procedures in pupil transportation; supplementing VC 22112 ‘School Bus Signal’ statutes. 


This document, called the ‘Transportation Safety Plan’, contains the following: 


a. School Bus Safety Guide for Parents/Guardians- SCCS.  Upon registration, the parents or guardians 
of pupils pre-kinder to 6th grade, not previously transported in a schoolbus, shall be provided with this 
Guide. (EC 39831.5(a)(1))  (English and Spanish) 


b. School Bus Danger Zone (EC 39831.5(a)(1)(D))  (English and Spanish) 


c. EC 39831.3 Procedures for School Personnel to follow; 


Determining if pupil requires an escort to cross a street (EC 39831.3(a)(1)) 


Boarding at a schoollbus stop and school site (EC 39831.3(a)(2)(A)) 


Boarding a pupil by escorting across a street (Escort to the bus) (EC 39831.3(a)(2)(A)) 


Unloading the bus at school or a bus stop (EC 39831.3(a)(2)(A)) 


Unloading the bus at escorted stops (EC 39831.3(a)(2)(A)) 


Temporary bus stop changes 


Ensure no pupil is left unattended on school bus (EC 39831.3(a)(4)) 


Activity Trips Aboard a Schoolbus: 


Boarding the bus on an activity trip with chaperone responsibilities (EC 39831.3(a)(3) &(5)) 


Exiting the bus on activity trip and ensure no pupil is left unattended on bus (EC 39831.3(a)(3) &(4)) 


d. General Procedures for Safe Pupil Transportation; 


   Department shall be in compliance with all provisions of EDC Article 3. Schoolbuses [39830-39843] 


   Procedures for Discontinuance of Service due to Reduced Visibility VC 34501.6 


 


 


53/336







3  


   Bus seating capacity 


   Procedures for pupil loading under emergency conditions 


   Passenger restraint systems 


   Procedure for use of passenger restraint system 


   Warnings against unauthorized entry 


   Procedure for Posting Warnings 


   Fire extinguisher(s) 


   Procedure for fire extinguisher(s) 


   Reporting bus incidents/accidents 


   Procedure for reporting bus incidents/accidents 


   Bus safety and evacuation instruction 


e. Board Policies, Administrative Regulations, California Code of Regulations, and the Law 


   School Bus Drivers - Authority 


   School Bus Drivers – Responsibilities 


   School Bus Stops – Authority 


   Authority and References 


f. Address and phone number of school sites controlled by SCCS and school sites hosting SCCS pupils 
transported aboard SCCS schoolbuses. (EC 39831.3(b)) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


54/336







4  


School Bus Safety Guide for Parents/Guardians- SCCS  (Page One of Two) 
 


 The schoolbus is an extension of the classroom; Pupils are accountable for their own orderly conduct. 


 Home-to-school transportation is not mandated and may be withdrawn if the rules are not followed. 


 Rules highlighted in red and underlined are extremely important, not following these rules may result 
in serious injury or death.  


Walking to and from Bus Stops 
 


 Walk directly to and from the bus stop and home. 
 Plan the safest route with the fewest streets to cross. 
 If possible cross streets and corners, using crosswalks if available.  Look in all directions before 


crossing, and when safe, walk across the street.  Always obey traffic signals. 
 Watch for vehicles that might be making a turn. 
 Do not dart from between parked cars or shrubbery. 
 Never accept a ride from a stranger. 


 If possible, face traffic when walking on roads without sidewalks and always use caution. 
 Be extra careful during times of sunrise and sunset, bad weather, and during darkness (wear 


white clothing or something reflective). 
 Leave home early enough so you arrive at the bus stop on time, do not run to the bus. 


 


Conduct at School Bus Loading Zone, Danger Zone Around Bus 
 


 Line up at stop, ready to board, 5 minutes before the bus arrives. 
 Stand in a line facing traffic so you can see the bus 


approaching. Kindergarten pupils in front of the line. 
 Stand back 12 feet from where the bus will stop. 
 Do not approach the bus until the driver opens the bus door. 
 When loading at a school, follow the directions of the driver 


and/or teacher on bus duty. Stand back 12 feet; wait until the 
bus driver opens the bus door. 


 Never go under bus to retrieve something.  Tell the driver  
or teacher, they will help retrieve the item. 


 Never run to a bus, always walk. Do not push or shove. 
 Destroying property, playing in or running across the street, or 


any horseplay at a bus stop is dangerous and prohibited. 
 Do not bring pets or animals to a bus stop. 
 When the bus is stopped to load or unload, the pupils are the direct responsibility of the bus 


driver and the driver’s directions must be followed. 
 School buses can only stop at designated bus stops. If you miss the bus, have mom or dad take 


you directly to school.  Never run after your bus once it leaves the bus stop. 
 Make sure your car is not parked in the bus loading/unloading zone. 
 Never walk behind a parked schoolbus. 


 


Crossing the Street, Red Light Crossing Instructions- for Exiting the Bus.  
 


 No bus stop is authorized requiring the school bus driver to escort pupils to board the bus. This is 
why pupils must be in line at their bus stop 5 minutes before the bus arrives.  


 Santa Cruz City Schools school bus drivers cross all pupils, kindergarten through 8th grade, who 
need to walk across the street as they depart the bus.  


 Be sure to tell the driver that you need to walk across the street. 
 Let the driver be the first person off the bus. The driver needs to activate the bus "Red Lights" 


that flash on the outside of the bus to warn cars to stop for children crossing the street. 
 Once your driver is off the bus, you may walk down the bus steps, and wait on the sidewalk next to 


the bus. Your school bus driver will direct you to cross the street.  Never walk out into the street 
unless the school bus driver tells you it is safe to do so. 


 Always walk between the front of the bus and the school bus driver as you cross the street. 
 Never cross the street behind the bus. Cross only in front of the bus under the driver's direction. 
 Once you are on the other side of the street, stay on that side of the street. Do not play in the 


street, do not walk back across the street. Walk directly home.


55/336







5 


 


 


School Bus Safety Guide for Parents/Guardians- SCCS  (Page Two of Two) 


 


Student Conduct Aboard the School Bus  


 


 Live animals, including insects, fish, and reptiles are not allowed, parents must transport these items. 


 Do not bring aboard any hazardous, destructive, or prohibited objects of any kind such as: firearms; 


knives; weapons; glass objects or containers; explosives; flammable liquid; sharp or pointed objects; 


skate board or ball bat; lighting devices; alcohol, tobacco or drugs; pressurized containers; ectera. 


 Obey the directions and safety instructions of the driver. The driver has the authority to assign seating. 


 


 Be courteous and respectful to the driver, other pupils, and passers-by. 


 Do not use; profane language, obscene gestures, create excessive or unnecessary noise. 


 Respect the rights and property of others. 


 No fighting, rough play, pushing, or shoving while on the bus, or when getting on or off the bus. 


 


 Always enter and leave the bus through the entrance door except in emergencies. Use the hand rail.  


 Exit the bus quickly, do not delay the unloading of the bus as this is unsafe for fellow riders and driver. 


 Walk and sit at the first available seat.  If you are assigned a seat by the driver, you must sit there.  


 If your seat has seat belts- buckle up and remain buckled until the bus door opens at your exit stop. 


 Walk in the isles, do not climb over seats.  


 Keep windows closed unless otherwise instructed by the driver. 


 Keep all parts of the body inside the bus, never put hands, arms, or head outside the window. 


 


 Remain quiet at railroad crossings; the driver is listening for oncoming trains. 


 


 Help keep the bus safe and free from litter by not eating, drinking, or chewing gum on the bus. 
 Do not damage or deface any part of the bus; tamper with the radio, bus controls, emergency exits or 


other equipment; throw or toss objects inside the bus; throw or toss objects into or out of the bus; 


hold objects outside the window; or in any way endanger the safety of others. 


 


 Kindergarten and Pre-Kindergarten pupils are not allowed to walk to-or-from a bus stop 


unaccompanied.  Kindergarten and Pre-Kindergarten pupils must be met at the door of the bus to 


exchange custody between the driver and a Parent/Guardian, or an adult authorized by 


Parent/Guardian, or a sibling in 4th grade or higher.  Unaccompanied Kindergarten and Pre-


Kindergarten pupils shall be returned to the school of origin or to the main School District office, and 


schoolbus transportation may be suspended or discontinued. Immediately contact Transportation 


(831-429-3851) or the school site if you are unable to meet and exchange custody as required.  
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools (SCCS) school bus drivers enjoy, and take pride, in safely transporting pupils.  


All California school bus drivers are: regulated by Federal, State and Local statues; periodically tested 


and certified by the California Highway Patrol; receive annual mandated training, including first aid; are 


subject to Federal Department of Transportation drug and alcohol testing; meet the physical standards 


outlined by the Federal Department of Transportation; and maintain a safe driving record. 
 


Schoolbuses are specially designed to withstand all but the most serious crashes.  Each SCCS schoolbus 


is: inspected and maintained daily; undergoes a regimented mechanical inspected every 45 days / 3,000 


miles; annually inspected and certified by the Commercial Motor Carrier Division of the California Highway 


Patrol.   


 


Continuous adherence to the safety rules and procedures as outlined in this School Bus Safety Guide will 


ensure pupils arrive safely, and on-time, at their appointed destination.  It is essential for 


parents/guardians to help support and reinforce these rules and procedures with their pupil(s).     


 


The SCCS Transportation Department may be reached at (831) 429-3851, or on-line at 


http://sccs.net/departments/business_services/transportation.  


 


 


56/336







6 


 


 


 


Guía de seguridad en el autobús escolar para padres / tutores: SCCS 
(página 1 de 3) 


 


❑ El autobús escolar es una extensión del salón de clases; Los alumnos son responsables de su 


comportamiento ordenado. 


❑ El transporte de la casa a la escuela no es obligatorio y puede ser suspendido si no se siguen las 


reglas. 


❑ Las reglas resaltadas en rojo y subrayadas son extremadamente importantes, no seguir 
estas reglas puede provocar lesiones graves o la muerte. 
 


Caminar hacia y desde la parada del autobús 


❑ Caminar directamente hacia y desde la parada de autobús y su hogar. 


❑ Planifica la ruta más segura con menos calles para cruzar. 


❑ Si es posible, cruce calles y esquinas, usando cruces si están disponibles. Mire en todas direcciones 
antes de cruzar y, cuando esté seguro, cruce la calle. Siempre obedezca las señales de tráfico. 


❑ Esté atento a los vehículos que podrían estar dando la vuelta. 


❑ No cruzar entre coches estacionados o arbustos. 


❑ Nunca aceptes un favor de llevarte a tu casa de un extraño. 


❑ Si es posible, camina de frente al tráfico, cuando camine en calles sin banquetas y siempre tenga 


cuidado. 


❑ Tenga mucho cuidado durante las horas al amanecer y atardecer, el mal tiempo y 
sobre todo cuando no haya visibilidad (use ropa blanca o algo reflectante). 


❑ Salga de su casa con tiempo suficientemente, para que llegue a la parada del autobús a tiempo, no 


corra en camino al autobús. 


Conducta en la zona de abordar el autobús escolar, zona de peligro alrededor del autobús 


❑ Hacer una fila en la parada del autobus, listo para abordar, 5 minutos antes que llegue el autobús. 


❑ Espere en una fila dando el frente al tráfico para que pueda ver el autobús acercándose. 
Alumnos de Kindergarten deben estar al frente de la fila. 


❑ Retroceda 12 pies de donde el autobús se detendrá. 


❑ No se acerque al autobús hasta que el chofer del autobús abra la puerta del autobús. 


❑ Al recoger los estudiantes en la escuela, siga las instrucciones 
del chofer del autobús y / o el maestro encargado en ese 
momento. Retroceder 12 pies; espere hasta que el chofer del 
autobús abra la puerta del autobús y le de instrucciones para 
subir al autobús . 


❑ Nunca vayas debajo del bus para recuperar algo. Dígale al chofer o al maestro, 


ellos ayudarán arecuperar el articulo. 


❑ Nunca corras hacia un autobús, siempre camina. No empujar ni empujarse. 


❑ Destruir propiedad, jugar o correr por la calle, o 
cualquier juego inapropiado en la parada del 
autobús es peligroso y está prohibido. 


❑ No lleve mascotas o animales a una parada de autobús. 


❑ Cuando el autobús se detiene para recoger o dejar a los 
alumnos, son responsabilidad directa del chofer del autobús y 
deben seguir las indicaciones que indique el chofer. 


❑ Los autobuses escolares sólo pueden parar en las paradas designadas. Si pierde el autobús, pídale 


a mamá o papá que lo lleve directamente a la escuela. Nunca corras tras el autobús una vez que se 


vaya de la parada de autobús. 


❑ Asegúrese de que su automóvil no esté estacionado en la zona donde el autobús recoge / deja los 


estudiantes. 


❑ Nunca camine detrás de un autobús escolar estacionado. 


Cruzando la calle, instrucciones cuando este prendida la luz roja del autobús, es solamente para 
avisar que los estudiantes van salir del autobus.  


❑ No se autoriza ninguna parada de autobús que requiera que el chofer del autobús 


escolar tenga que acompañar a los estudiantes a subir al autobús. Esta es la razón 


por la cual los alumnos deben estar en una fila en su parada de autobús 5 minutos 


antes de que llegue el autobús. 


57/336







7 


 


 


 


Guía de seguridad en el autobús escolar para padres / tutores: SCCS 
(página 2 de 3) 


❑ Los conductores de los autobuses escolares de las escuelas de la Ciudad de Santa Cruz 


son responsables de cruzar a todos los estudiantes, desde jardín de infantes hasta 


octavo grado, que deben cruzar la calle cuando salen del autobús. 
❑ Asegúrese de decirle al chofer que necesita cruzar la calle. 


❑ Deje que el chofer sea la primera persona en salir del autobús. El chofer debe activar 
el "la señal de stop y las luces en rojo" del autobús que parpadean en el exterior del 
autobús para avisar a los automóviles que paren para que los niños crucen la calle. 


❑ Una vez que el conductor se haya bajado del autobús, pueden bajar los estudiantes del autobús 


y esperar en la orilla junto al autobús. Tu chófer te indicará que es seguro para que cruces la calle. 


Nunca salgas a la calle sin que el chofer del autobús escolar te diga que es seguro hacerlo. 
❑ Siempre camina entre la parte delantera del autobús y el chofer del autobús escolar al cruzar la calle. 
❑ Nunca cruce la calle detrás del autobús. Cruce solo por la parte delantera del autobús bajo la 


dirección del conductor. 


❑ Una vez que esté en el otro lado de la calle, permanezca en ese lado de la calle. 
No juegues en la calle, no vuelvas a cruzar la calle. Camina directamente a casa.   


 
  Conducta del estudiante a bordo del autobús escolar 


❑ No se permiten animales vivos, incluyendo insectos, peces y reptiles, los padres deben 


transportar estos animales. 


❑ No puede subir a bordo objetos peligrosos, destructivos o prohibidos de ningún tipo, tales como: 
armas de fuego; cuchillos: armas; objetos de vidrio o recipientes; explosivos líquido inflamable; 
objetos afilados o puntiagudos; patineta o bate de pelota; dispositivos de iluminación; alcohol, 
tabaco o drogas; contenedores presurizados; etcétera. 
 


❑ Obedezca las indicaciones de seguridad del chofer. El chofer tiene la autoridad para asignar 


asientos a los estudiantes. 


 


❑ Sea cortés y respetuoso con el chofer, y con los otros alumnos y los transeúntes. 


❑ No utilice; Lenguaje profano, gestos obscenos, no hacer ruidos excesivos o innecesarios. 


❑ Respetar los derechos y propiedad de los demás. 


❑ No pelear, o jugar de forma brusca, empujar o empujarse mientras esté en el autobús, o al subir o 


bajar del autobús. 


 


❑ Siempre ingrese y salga del autobús por la puerta de entrada, excepto en casos de emergencia. 


Usar el pasamanos. 


❑ Salga del autobús rápidamente, no demore al bajarse del autobús ya que esto no es seguro 
para los demás pasajeros y el chofer. 


❑ Camina y siéntate en el primer asiento disponible. Si el chofer le asigna un asiento, debe sentarse 


en al asiento asignado. 


❑ Si su asiento tiene cinturones de seguridad, abróchese el cinturón y permanezca abrochado 
hasta que llegue a su parada y el autobús se detenga y la puerta se abra para bajar del autobús. 


❑ Camina por el pasillo, no sobre los asientos. 


❑ Mantenga las ventanas cerradas a menos que el conductor indique lo contrario. 


❑ Mantenga todas las partes del cuerpo dentro del autobús, nunca ponga las manos, los brazos, la 
cabeza o cualquier objeto fuera de la ventana. 
 


❑ Permanezca callado en los cruces de ferrocarril; El chofer está escuchando si algún tren se 


aproxima. 


 


❑ Ayude a mantener el autobús seguro y libre de basura al no comer, beber o masticar chicle en el 


autobús. 


 


 


58/336







8 


 


 


Guía de seguridad en el autobús escolar para padres / tutores: SCCS 


(página 3 de 3) 


 


❑ No dañe ni estropee ninguna parte del autobús; manipular la radio, los controles del bus,  
las salidas de emergencia u otros equipos; o tirar objetos dentro o fuera del autobús; 
mantener objetos fuera de la ventana; o de ninguna manera poner en peligro la seguridad 
de los demás. 


 


❑ A los alumnos de kindergarten y de pre-Kindergarten no se les permite caminar hacia o desde 


una parada de autobús sin compañía. Los alumnos de Kindergarten y Pre-Kindergarden deben 


reunirse en la puerta del autobús para intercambiar la custodia entre el chofer y uno de los 


padres / tutores, o un adulto autorizado por el padre / tutor, o un hermano en 4th grado o superior.  


 
Los alumnos no acompañados de Kindergarten y Pre-Kindergarten serán devueltos a la 
escuela de origen o a la oficina principal del Distrito Escolar, y la transportación en el 
autobús escolar puede ser suspendida. Comuníquese de inmediato con la oficina de 
Transportación (831-429-3851) o con la escuela si no puede reunirse e intercambiar la 
custodia según sea necesario. 


 
 
 


 


Los conductores de autobuses escolares de California están regulados por estatutos federales, 
estatales y locales; Periódicamente probado y certificado por la Patrulla de Caminos de California; 
recibiendo entrenamiento anual obligatorio, incluyendo primeros auxilios; están sujetos a las pruebas 
de alcohol y drogas del Departamento Federal de Transporte; cumplir con los estándares físicos 
descritos por el Departamento Federal de Transporte; y los conductores de autobuses escolares de las 
Escuelas de la Ciudad de Santa Cruz (SCCS) disfrutan y se enorgullecen de transportar a los alumnos 
de manera segura.  


 


Los autobuses escolares están especialmente diseñados para soportar todos los choques, excepto los 
más graves. Cada autobús escolar de SCCS es: inspeccionado y se le da mantenimiento diariamente; 
se somete a una inspección reglamentaria cada 45 días / 3,000 millas; es inspeccionado y certificado 
anualmente por la División de Transportistas Comerciales de la Patrulla de Caminos de California. 


 


 


Lo agregado continua a las reglas y procedimientos de seguridad como se describen en esta Guía 
de seguridad del autobús escolar, junto con la cooperación y el apoyo de los alumnos y sus padres 
/ tutores, garantiza que los alumnus lleguen de manera segura y puntual a su destino designado.  


 


Puede comunicarse con el Departamento de Transportacion de SCCS al (831) 429-3851, o en línea 
en http://sccs.net/departments/business_services/transportation. 


 


59/336







9 


 


 


12 


 


. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


The School Bus ‘Danger Zone’ 
 


Each pupil must be aware of the area surrounding the schoolbus called the ‘Danger 
Zone’. 


 
 The ‘Danger Zone’ is the area extending twelve (12) feet in all directions from the 


schoolbus in which serious pupil injuries and deaths occur.   
 When the pupil boards and leaves the schoolbus, they must follow the routes 


indicated by the dotted lines on the ‘Danger Zone’ illustration above.   
 Walking along the dotted line places the pupil within view of the school bus driver.   
 Pupils may never go under the bus, or cross behind the bus. 


 


 


 


La ‘Zona de Peligro’ del Autobús Escolar 
 


Cada alumno debe conocer el área que rodea el autobús escolar llamada ’Zona de 
Peligro’. 


 
 La 'Zona de Peligro' es el área que se extiende doce (12) pies en todas las 


direcciones desde el autobús escolar en el que ocurren lesiones y muertes graves 
de alumnos. 


 Cuando el alumno sube y baja del autobús escolar, debe seguir las rutas indicadas 
por las líneas de puntos en la ilustración de la ‘Zona de Peligro’ de arriba. 


 Caminar a lo largo de la línea de puntos coloca al alumno a la vista del conductor del 
autobús escolar. 


 Los alumnos nunca pueden ir debajo del autobús o cruzar detrás del autobús. 
 


 


60/336







10 


 


 


EC 39831.3  Procedures for SCCS School Personnel  
   


Procedures for Determining if a Pupil Requires an Escort to Cross a Street 
 


 Santa Cruz City Schools (SCCS) requires all pupils in grades kindergarten through 8th, inclusive, 


who must cross a private road or highway at a bus stop, to be escorted by a driver. 


 Schoolbus routes are designed to reduce the need for pupils to cross the street upon which the bus 


is stopped.  However, when it is necessary for pupils to cross the street upon which the bus is 


stopped, the driver will escort them (pursuant to VC 22112). 


 Schoolbus stops requiring the escort of pupils to cross a street will note ‘Escort Red Light 


Crossing’ on the driver route sheet. 


 Pupils requiring escort will be identified by: conversation between the driver and the student; 


communication from the Parent/Guardian, or the school to the driver; observation made by the 


driver; communication to the Transportation Department and relayed to the driver; or from pupil’s 


name on the driver’s route sheet or by a bus stop notation on the driver’s route sheet indicating a 


driver ‘Escort Red Light Crossing’ is required.  
 


Procedures for Boarding at a Schoolbus Stop and School Site 
 


 Pupils shall wait at designated bus stop, 5 minutes before the bus is scheduled to arrive. 


 Pupils shall wait for the bus in a safe location at least 12 feet back from the street or roadway. 


 Pupils will wait in a line forming away from the street, facing towards oncoming bus with 


Kindergarten students at the front of the line. 


 Pupils will not run towards the bus when the bus is approaching. 


 Pupils will wait for the bus to come to a complete stop and will not approach the bus until the 
front door is opened. 


 Pupils will use the hand rail for balance when boarding. 


 Pupils will walk to the nearest available seat and be seated or be directed to a seat by the driver 
of the bus.  If assigned a seat by the driver, Pupil will sit, and remain seated, in assigned seat. 


 If seat has a safety belt, the student shall buckle-up and remain buckled at all times. 


 Pupils boarding at a school site will be assembled at least 12 feet from bus and escorted single 


file to the bus entrance by school site staff. 


 
Procedures for Boarding a Pupil by Escorting Across a Street   (Escorting to the Bus) 


 


 There are no authorized SCCS schoolbus stops requiring a pupil to be escorted across the 


street to board a schoolbus. The following procedures are for a unique event to ensure pupil 


safety. 


 Pupil shall be given instructions to wait at an area designated by the driver. 


 When escorting a pupil, the driver shall, before opening the door, ensure that the flashing red 
light signal system and stop signal arm (if equipped) are activated and it is safe to exit the bus. 


 The driver will exit the bus and walk approximately 10 feet in front of the bus before turning to 
enter the roadway and instruct the pupil to “wait”. 


 Using the handheld stop sign, the driver will walk to the center of the street and assure all traffic is 
stopped before verbally directing the pupil to walk between the bus and the driver. The driver 
shall escort the pupil across the street in front of the bus and follow the pupil onto the bus. 


 Before the end of the work day, the driver will write a Notice of Unsatisfactory Conduct for each 
student escorted across the street to board the schoolbus, and submit to the Transportation 
Supervisor for action.  Action may include suspending or revoking schoolbus transportation.  


 
Procedure for Unloading the Bus at School or at Bus Stop 


 


 The driver shall, before opening the door, ensure that the flashing red light signal system and 
stop signal arm (if equipped) are activated and that it is safe to open the door and exit the bus. 


 Pupils will remain seated until the bus comes to a complete stop and the bus door is opened. 
The bus is not considered stopped until the door opens.  Pupils shall not stand on the bus while 
the bus is in motion. 
 


61/336







11 


 


 


 At a bus stop, driver shall confirm which students require escorting to cross the street. 


 Kindergarten students must be met at the bus door by an adult or sibling at 4th grade level or 
higher. Custody for a Kindergarten pupil is transferred to adult or sibling at the door of the bus. 
 


 Pupils will exit the bus one row at a time beginning with the front of the bus in an orderly manner 
in compliance with the driver's instructions. 


 Pupils will use the handrail at the door and walk down each step to the ground. 


 After exiting, pupils shall walk away from the bus and not touch or lean against the bus. 
Pupils will not return to, or run after, the bus. No horseplay is allowed near the bus. 


 At a bus stop, pupils shall not cross the street upon which the bus is parked without 
assistance and under direction from the driver performing an Escort to cross the street. 


 Pupils requiring custody exchange not met by an adult or sibling shall be returned to school of 
origin or to the main District Office. 


 


Procedures for Unloading the Bus at Escorted Stops 
 


 Pupils will remain seated until the bus comes to a complete stop. 


 Pupils crossing the street will be instructed to come to the front of the bus and wait for further 
instruction. 


 The driver shall, before opening the door, ensure that the flashing red light signal system and 
stop signal arm (if equipped) are activated and that it is safe to open the door and exit the bus. 


 The driver will instruct the pupils to follow the driver out of the bus and to “wait” ten (10) feet from 
the right front corner of the bus. Pupils shall not move towards the street until the driver instructs 
them to do so. 


 The driver will stop and check for traffic and then proceed to the center of the street. 


 The driver will assure all traffic is stopped and verbally direct the pupils to cross when safe. 
Pupils will cross the street to the front of the bus. They shall not return to the bus. 


 Pupils remaining on the bus shall remain seated. 


 
Procedures for Temporary Bus Stop Changes 


 


 Schoolbus stops are designated by the Superintendent or his designee. (13CCR1238) 


 The driver will only make a bus stop at a designated schoolbus stop. 


 Pupils must enter and exit the bus at their designated stop. (VC 22112(b)) 


 All requests to change a pupil’s bus stop require the Parent/Guardian to consult with SCCS 


Transportation Department (831) 429-3851 before a temporary bus stop change may occur. 


 Consultation between SCCS Transportation Dept. and Parent/Guardian shall specify the time and 


location of the bus stop and identify the driver and bus performing the stop change. 


 Pupils unwilling/unable to exit at their designated bus stop will be returned to their school or to the 


School District main office. 


 
Procedures to Ensure no Pupil is left Unattended on School Bus 


 


 All schoolbuses shall be equipped with ‘Child Safety Alert Systems’ in full compliance with Title 13, 


California Code of Regulations, Division 2, Chapter 6.5, Article 6, Section 1294. 


 Prior to driving the schoolbus, the driver shall ensure the ‘Child Safety Alert Systems’ is functional. 


 At each school site where pupil(s) exit the bus the school bus driver shall walk to the rear of the 


schoolbus, looking under seats, to ensure the required pupil(s) exited the schoolbus and no 


personal effects were left behind. 


 Prior to leaving the schoolbus, with the expectation that the schoolbus is empty, the driver will walk 


to the rear of the bus, checking seats and floor for pupils, and disengage the ‘Child Safety Alert 


System’ at the rear of the schoolbus. 


 The driver may exit the bus with pupils aboard only for the purposes of escorting, assisting the 


boarding or unloading of pupils, or to address an immediate emergency affecting pupil safety. 
 
 
 
 


62/336







12 


 


 


 
Activity Trips Aboard a Schoolbus 


 
Procedures for Boarding the Bus on an Activity Trip with Chaperone Responsibilities 


 


 Pupils shall use the same boarding procedures used for school site boarding. 


 Procedures and standards for designating an adult Chaperone, other than the driver, to 


accompany pupils on a School Pupil Activity Bus- shall be determined by SCCS Board 


Policy. 


 There shall be no less than one adult Chaperone aboard each schoolbus on an Activity Trip.  


 The Chaperone shall have a roster containing the full names of all pupils riding the bus, and 


shall be responsible for checking and verifying all pupils are present and accounted for prior 


to each and every departure. 


 The driver shall not depart any stop without first receiving verbal confirmation from the 


Chaperone that all pupils recorded on the roster are present and accounted for. 


 Prior to departure, the driver shall instruct riders on safety and emergency procedures, and the 


Chaperone shall sign the School Bus Activity Driver Check-off Form acknowledging the instruction. 


 
Procedures for Exiting the Bus on an Activity Trip and Ensure no Pupil is left Unattended on Bus 


 Pupils shall unload in bus loading zones and parking areas whenever possible. 


 Every effort will be made to unload riders at locations that do not require pupils to cross a street to 


attend their program.   


 If an escort is required, the Procedures for Unloading the Bus at Escorted Stops will be followed.  


 Pupils become the responsibility of the Chaperone when they exit the bus. 


 Pupils will move away from the bus and do not return until they are directed to do so by driver. 


 Once empty, driver shall walk to rear of bus looking for pupils and items left behind. 


 Prior to leaving the schoolbus, with the expectation that the schoolbus is empty, the driver will walk 


to the rear of the bus, checking seats and floor for pupils, and disengage the ‘Child Safety Alert 


System’ at the rear of the school bus. 


63/336







13 


 


 


General Procedures for Safe Pupil Transportation 
 


 


Department shall be in compliance with all provisions of EDC Article 3. Schoolbuses [39830 -39843] 


 
Procedures for Discontinuance of Service due to Reduced Visibility VC 34501.6 


 


 In order to insure safe operations at all times, drivers will be responsible to assess road 
conditions on a continuous basis. If, due to atmospheric conditions, visibility on the roadway is 
reduced to 200 feet or less, the driver will discontinue bus operations, and advise the Supervisor 
of Transportation or his designee of that fact and a decision will be made as to the next course of 
action. 


 If the conditions warrant, whether or not pupils are aboard, the driver will remain parked and 
secure until it is safe to proceed. School sites and the Superintendent will be notified immediately. 


 If the morning or afternoon routes have not commenced, the buses will be held until it is safe to 
proceed. School sites and the Superintendent will be notified immediately and notifications to 
parents will be made as appropriate. 


 
   Bus Seating Capacity 
 


 School buses shall not be operated whenever the number of passengers exceeds bus seating 
capacity, except when necessary in emergency situations which require that pupils be moved 
immediately to ensure their safety. 


 
Procedures for Pupil Loading Under Emergency Conditions 


 


 Drivers are required, by law, to load pupils on each bus according to the rated seating capacity 
listed on the Vehicle Inspection Certificate (CHP 292). In the event that an emergency situation, 
as described below occurs, the driver will first make contact with the Supervisor of Transportation 
or his designee for direction. Should the driver be unable to make contact with the Supervisor of 
Transportation or his designee, the driver will use all reasonable means to insure the safety of the 
pupils on board to remove them from the immediate emergency situation. 


 It must be understood that any officer, agent, or employee of a school district, office of the county 
superintendent of schools, or joint powers agency, or any other person, knowingly operating, or 
permitting or directing the operation of a schoolbus, when it is loaded with schoolchildren in 
excess of the limits of its seating capacity, is guilty of a misdemeanor. 


 The only event in which the above shall not apply is for the evacuation of pupils in case of any 
emergency that may provide, where necessary, for the loading of schoolchildren on a schoolbus 
in excess of the limits of its seating capacity.  As used in this section, "emergency" means a 
natural disaster or hazard that requires pupils to be moved immediately in order to ensure their 
safety. 


 
Passenger Restraint Systems 


 


 When a schoolbus is equipped with a passenger restraint system, all passengers shall be 
required to be properly restrained by that system at all times while on the bus. Bus driver shall be 
informed of procedures to be followed to reasonably ensure that all passengers are so restrained. 


Procedure for Use of Passenger Restraint System 
 


 The driver shall ensure that all pupils who board the bus are properly restrained based upon the 
particular equipment for each bus. Instruction shall be given to pupils during the annual 
emergency evacuation drills on the proper use of the passenger restraint system. 


 Each year, prior to beginning of school, all drivers will review the proper use of the passenger 
restraint system currently available on each bus to ensure that all pupils are protected to the 
maximum extent possible. 


 


64/336







14 


 


 


 
Warnings Against Unauthorized Entry 


 


 The Superintendent or designee may place a notice at bus entrances that warns against 
unauthorized entry. The driver or another school official may order any person to disembark if 
that person enters a bus without prior authorization and has intent to commit a crime. (Education 
Code 39842; 13 CCR 1256.5) 


 Violation of EC 39842 is a misdemeanor punishable by up to 6 months imprisonment, up to a 
$1000 fine, or both.   


 
Procedure for Posting Warnings 


 


 The driver is responsible, by law, for the safety of all pupils while aboard his/her bus. In an effort 
to assist with that duty, the Supervisor of Transportation or his designee will provide a notice to be 
placed in a conspicuous location near the entrance to the bus to warn against unauthorized 
entry. 


 The driver will notify the Supervisor of Transportation or his designee, in writing, should there be 
any incident that constitutes unauthorized entry and requires a notice to be  placed. 


 


Fire Extinguisher(s) 
 


 Each schoolbus shall be equipped with at least one fire extinguisher located in the driver’s 
compartment which meets the standards specified in law. (Education Code 39838; 12 CCR 1242) 


 
Procedure for Fire Extinguisher(s) 


 


 Each driver as a part of their required daily vehicle inspection (pre-trip), shall insure that the bus 
they are operating is properly equipped with the required fire extinguisher(s) based upon bus 
type/size and are properly rated as required by law. 


 
Reporting Bus Incidents/Accidents 


 


 The Superintendent or designee shall review all investigations of bus incidents and accidents to 
develop preventative measures. The Superintendent or designee shall be notified of all bus 
incidents and accidents as required. 


 
Procedure for Reporting Bus Incidents/Accidents 


 


 In the event of a bus incident/accident, the driver shall immediately secure the bus and cause the 
appropriate authorities to be notified of the event. In all cases, regardless of the qualifying criteria 
for determining a schoolbus accident, the driver will provide a written report to facilitate the 
reporting requirements for the Superintendent or designee. 


 
Bus Safety and Evacuation Instruction 


 


 In accordance with Education Code 39831.5 all pupils who are transported in a schoolbus shall 
receive instruction in schoolbus emergency procedures and passenger safety. Prior to departure 
on field trips, the driver shall give safety instructions which include the location of emergency 
exits and the location and use of emergency equipment. The Chaperone shall sign the School 
Bus Activity Driver Check-off Form acknowledging the instruction. 


65/336







15 


 


 


Board Policies, Admin Regulations, Calif. Code of Regs & the Law  
 


School Bus Drivers – Authority:  
 


 Pupils transported in a schoolbus shall be under the authority of, and responsible directly to, the 
driver of the bus. The driver shall be held responsible for the orderly conduct of the pupils while 
they are on the bus or being escorted across a street, highway, or road. (5 CCR 14103(a)) 


 Continued disorderly conduct or persistent refusal to submit to the authority of the driver shall be 
sufficient reason for a pupil to be denied transportation. (5 CCR 14103(a)) 


 A school bus driver shall have the authority to discontinue the operation of a schoolbus whenever 
he/she determines that it is unsafe to continue.  Schoolbus operations shall be limited when 
atmospheric conditions reduce visibility on the roadway to 200 feet or less during regular home-to-
school transportation service.  The school bus driver for school activity trips shall have the authority 
to discontinue bus operation whenever the driver determines that it is unsafe to continue operation 
because of reduced visibility. (VC 34501.6) 


 
School Bus Drivers – Responsibilities:  
 


 The school bus driver’s primary responsibility is to safely transport pupils students to and from  
school,  and  school  activities.   


 Driver shall follow procedures contained in the district’s transportation safety plan.   


 The driver shall not require any pupil to leave the bus in enroute between home and school or 
other destinations. (5 CCR 14103(a)) 


 
School Bus Stops – Authority:  
 


 Schoolbus  and SPAB stops made for receiving and discharging pupils shall be designated by 
school district Superintendent (13 CCR 1238) 


 Transportation Supervisory Staff have established the schoolbus stops for the Districts students. 


 The school bus driver shall stop to load or unload only at a schoolbus stop designated for pupils 
by the school district superintendent… (VC 22112(b)). 


 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools Transportation Safety Plan has been developed at the direction of the 
Superintendent pursuant to California Education Code 39831.3 and is maintained by the Supervisor of 
Transportation.   


A copy of this Transportation Safety Plan shall be kept at each school site and made available upon 
request to the California Highway Patrol. (EC 39831.3).   


The Transportation Safety Plan may be found on the Santa Cruz City Schools website at: 
http://sccs.net/departments/business_services/transportation. 


Kindly feel free to contact the Transportation Department for guidance regarding the information provided 
by calling (831) 429-3851. 


 
References: 
California Vehicle Code (VC) 
California Education Code [EC] 
DMV. California Commercial Driver Handbook 
California Code of Regulations Title 5 (5 CCR) 
California Code of Regulations Title 13 (13 CCR) 
California Highway Patrol Handbook (HPH 82.7) 
Santa Cruz City Schools Board Policy [SCCSBP] 
Santa Cruz City Schools Administrative Regulations [SCCSAR]


66/336







 


 


 


    
     


Following school sites are controlled by Santa Cruz City Schools: 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Office 831-429-3410 SCCS Transportation Office 831-429-3851 
133 Mission St 
Santa Cruz, CA 


 300 LaFonda Ave 
Santa Cruz, CA 


 


DeLaveaga Elementary School 
1145 Morrissey Blvd 


831-429-3807 Harbor High School 
300 LaFonda Ave 


831-429-3810 


Santa Cruz, CA  Santa Cruz, CA  


BayView Elementary School 831-429-3991 Santa Cruz High School 831-429-3960 


1231 Bay St 
Santa Cruz, CA 


 415 Walnut Ave 
Santa Cruz, CA 


 


Westlake Elementary School 
1000 High St 


831-429-3878 Soquel High School 
401 Old San Jose Rd 


831-429-3909 


Santa Cruz, CA  Soquel, CA  


 


Branciforte Middle School 
315 Poplar St 
Santa Cruz, CA 


 


831-429-3883 
 


Mission Hill Middle School 
425 King St 
Santa Cruz, CA 


 


831-429-3860 


 


 


B40 Small Schools         
840 N Branciforte Ave  
Santa Cruz, CA 


 


831-429-3898 


 


Following sites host Special Education programs attended by SCCS students, and transported by SCCS transportation: 


 
Green Acres/Struck Elementary School 
Live Oak School District 


831-475-0111 Santa Cruz Gardens 831-464-5654 
Soquel Union Elementary School District 


966 Bostwick Ln  8005 Winkle Ave 
Santa Cruz, CA  Santa Cruz, CA 


Del Mar Elementary School 
Live Oak School District 


831-477-2063 New Brighton Middle School 831- 464-5660 
Soquel Union Elementary School District 


1959 Merrill Ave 
Santa Cruz, CA 


 250 Washburn Ave 
Santa Cruz, CA 


San Lorenzo Valley High School 
San Lorenzo Valley Unified School District 


831-335-4425 Brook Knoll Elementary School 831-423-2454 
Scotts Valley Unified School District 


7105 Hwy 9 
Felton, CA 


 151 Brook Knoll Dr 
Santa Cruz, CA 


Cabrillo College 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education 


831-479-6306 Natural Bridges High School 831-466-9016 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education 


6500 Soquel Dr 
Aptos, CA 


 225 Swift St 
Santa Cruz, CA 


 


Santa Cruz County Public Schools Admin 
Special Education 


831-466-5784 


400 Encinal St 
Santa Cruz, CA 


 


 


67/336







 1 


TTRRAANNSSPPOORRTTAATTIIOONN  SSAAFFEETTYY  PPLLAANN  
Santa Cruz City School District 2009 


 


 


Education Code 39831.3          Page 2 


 


A. Procedures for all pupils in prekindergarten, kindergarten, and grades 1 to 8, inclusive to follow as they 


board and exit the appropriate schoolbus stop at each pupil’s schoolbus stop. 


1. Loading of Pupil Passengers         Page 2 


2. Unloading of Pupil Passengers        Page 2 


 


B. Determining if pupils require escort. 


3. Unloading and Escorting of Pupil Passengers      Page 3 


 


C. Boarding and exiting a schoolbus at a school or other trip destination. 


4. Field Trip Rules & Safety Instruction        Page 3 


 


Appendix A – Vehicle Code 22112          Page 4 


Appendix B –  Vehicle Code 34501 


Appendix C -  School Site & Address          Page 5 


 


Acronym 


    


VC = Vehicle Code 


EC = Education Code 


SCCS = Santa Cruz City School District 


TSP = Transportation safety plan 


   


   


  


 


The Transportation Safety Plan must be kept at the school site, and may be requested for review by the 


California Highway Patrol at any time. Please be sure to put your Transportation Safety Plan in a central 


location for quick, easy reference. Please take a few moments to review this plan and familiarize yourself with 


its contents.  


 


Questions concerning the transportation safety plan please call Transportation department at  


(831) 429-3851.  


 


Address: 


Transportation Dept 


405 Old San Jose Rd 


Soquel, CA   95073 


 


 


 


 


 


 


68/336







 2 


Pursuant to California Education Code 39831.3 the Santa Cruz City School District is providing the 


following plan for school transportation procedures. The following is taken from EC. 


 


 
“39831.3. (a) The county superintendent of schools, the superintendent of a school district, or the owner or operator of a private school 


that provides transportation to or from a school or school activity shall prepare a transportation safety plan containing procedures for 


school personnel to follow to ensure the safe transport of pupils. The plan shall be revised as required. The plan shall address all of the 


following:  


(1) Determining if pupils require escort pursuant to paragraph (3) of subdivision (c) of Section 22112 of the Vehicle Code.  


(2) (A) Procedures for all pupils in prekindergarten, kindergarten, and grades 1 to 8, inclusive, to follow as they board and exit the 


appropriate schoolbus at each pupil's schoolbus stop.  


(B) Nothing in this paragraph requires a county superintendent of schools, the superintendent of a school district, or the owner or 


operator of a private school that provides transportation to or from a school or school activity, to use the services of an onboard 


schoolbus monitor, in addition to the driver, to carry out the purposes of this paragraph.  


(3) Boarding and exiting a schoolbus at a school or other trip destination.  


 


(b) A current copy of a plan prepared pursuant to subdivision (a) shall be retained by each school subject to the plan and made 


available upon request to an officer of the Department of the California Highway Patrol.” 
 


A. Procedures for all pupils in prekindergarten, kindergarten, and grades 1 to 8, inclusive to follow as 


they board and exit the appropriate schoolbus stop at each pupil’s schoolbus stop. 


 


1. Loading of pupil passengers 
 Pupils shall arrive at the bus stop approximately five minutes prior to the scheduled arrival time of the bus. 


 Pupils shall maintain appropriate conduct at the bus stop, similar to classroom behavior. Pupils are not to be 


destructive of private property at the bus stop. 


 Pupils shall stand no closer than ten feet from where the bus will stop. Pupils shall wait until the bus has 


stopped and the door has opened before approaching the bus. 


 After the door has opened, pupils shall proceed in an orderly manner to the bus and board single file 


 There is to be no shoving or scuffling while boarding or waiting for the bus. One hand should be kept free to 


use the handrail. 


 Pupils shall be seated promptly and face the front of the bus. Pupils shall not leave their seats while the bus 


is in motion. 


 Pupils shall observe and follow the rules that are posted in the bus and comply with requests made by the 


bus driver. 


 


2. Unloading of pupil passengers 
 Pupils shall remain seated until the bus stops, and the door of the bus has been opened.  


 Pupils should keep one hand free to use the handrail while exiting the bus.  


 Pupils shall disembark the bus in an orderly fashion. Pupils are not to shove, push or cause any unnecessary 


commotion while exiting the bus. 


 Pupils are not to loiter around the bus. After exiting the bus, pupils are to go directly to their destination.  


 At no time shall a pupil be permitted to cross the street at the rear or front of the bus. 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


69/336







 3 


 


 


B. Determining if pupils require escort 


 
The Transportation Department shall determine if a child requires an escort to or from the bus for the following 


reason. If a bus route does not or can not stop on the side of the street the student lives upon. This shall be 


determined by:  


1) Conversation from the driver to the student  


2) Communications from the parents, school, or driver 


3) Observation from the bus driver 


4) Route Sheet(s) 


 


3. Unloading and Escorting of Pupil Passengers 
 The law requires that any school pupil, pre-kindergarten through the eighth grade, who must cross the street 


on which the bus is parked, be given an escort crossing by the driver of the bus. 


 Pupils shall not get out of their seat until the bus has come to a complete stop.  


 Pupils should keep one hand free to use the handrail when exiting the bus.  


 Pupils shall exit the bus after the driver. Pupils shall stand at the curb until the driver has given the “all-


clear” to cross the street. 


 The driver shall insure that the flashing red signal system is working. The driver shall insure that traffic is 


clear before giving the “all-clear” signal to the students. 


 Pupils who must cross the street shall cross to the front of the bus, between the bus and the bus driver, and 


walk directly to the curb. 


 After all pupils who require an escort have crossed, the driver shall insure the area directly in front of the 


bus and to the side of the bus are clear from pupils or pedestrians before putting the bus into motion.  


 At no time shall any pupils be permitted to cross behind the bus.  


 The driver shall keep current on their route sheet students that require an escorted crossing. Route sheets 


shall be maintained in the drivers assigned bus, as well as in the Transportation Department. 


 


C. Boarding and exiting a schoolbus at a school or other trip destination. 


 


4. Field Trip Rules & Safety Instructions 
 Follow all loading and unloading procedures as state it in Subheading “A” 


 All passengers will be given a safety presentation prior to departure on field trips. 


 Students will wait for teacher or chaperone to give them directions on where to go after exiting bus. 


 The driver will confirm with the teachers/chaperones the time schedule for the return trip. 


 Teachers/chaperones will count students prior to departure, and when boarding for return trip, to ensure all 


students are accounted for.  


 No unauthorized stops will be made that would alter the agreed upon times. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


70/336







 4 


 


 


Appendix A 


 


The following is taken from VC 
 


Schoolbus Signal and Schoolbus Stops 


22112 VC 


(a) On approach to a schoolbus stop where pupils are loading or unloading from a schoolbus, the schoolbus driver shall activate an 


approved amber warning light system, if the schoolbus is so equipped, beginning 200 feet before the schoolbus stop. The schoolbus 


driver shall deactivate the amber warning light system after reaching the schoolbus stop. The schoolbus driver shall operate the 


flashing red light signal system and stop signal arm, as required on the schoolbus, at all times when the schoolbus is stopped for the 


purpose of loading or unloading pupils. The flashing red light signal system, amber warning lights system, and stop signal arm shall 


not be operated at any place where traffic is controlled by a traffic officer or at any location identified in subdivision (e) of this 


section. The schoolbus flashing red light signal system, amber warning lights system, and stop signal arm shall not be operated at any 


other time.  


 


(b) The schoolbus driver shall stop to load or unload pupils only at a schoolbus stop designated for pupils by the school district 


superintendent or authorized by the superintendent for school activity trips. 


 


(c) When a schoolbus is stopped on a highway or private road for the purpose of loading or unloading pupils, at a location where 


traffic is not controlled by a traffic officer, the driver shall, before opening the door, ensure that the flashing red light signal system 


and stop signal arm are activated, and that it is safe to enter or exit the schoolbus. 


 


(d) When a schoolbus is stopped on a highway or private road for the purpose of loading or unloading pupils, at a location 


where traffic is not controlled by a traffic officer or official traffic control signal, the schoolbus driver shall do all of the 


following: 


(1) Escort all pupils in prekindergarten, kindergarten, or any of grades 1 to 8, inclusive, who need to cross the highway or 


private road upon which the schoolbus is stopped. The driver shall use an approved hand-held "STOP" sign while escorting 


all pupils. 


(2) Require all pupils who need to cross the highway or private road upon which the schoolbus is stopped to walk in front of 


the bus as they cross. 


(3) Ensure that all pupils who need to cross the highway or private road upon which the schoolbus is stopped have crossed 


safely, and that all other pupils and pedestrians are a safe distance from the schoolbus before setting the schoolbus in motion. 


 


(e) Except at a location where pupils are loading or unloading from a schoolbus and must cross a highway or private road upon which 


the schoolbus is stopped, the schoolbus driver may not activate the amber warning light system, the flashing red light signal system 


and stop signal arm at any of the following locations: 


(1) Schoolbus loading zones on or adjacent to school grounds or during an activity trip, if the schoolbus is lawfully stopped 


or parked. 


(2) Where the schoolbus is disabled due to mechanical breakdown. The driver of a relief bus that arrives at the scene to 


transport pupils from the disabled schoolbus shall not activate the amber warning light system, the flashing red light system, 


and stop signal arm. 


(3) Where a pupil requires physical assistance from the driver or authorized attendant to board or leave the schoolbus and 


providing the assistance extends the length of time the schoolbus is stopped beyond the time required to load or unload a 


pupil that does not require physical assistance. 


(4) Where the roadway surface on which the bus is stopped is partially or completely covered by snow or ice and requiring 


traffic to stop would pose a safety hazard as determined by the schoolbus motor carrier. 


(5) On a state highway with a posted speed limit of 55 miles per hour or higher where the schoolbus is completely off the 


main traveled portion of the highway. 


(6) Any location determined by a school district, with the approval of the Department of the California Highway Patrol, to 


present a traffic or safety hazard. 


 


(f) Notwithstanding subdivisions (a) to (d), inclusive, the Department of the California Highway Patrol may require the activation of 


an approved flashing amber warning light system, if the schoolbus is so equipped, or the flashing red light signal system and stop 


signal arm, as required on the schoolbus, at any location where the department determines that the activation is necessary for the 


safety of school pupils loading or unloading from a schoolbus. 


 
Amended Ch. 831, Stats. 1994. Effective September 27, 1994. 


Amended Sec. 3, Ch. 739, Stats. 1997. Effective January 1, 1998. 


Amended Sec. 2, Ch. 647, Stats. 1999. Effective October 10, 1999. 


Amended Sec. 1, Ch. 397, Stats. 2002. Effective January 1, 2003. 


 


 


 


71/336







 5 


 


 


Appendix B 
 


The following is taken from VC 
 


Per CA Vehicle Code 34501.6, when authorized District officials have determined that  


     weather conditions are such that visibility for school bus drivers is limited to 200 feet    


     or less, school bus operation will cease until weather conditions have improved to  


     permit safe operation with visibility of more than 200 feet.  


 


Per Vehicle Code 34501.6,  if during a school activity trip, weather conditions are such that driving visibility for a school bus driver is 


limited to 200 feet or less, that driver shall have discretionary authority to cease all transportation of district pupils until such time that 


weather conditions improve and driving visibility has increased to over 200 feet. 


 


Appendix C 


 
School Site & Address    Phone District 


Delaveaga Elementary School                                                                                                                       831-429-3807                                 SCCS 
1145 Morrissey Blvd 
Santa Cruz, CA 


 


BayView Elementary School                                                                                                                         831-429-3991                                 SCCS 
1231 Bay St 


Santa Cruz, CA 


 
Westlake Elementary School                                                                                                                          831-429-3878                                 SCCS 


1000 High St 


Santa Cruz, CA 
 


 


Branciforte Middle School                                                                                                                               831-429-3883                                 SCCS 
315 Poplar St 


Santa Cruz, CA 


 
 


Green Acres/Struck Elementary School                                                                                                            831-475-0111                                   Live Oak 


966 Bostwick Ln 
Santa Cruz, CA 


 
Del Mar Elementary School                                                                                                                              831-477-2063                                   Live Oak 


1959 Merrill Ave 
Santa Cruz, CA 


 


Santa Cruz Gardens                                                                                                                                            831-464-5654                                   Soquel  
8005 Winkle Ave 


Santa Cruz, CA 


 
 


New Brighton Middle School                                                                                                                          831-464-5660                                     Soquel            


250 Washburn Ave 
Santa Cruz, CA 


                                                                                                                                              


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


Updated 


Feb 23, 2010 
 


 


72/336







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Contract: Clifford Moss – Agreement for Election Feasibility and 
Related Strategic Services 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the contract with Clifford Moss in regards to Election Feasibility and related strategic 
services. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Clifford Moss, LLC. will provide professional pre-electoral services for Santa Cruz City Schools. 
This includes early communications and strategic assessment services, recommendations 
toward program budget needs, guidance in implementing stakeholders and public information, 
and ongoing project-related counsel. Ballot Measure Feasibility services are also provided, 
which include the coordination of opinion research and analysis, results-based strategic input 
that will ensure community alignment, recommendations regarding the Feasibility of the 
electoral goal, and assistance with project communications to make certain that leaders are 
well-informed.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$92,000 to be paid from LCFF Base (Unrestricted). 
 
This work is done in accordance with the following district goals and their corresponding 
metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  Santa Cruz City Schools will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective 
management. 
Goal #6:  Santa Cruz City Schools will maintain strong communication and partnership with its 
diverse community. 


73/336







Clifford Moss LLC.  5111 Telegraph Avenue, No. 307, Oakland, CA. 94609.  www.cliffordmoss.com 


 
 
January 28, 2019 
 
Ms. Kris Munro 
Superintendent 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street, Suite 100  
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 


Re: Agreement for Election Feasibility and Related Strategic Services 
 
 


Dear Ms. Munro: 
 


This letter confirms our agreement for professional services (“Agreement”) and takes effect on 
the Commencement date provided below by and between CliffordMoss LLC (“Provider”) and 
Santa Cruz City Schools (SCCS) (“Client”). 
 


1. Scope of Agreement.                                                                          
 


Early Communications & Strategic Assessment Services 


§ Assess Client’s public communications efforts as they relate to Client’s electoral goal. 


§ Recommend a strategy, tools, calendar and budget for stakeholder and public 
information/engagement work to increase input on Client’s program budget needs.  


§ Guide Client in implementing a stakeholder and public information/engagement program.  


§ Provide ongoing project-related strategic counsel as needed. 


 
B.  Ballot Measure Feasibility Services 	
§ Coordinate opinion research and analysis provided by pollster (True North Research)– 


via poll of a qualified sample of Client’s likely voters (up to 400 likely voter interviews).   


§ Collaborate with pollster to prepare, analyze and interpret results of the research.   


§ Based on early stakeholder feedback, polling and focus group research results, provide 
strategic input into Client’s ballot measure plan to ensure community alignment. 


§ Provide recommendations regarding the Feasibility of Client’s electoral goal – a local 
school parcel tax measure in the March 2020 election or earlier qualifying election.  


§ Assist with project communications to keep Client leaders informed on this project.  


§ Provide ongoing project-related strategic counsel as needed. 


 
 


74/336







	 2 


C.     IF a Measure is Feasible, Final Ballot Measure Preparation & Communications Services 


§ Work with Client to select the optimal election date.  Recommend a schedule to meet 
Client’s filing deadline requirements and qualify Client’s measure for the ballot. 


§ Recommend a strategy, tools, calendar and budget to guide stakeholder and public 
communications/messaging as Client approaches Board action. 


§ Collaborate with Client and other consultants (including legal team) to finalize Client’s 
parcel tax ballot measure.  


§ Prepare Client for information-only communications environment to be used once Client’s 
measure is on the ballot (e.g. factual, information-only web content, fact sheets, FAQs, etc.). 


§ Assist with internal communications to keep the Board and Client leaders informed.  


§ Provide ongoing project-related strategic counsel as needed. 


 
Provider’s services do not include legal or financial advice or counsel of any kind.   


Commencement Date:  February 7, 2019 


Expiration Date:   December 6, 2019 OR, if either party wants to terminate this 
Agreement earlier, refer to Section 8B. 


Compensation:   Strategy - $6,000/month plus approved business expenses 


 Public Opinion Poll - $26,000.00 Flat Fee 


 
 
2. Compensation Payment Schedule.  
Provider’s Strategy Fee of $6,000/month (six thousand dollars per month) will be due monthly, on 
the first of the month.   For the first month of service, the monthly payment will be due on March 1, 
2019 along with the March 2019 payment, for a total of $12,000 (Twelve Thousand Dollars) due on 
March 1, 2019.  For the final month of service, (e.g. December 2019 if a March 2020 election is 
chosen), Provider’s Fee will be $3000 (Three Thousand Dollars). Payment for the final month of 
service will be due on the first of that month.   
 
Provider’s $26,000 (twenty-six thousand dollars) Fee for the voter opinion survey (poll) shall be paid 
in two equal payments of $13,000 (thirteen thousand dollars) with the first payment due on 
September 1, 2019 and the second equal payment due on November 1, 2019, unless the parties 
mutually agree to a different payment schedule in writing.   Once paid by Client, Provider will be 
responsible for paying polling sub-contractor (True North Research) for research services.  
 


3.   Provider’s Expenses.   


Client shall separately reimburse Provider for Provider’s reasonable and necessary expenses (the 
“Expenses”) as defined here in Section 3, including, without limitation, travel (airfare, car rental, 
gas or standard IRS-compliant mileage rate, and/or other related transportation expenses), 


75/336







	 3 


lodging, meals, teleconferencing, and/or cellular telephone charges; photocopying and faxes; 
express mail, messenger or delivery service incurred in performing the Services hereunder. 
Provider shall be reimbursed by Client within thirty (30) days following presentation of Provider’s 
invoice or statement.  
 
4. Vendor Costs and Payments.  


With the exception of the polling Fee, and subject to prior written approval of Client, Provider is 
authorized to enter into third party contracts on behalf of Client for Client's public information 
efforts. Client reserves the right to contract directly for any and all such services, however, Client 
and Provider shall strive to come to mutual agreement on selection of any additional vendors 
needed for Client’s benefit on this project. Payment of vendors for all good, services, and costs 
shall be Client's sole responsibility, and shall be in addition to the Compensation or any other 
fees for the Services.  Such third party contracts include, without limitation, contracts for 
printing, graphic artwork, demographic data and voter data, opinion research (polling services), 
mailing services, and postage.  (Client polling services for a preliminary 2019 poll shall be $26,000.   
 
5. Client’s Obligations.   


While Provider is providing the Services described above or otherwise assisting Client, Client shall 
provide Provider with reasonable access to the facilities, personnel and other resources 
necessary for Provider to provide the Services. 
 
6. LIMITED WARRANTY; LIMITATION ON LIABILITY.   


IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER OR ANY OTHER PERSON FOR ANY 
INDIRECT, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST PROFITS, HOWEVER CAUSED AND BASED ON ANY 
THEORY OF LIABILITY, ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER OR NOT 
CLIENT HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. EACH PARTY’S LIABILITY 
SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE AMOUNT PAYABLE BY CLIENT TO PROVIDER UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 
FOR DELIVERABLES PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE CLAIMS. 
 
 
7. Indemnification. 


Each party agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless from all loss, liability, damage, claim, 
cost or expense (including reasonable attorney fees or court costs) to the extent caused by the 
actual or alleged infringement of any patent, copyright, trade secret, or other proprietary right 
arising from or related to any material it furnished to such other party pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Each party agrees to indemnify, defend, and save harmless the other party from all 
loss, liability, damage, claim, cost or expense  (including reasonable attorney fees or court 
costs) arising from or relating to any personal injury, death, damage to property, or economic 
loss to the extent caused by the Indemnifying Party’s sole negligent act or omission, intentional 
misconduct, or other breach of duty.  In the event both Provider and Client are at fault, 
indemnification shall be proportionate to their respective shares of fault.  In the event neither 
party is at fault, each party shall bear responsibility for its own losses, expenses and liabilities. 


76/336







	 4 


  


8. Term; Termination. 


(a) The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Commencement Date and continue 
through the Expiration Date as those terms are defined in Section 1 (Scope of Agreement) 
above.  


(b) Either party may terminate this Agreement with or without cause by sending written 
notice of termination at least thirty (30) days prior to terminating the Agreement.  In the 
event of termination, Client shall pay the outstanding balance of all fees due to Provider 
provided by this Agreement within thirty (30) days of the termination. 


(c) The parties may agree to extend this Agreement at any time by mutual written consent.  
 


 


9. Agreement Is Confidential.   


Client agrees that Client shall not during, or at any time following termination of Agreement with 
Provider, disclose or divulge to other parties, the specific terms of this Agreement, except as 
required by law.  See Section 11 RE Confidential Information and the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
 


10. Ownership of Work Product.  


All finished documents and other materials prepared by Provider under this contract shall be 
jointly owned by Client and Provider.  Joint ownership means that either Client or Provider can 
use documents or materials as needed at their discretion.  The only exception to this joint 
ownership agreement is artistic renderings.  Joint future use of such artistic renderings by Client 
shall be subject to negotiation between Client and the appropriate artist/sub-vendor. 
 


11. Protection of Confidential Information & The Ralph M. Brown Act.   


Provider has and will develop, compile, and own certain proprietary techniques and confidential 
information and data that have great value in its business (such techniques, and information and 
data are referred to in this Agreement collectively as “Confidential Information”).  Confidential 
Information includes, without limitation,  (a) all information that has or could have commercial 
value or other utility in the business in which Provider is engaged or in which it contemplates 
engaging and (b) all information of which the unauthorized disclosure could be detrimental to 
the interests of Provider, whether or not such information is identified as Confidential 
Information by Provider.  


 
Client shall keep confidential any and all Confidential Information regardless of means of 
transmission and storage.   Failure to mark any of the Confidential Information as confidential or 
proprietary shall not affect its status as Confidential Information under the terms of this 
Agreement.  Client shall take all reasonable measures to protect the secrecy of and avoid 
disclosure and unauthorized use of the Confidential Information.  Without limiting the foregoing, 
Client shall take at least those measures that Client takes to protect its own most highly 


77/336







	 5 


confidential information.  The Client may disclose Confidential Information to the Client’s 
responsible officers, agents, and employees with a bona fide need to know such Confidential 
Information, but only if such officers, agents, and employees are advised of and promise to honor 
the confidential nature of such Confidential Information and the terms of this Agreement. Client 
acknowledges that it is impossible to measure fully, in money, the injury that will be caused in 
the event of a breach or threatened breach of this provision and Provider shall be entitled to 
injunctive relief to enforce the provisions of this Agreement, without prejudice to any other 
remedy that such party may have at law or in equity. 
 
Notwithstanding the two preceding paragraphs of this section, the Parties acknowledge and 
agree that any Confidential Information that is to be presented to Client’s Governing Board 
during public meetings of that Board will become public records within the meaning of the 
California Public Records Act (Government Code section 6250 et seq.) and Ralph M. Brown Act 
(Government Code section 54950 et seq.) on or before their presentation to the Governing 
Board. Client shall have no liability to Provider connected with or arising from the discussion of 
such Confidential Information during such public meetings, and the inspection and copying of 
such Confidential Information by third parties pursuant to the California Public Records Act or 
Ralph M. Brown Act.  
 
As to Confidential Inspection other that referred to in the immediately preceding paragraph, 
Client shall provide Provider no less than ten (10) business days prior written notice of an intent 
of Client to permit the inspection and/or copying of Confidential Information under the Ralph M. 
Brown Act, California Public Records Act, or other applicable law purportedly requiring 
disclosure. If Provider disagrees with Client’s intended decision to disclose such Confidential 
Information, then Provider will respond in writing (by overnight mail) within the ten (10) business 
day period and inform Client of Provider’s course of action, including, but not limited to, seeking 
a protective order from a court of competent jurisdiction. If Provider fails to initiate seeking a 
protective order within ten (10) business days of Client’s receipt of Provider’s notification to 
Client, then Client shall be permitted to comply with the demand to permit the inspection and/or 
copying of the Confidential Information. So long as Client complies with the provisions of 
notification set forth in this section, Client shall not be liable for, and Provider hereby releases 
Client from, any liability for any injunctive relief or damages arising from any decision to permit 
the inspection and/or copying of the Confidential Information, and such release includes the 
officers, employees, agents, Governing Board members, attorneys and directors, as those terms 
may apply to the Client, without limitation. 
 
12. Late Charges.   


Provider may charge a late fee of 1.5% per month, or the highest rate allowed by state law, 
whichever is lower, on any payment due under this Agreement and not paid in full on the date 
due, and on any balance due and unpaid more than thirty (30) days, or such longer period 
required by state law, after presentation of any statement or invoice from Provider. 
 
 
 


78/336







	 6 


 
 
13. Notice.   


All notices required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed 
given (a) when delivered personally, (b) two (2) days after having been sent by commercial 
express courier with written verification of receipt, (c) on transmission by facsimile, provided that 
receipt is confirmed by a report generated the facsimile machine transmitting such notice, or (d) 
on the earlier of receipt or seven (7) business days after having been sent by U.S. first class mail, 
return receipt requested, postage prepaid.    
 
The delivery address for any such notice shall be as follows: 


Santa Cruz City Schools     CliffordMoss 
Attention:  Ms. Kris Munro     Attention:  Ms. Bonnie Moss 
Assistant Superintendent     Principal 
133 Mission Street, Suite 100     5111 Telegraph Avenue, No. 307 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060      Oakland, CA 94609 
 


 


14. Survival.   


All terms and provisions hereof intended to be observed and performed by the parties after the 
termination hereof, shall survive such expiration or termination and shall continue thereafter in 
full force and effect, subject to applicable statutes of limitations.   
 


 


15. Severability.   


If a court of competent jurisdiction finds any provision of this Agreement void, illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable as applied to any person or circumstance, the remainder of this Agreement and 
the application of such provision to other persons or circumstances shall be interpreted so as 
best to effect the intent of the parties hereto.  The parties further agree to replace any such void, 
illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision with a valid and enforceable provision that will achieve, 
to the fullest extent possible, the economic, business, and other purposes of such provision. 
 


 


16. Assignment Prohibited; Binding Effect; No Third Party Rights.   


No party to this Agreement may assign any right or obligation pursuant to this Agreement.  Any 
attempt to assign such rights or obligations shall be null and void.  Notwithstanding the prior 
limitation, this Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, and 
their successors.  This Agreement shall not create any rights or benefits to parties other than 
Client and Provider.  No third party shall have the right to rely on Provider opinions rendered in 
connection with the Services without the prior written consent of Provider. 
 


 


79/336







	 7 


17. Governing Law; Venue.   


This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California without regard to any 
conflicts of law doctrine.  In any action or proceeding brought to enforce this Agreement or any 
other claim arising out of or related to this Agreement, the venue shall be Santa Cruz County, 
California, if the action is brought by Client or Alameda County, California, if the action is brought 
by Provider.  Each party waives, to the maximum extent permitted by law, any and all rights, 
either substantive or procedural, which in any way limit or prevent enforcement of the terms of 
this Agreement. 
 


18. Entire Understanding; Waiver; Modification.   


This Agreement constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of the agreement among the 
parties about the described subject matter.  It supersedes all prior written and oral statements, 
including any prior representation or statement.  No waiver or indulgence of any failure to keep 
or perform any promise or condition of this Agreement shall be a waiver of any preceding or 
succeeding breach of the same or any other promise or condition.  No waiver of any right shall 
be construed as a waiver of any other right.  Neither party shall be required to give notice to 
enforce strict adherence to all terms of this Agreement.  No waiver or modification of any of the 
terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing, signed by the party to be bound. 


  
 
Provider:       CliffordMoss 
Address:        5111 Telegraph Avenue Suite 307, Oakland, CA 94609 


 
By:  _____________________________________        Date: __________ 
  Bonnie J. Moss, Principal 
 
 
 
 
Client:            Santa Cruz City Schools 
Address:        133 Mission Street, Suite 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


 


By:  ______________________________________           Date: __________ 
  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


80/336







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2. 


 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education – Agreement for Professional Services - Revised 
 
MEETING DATE: February 6, 2019 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Agreement for Professional Services through the 2018-2019 school year.  
Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity of disabled pupils, the student’s 


name has been omitted.  


 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Augmentative / Alternative Communication and Direct / Consultation 
Services for a student in Special Education that requires these specialized services that could 
not be provided within District programs.  Services will be rendered through Deborah A. Bell, 
SLP, MA/CCC and are mandated in the identified student’s IEP.  Service Period:  January 7, 2019 
through June 30, 2019. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   
Not to exceed $2,250.00.   Funded by Special Education (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 


 
 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 
 
 


81/336







82/336







83/336







84/336







85/336







86/336







87/336







88/336







89/336







90/336







91/336







92/336







93/336







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.3. 


 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Student Services – Agreement For Professional Services 
 
MEETING DATE: February 6, 2019 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Retroactively approve the attached Agreement for Professional Services between Santa Cruz 
City Schools and  Balance4Kids from January 7, 2019 to March 29, 2019.  


 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Balance4Kids will provide a behavioral support consultant to one student of Bay View 
Elementary for 1,700 minutes per week from January 7, 2019 to March 29, 2019.  We do not 
currently have adequately trained staff or this BII-level behavioral support available within our 
District to accommodate the student’s needs. Service provided by the consultant will be 
consistent with all federal and California state laws. 
 
This Agreement for Professional Services is being submitted for retroactive approval, and 
timelines have been reviewed to ensure that in the future, approval is obtained before services. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   
Not to exceed $8,670.00  MAA Funds (Restricted). 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 


 
 


94/336







95/336







96/336







97/336







98/336







99/336







100/336







101/336







102/336







103/336







104/336







105/336







106/336







107/336







AGENDA ITEM:  8.2.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Memorandum of Understanding – Healthy Kids 
 
MEETING DATE: February 6, 2019 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Retroactively approve the Memorandum of Understanding Service Agreement with Healthy 
Kids for a period from September 1, 2018 to August 31, 2019. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The California Healthy Kids Survey is a tool that is supported by the California Department of 
Education (CDE) to aid districts in meeting Local Control Accountability Plan priorities. The 
assessment gathers information from students in grade 5 and higher to guide districts in 
student improvement through student connectedness, school safety, socio-emotional well-
being, parent involvement, and academic achievement.  
 
This Memorandum of Understanding is being submitted for retroactive approval, and timelines 
have been reviewed to ensure that in the future, approval is obtained before services. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$3935.40    MAA Fund (Restricted) 
 


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 


Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 


 


108/336







109/336







110/336







111/336







        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Overnight Field Trip—Soquel High School  
      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the overnight field trip request for Soquel High School students to travel to Southern 
California from April 10, 2019 to April 12, 2019.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Soquel High School’s Socio-Economically Disadvantaged (SED) students with a 3.0 GPA and 
higher will have the opportunity to attend an overnight field trip to Southern California to visit 
and tour the following universities: UCSB, UCLA, CSU Long Beach, CSU Dominguez Hills, and CSU 
Channel Islands. Students will become familiar with different in-state colleges and varying 
program availability, which will encourage students to recognize that they have the ability to 
attend a four-year college. Furthermore, this trip will allow first generation high school 
graduates and low-income students to explore several diverse and distant universities that they 
will not be able to visit without this opportunity.  Students will miss three days of school. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$8,438.20  Costs will be covered through fundraising, donations, and LCFF Supplemental 
(Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:   
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


112/336







Southern California College Tour Field Trip 


Day 1: Wednesday 4/10/2019 


 8:00am Depart from SQHS (401 Soquel San Jose Rd, Soquel, CA 95073) to 


UCSB. (Duration: 4 hours, 30 min) 


 12:30 pm Arrive at UCSB. 


 12:45-1:45 pm LUNCHTIME 


 2:00-4:00pm Tour in UCSB 


 4:15pm Depart to Hotel, El Segundo, CA (Duration: 2Hours, 30min) 


 6:45 pm Arrive at the Hotel 


DAY 2: Thursday 4/11/2019 


 7:00 am-8:30 am Breakfast at the Hotel 


 8:45am Depart from Hotel in el Segundo to UCLA (Duration: 35min) 


 10:00am-12:00 Tour in UCLA 


 12:15 pm Depart from UCLA to CSU Long Beach. (Duration: 1 hour and 10 min) 


 1:15-2:15 pm LUNCH TIME 


 2:30 -3:45 Tour in CSU Long Beach 


 4:00 pm Depart from CSU Long Beach To CSU Dominguez Hills (Duration: 


30min)13.0 miles 


 4:30-5:30 Tour in CSU Dominguez Hills 


 5:45-6:45pm. Dinner in the local vicinity 


 7:00 pm Depart From Dominguez Hills to the Hotel in El Segundo, Ca. (Duration: 


30min) 


 7:30 pm Arrive at the Hotel, in El Segundo, Ca. 


Day 3: Friday 4/12/2019 


 7:00-8:30 am Breakfast in the Hotel 


 9:00 am Depart from El Segundo to CSU Channel Islands (Duration: 1 hour, 


30min) 


 10:45-11: 45 am TOUR in CSU Channel Islands 


 12:00-1:00pm LUNCHTIME 


 1:15 pm Depart from CSU Channel Islands to Soquel High School (Duration: 4 


hours, 50min) 


 6:15 pm Arrive at Soquel High School 


113/336







                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Consultation Service Agreement – Anna Paganelli 
      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Retroactively approve the Consultation Service Agreement for Anna Paganelli to provide on-site 
clinical mental health supervision to students at Costanoa High School from January 7, 2019 to 
June 2019.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Mental Health Professional Interns are placed at various school sites to support the socio-
emotional needs of students. Upon reaching an established caseload limit with Costanoa, extra 
hours of supervision are required for appropriate licensing requirements. Additional support 
through coaching and supervision to our mental health interns will provide subsequent support 
for our students and ultimately increase school connectedness and improve emotional well-
being. 
Anna Paganelli will provide mental health support to Costanoa students experiencing trauma or 
crisis for a total of 23 hours over a period of January through June, 2019.  
 
This Consultation Service Agreement is being submitted for retroactive approval, and timelines 
have been reviewed to ensure that in the future, approval is obtained before services. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$690.00 from Student Services MAA Fund (Restricted).  
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 


114/336







115/336







Must be Attached          Page Two 
 


REQUEST FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 


Review guidelines of Board Policy - Consultant Services Agreements. 


 


Site:  Costanoa High School  Principal/Director: Steve Hambright/Greg O’Meara   


 


1. Statement of specific need (Refer to district/site goals and plans, unique needs of school, program or 


office which necessitates the services of a consultant). 
Mental Health Professional Interns are placed at various school sites to support the socio-emotional needs of  


students. Upon reaching an established caseload limit, extra hours of supervision are required for appropriate 


licensing requirements. Goal #2:  create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 


of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. Supports school connectedness. 


2. State efforts made to identify qualified staff available within the district to carry out the requested 


services. 


Currently, social workers monitor and coach mental health interns, but the additional need of  


emotional support for students at Costanoa warrants an increase of clinical supervision. 
 


 


 


3. If this agreement is for staff development or for one-time services, state the site's plan to reduce or 


eliminate the need for this consultant's services in the future. 


Directly related to students. 
 


 


 


 


4. Statement of expected outcomes (Can include specific student outcomes desired, benefits to district 


students and/or staff, etc.). 


Additional support via coaching and supervision to our mental health interns will provide subsequent 


support for our students and ultimately increase school connectedness and improve emotional 


well-being. 
 


 


5. Evaluation Process (survey evaluation, specific student outcomes such as increased skills, product such 


as a publication, documentation of benefits to students and/or staff). 


Students who receive added necessary socio-emotional support by mental health interns will  


Demonstrate improvements in behavior and through academics.  
 


 


 
 


116/336







                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Consultation Service Agreement – Planned Parenthood - Revised 
      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Retroactively approve the Consultation Service Agreement for Planned Parenthood to provide 
an on-site comprehensive sexual health curriculum to students at Santa Cruz High School from 
December 3-7, 2018.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Planned Parenthood provides an adjunct to Santa Cruz High’s health and sexual education 
curriculum. Their comprehensive sexual health curriculum aligns with state standards and 
recent affirmative consent laws. Students will gain skills and knowledge related to gender and 
sexual orientation, consent, dating violence and healthy relationships, disease and infection 
preventative care, communication, birth control, and pregnancy options.  
 
This Consultation Service Agreement is being submitted for retroactive approval, and timelines 
have been reviewed to ensure that in the future, approval is obtained before services. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$240.00 from Santa Cruz High School site fund (Unrestricted).  
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 


117/336







118/336







Must be Attached          Page Two 
 


REQUEST FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 


Review guidelines of Board Policy - Consultant Services Agreements. 


 


Site:  Santa Cruz High School   Principal/Director: Brent Kline   


 


1. Statement of specific need (Refer to district/site goals and plans, unique needs of school, program or 


office which necessitates the services of a consultant). 


 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of  


cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. This comprehensive sexual health  


curriculum aligns with state standards and recent affirmative consent laws. 
 


2. State efforts made to identify qualified staff available within the district to carry out the requested 


services. 


 


Planned Parenthood is adjunct to additional teacher instruction. 


 
 


 


3. If this agreement is for staff development or for one-time services, state the site's plan to reduce or 


eliminate the need for this consultant's services in the future. 


 


It is not for staff development, and is ongoing by semester. 
 


 


 


4. Statement of expected outcomes (Can include specific student outcomes desired, benefits to district 


students and/or staff, etc.). 


 


Students will gain skills and knowledge related to: gender and sexual orientation, consent, dating 


violence, healthy relationships, preventing STIs, communication, birth control, and pregnancy options. 
 


 


5. Evaluation Process (survey evaluation, specific student outcomes such as increased skills, product such 


as a publication, documentation of benefits to students and/or staff). 


 


Students will be provided evaluation by unit tests and assessments.  
 


 


 
 


119/336







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.8. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Memorandum of Understanding – University of California Santa 
Cruz Corre la Voz 


 
MEETING DATE: February 6, 2019 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Retroactively approve the Memorandum of Understanding with the University of California 
Santa Cruz for the UC Links Program “Corre la Voz” to be conducted at Bay View Elementary 
School for a service period of October 10, 2018 to June 7, 2019. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) recognizes agreement between Santa Cruz City 
Schools (SCCS) and the University of California Santa Cruz’s UC Links Program “Corre la Voz” 
(CLV) for students of Bay View Elementary School in the fourth and fifth grade who are enrolled 
in the After School Education and Safety (ASES) program. The CLV program will be held after 
school hours, and supply University mentors that will “provide curriculum, materials, and 
equipment to develop improved learning engagement, communication, academic and technical 
skills, and social-cultural awareness to expand potential for educational persistence.” 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
$3,930.57 donated by Corre la Voz program to employ an ASES Program Coordinator and/or an 
ASES Site Advisor 
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


120/336







121/336







122/336







123/336







124/336







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.9. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Request for Revisions to the College Readiness Block Grant 
      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the revisions made to the College Readiness Block Grant district plan.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The purpose of the College Readiness Block Grant is funding to provide California high school 
pupils, particularly unduplicated pupils, additional support to increase the number who enroll 
at institutions of higher education and complete an undergraduate degree within four years. 
The College Readiness Block Grant provides guidance regarding appropriate uses of these 
funds, some of which include, but are not limited to the following: 
 


● Expanding access to coursework or other opportunities to satisfy A–G course 
requirements to all pupils, including, but not necessarily limited to, pupils enrolled in 
schools identified by the department as high schools with 75 percent or greater 
enrollment of unduplicated pupils, pursuant to subdivision (g). These opportunities may 
include, but shall not be limited to, new or expanded partnerships with other secondary 
or postsecondary educational institutions. 


● Providing teachers, administrators, and counselors with professional development 
opportunities to improve pupil A–G course completion rates, pupil college-going rates, 
and college readiness of pupils, including providing for the development of honors and 
Advanced Placement courses. 


● Implementing collaborative partnerships between high schools and postsecondary 
educational institutions that support pupil transition to postsecondary education, 
including, but not limited to, strengthening existing partnerships with the University of 
California and the California State University to establish early academic outreach and 
college preparatory programs. 


● Providing subsidies to unduplicated pupils, as defined in Sections 42238.01 and 
42238.02, to pay fees for taking advanced placement exams. 


Our district applied for and was awarded the College Readiness Block Grant for the 2016-17, 
2017-18, and 2018-19 school years. All high school principals were consulted regarding the 
needs of their sites as they related to the scope of the grant and priorities were identified and 
then approved by the board.  
 


125/336







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.9. 


Small Schools Principal Steve Hambright has since worked with the Secondary Director of 
Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment to develop a plan to implement A-G coursework at the 
Ark Independent Studies Alternative High School. Increasing students’ opportunity to access A-
G coursework is in direct alignment with the scope of the College Readiness Block Grant. As 
such, Principal Hambright and Director Hodges wish to add the Ark to the district plan for use of 
College Readiness Block Grant funds as a means to support the Ark with funds to pursue adding 
A-G courses to their current course offerings.  
 
The additions to the district College Readiness Block Grant plan have been highlighted for ease 
of identifying the proposed addition.  
 
College Readiness Block Grant (CRBG) Budget Revisions 2/6/19: 
  
Our District: High school principals were consulted as to their sites needs, and the following 
priorities were identified (see 1/31/19 revisions highlighted): 
  
Soquel, Santa Cruz, and Harbor- 
1.     AP test subsidies for economically disadvantaged students. 
2.     PSAT costs for all 10th and 11th graders. 
3.     Use of ‘AP Potential’ to identify students who are ready to take on the rigor of AP courses. 
4.     Costs of AP Teacher institutes for professional development. 
5.     Costs of Common Core, AVID, &/or college readiness related professional development for 
teachers, admin, or counselors. 
6.     Two day CTE pathway workshop for all CTE teachers. 
7.     SAT & ACT preparation courses for students. 
  
Costanoa- 
1.     Online VAPA course done through Cabrillo. 
2.     Stipend for a coordinator to oversee the ‘Your Future is Our Business’ partnership allowing 
students to shadow prospective jobs, participate in mock interviews, and receive hands-on 
work experience. 
3.     Costs of Common Core, AVID, &/or college readiness related professional development for 
teachers, admin, or counselors. 
  
Ark- 
1.     Work to add A-G course offerings through the Ark so that students would be able to take A-
G courses through the Ark beginning in the 2019-20 school year. 
  
Projected Costs:  


Items Harbor SCHS Soquel Costanoa/Ark District-wide 


AP Test Subsidies 12,150 8,700 10,250 0   


126/336







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.9. 


  * 3 years 36,450 11,100 30,750   78,300 


PSAT: 10 & 11 1,740 1,620 1,740 1,300   


  *3 years 5,220 4,860 5,220  3,900 19,200 


AP Potential 0 0 0 0 0 


AP Teacher 


Institutes 


16,650 16,650 16,650   49,950 


2 Day Pathway 


WKSHP 


1234 1234 1234   3,702 


SAT Prep Course 1600 1600 1600   4,800 


ACT Prep Course 1600 1600 1600   4,800 


VAPA online 


Cabrillo Course 


          


   *2 Years       1,500 4,500 


YFIOB Coordinator 


Stipend 


         


   *2 years       2,000 4,500 


Common 


Core/AVID/Colleg


e Readiness PD 


        25, 409 


Add A-G course 


offerings at the 


Ark 


      5,500   


Budget from 


block grant 
$62,754 $37,044 $57,054 $12,900 $195,161.00 


127/336







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.9. 


~Initially Prepared by Ann Mekis, Director of Secondary Curriculum, Intervention, and 
Assessment (2016-17) 
~Revised by Julia Hodges, Director of Secondary Curriculum, Intervention, and Assessment, 
2/1/18 
~Revised by Julia Hodges, Director of Secondary Curriculum, Intervention, and Assessment, 
1/31/19 
 
 
Evaluation Criteria: 
We will continue to monitor our A-G completion rate at each of the high schools as well as the 
number of students enrolling in a 2 or 4 year college directly after graduation. We expect to see 
an increase in these numbers at each of our high schools.  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
  


128/336







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Computer Science for All Grant  
      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Computer Science (CS) for All National Science Foundation (NSF) grant application.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
For the past 2 school years, SCCS has been participating in a NSF CS for All grant focused on bringing CS 
to grades 3-8 by integrating CS into core curriculum. While we have made some headway in regards to 
bringing CS into some of our classrooms, we have not yet been able to bring CS opportunities to all 
students in grades 3-8. As our current NSF grant runs out at the end of this school year, we now have 
the opportunity to apply for an additional NSF grant to continue and refine our work in this area. Below 
is an Executive Summary of the new NSF CS for All grant proposal for SCCS. 
 


Computing for the Social Good:  
A Research-Practice Partnership to Increase Equity among Students and Parents 


 
This proposal to the National Science Foundation (NSF) is a collaboration between Santa Cruz City 
Schools, the Santa Cruz Education Foundation, and Education, Training, Research (ETR), with additional 
researchers from Stanford University and the University of California Santa Cruz. It builds on a smaller 
NSF grant we received in 2017 to establish the research-practice partnership (RPP), and to build capacity 
within the district to design and test a pathway for computer science (CS) education and computational 
thinking (CT) in 3rd-8th grade. This new proposal will continue the RPP to address critical questions 
about how CS can be used to support literacy and identity development, how to increase the readiness 
and capacity of teachers and staff in a small district to integrate CS, and how to effectively engage low 
income and Latinx parents. These efforts are driven by local needs and resources, are responsive to the 
newly adopted California Computer Science Education Standards, and are part of a national movement 
to broaden participation in computing by developing and testing innovative strategies through research-
practice partnerships.  
 
Computer science is a tool for both learning and expression, and provides a unique opportunity for 
students to develop computational thinking, which has been described as the thought processes that 
students use to formulate problems and solutions in a way that can be carried out on a computer. It is 
well-established that this kind of thinking is relevant beyond computer science to disciplines that include 
math, science, English language arts, social studies, and the arts. What is less common in K-12 is the use 
of CS and CT to address the pressing social and environmental issues of our time. Our team is uniquely 


129/336







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 


positioned to develop and test an approach to building young students’ CS and CT concepts and 
practices in a way that addresses the needs and issues that are most important to them and their local 
environment.  
 
Our team has been meeting to develop this proposal since summer 2018. Our meetings have included 
teachers, principals, school staff, administrators, external researchers, and SCEF staff.  Together, we 
have identified three issues that have relevance to national CS for All efforts, and are problems that 
District representatives believe can be addressed by the creation of a CS pathway. These are: 1) inequity 
in academic literacy across demographic groups (with the largest gaps between white and Latinx 
students), 2) increasingly segregated schools based on race and class, and 3) inequities in family access 
to and engagement with our digital society. This proposal is requesting funds to carry out several 
strategies to address the problems: 


1. Prepare and support teachers to integrate equity-oriented computer science/computational 
thinking into core curriculum with supports for English language development  


2. Initiate development of a pathway from K-8 that attracts students and families from across the 
district by preparing them to be citizens who could use CS for the social good 


3. Build family engagement and competence through computer literacy and leadership activities 
 
The pathway will be developed by a cross-district team and tested initially with students at Gault 
Elementary School and Branciforte Middle School, the two Title I schools where we tested the coaching 
model in the initial NSF grant. Parts of the pathway and family engagement will then be tested at other 
schools through staff in cross district roles, such as the Community Coordinators that work with Spanish-
speaking families, and the Library Media Teachers, who are certified librarians; these staff members 
already have established professional learning communities with their counterparts at each school.  
 
Baseline data were collected as part of our current grant. In a recent survey of parents from Gault 
Elementary school, 89% said that most students should be required to learn CS, 84% said it is just as or 
more important than core subjects like math, science, history and English, and 83% said it is important 
or very important for their child to have resources to learn CS at their school. The majority of students 
(84%) say they may or do want a job in the future where they would need to know CS. However, 49% of 
the students say they never have, or are not sure they ever have, learned any CS. For B40 parents, 64% 
said that most students should be required to learn CS, 68% said it is just as or more important than core 
subjects like math, science, history and English, and 67% said it is important or very important for their 
child to have resources to learn CS at their school. Most students (66%) say they may or do want a job in 
the future where they would need to know CS. However, 36% say that never have, or are not sure they 
ever have, learned CS.   
 
 
 
 
We anticipate the following SCCS roles: 
 
Teacher on Special Assignment: A full-time TOSA that initially splits their time between Gault and B40, 
but also starts to support teachers participating in Tech Cadres to implement CS and instructional 
technology. They will be supervised by the Principals at the two schools, with additional support from 
the Directors of Curriculum and Instruction. The TOSA will become the local expert in equity-oriented CS 


130/336







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 


education for K-8 and will lead monthly professional learning communities at each school. They will 
identify resources including curriculum, software, CS PD opportunities, monitor online CS education 
chats for new and opportunities, coordinate external teacher CS PD, plus the pre-work and support, 
collaborate with teachers and staff to infuse CS into existing curriculum; provide planning and in-class 
support for teachers to implement CS units, support teachers teachers to integrate assessment into 
units and work with research team to collect other data, and help change the climate toward CS by 
giving talks and supporting teachers who are not yet comfortable with CS, They will also help with 
documentation, and will develop final products to share. 
  
Teachers: Lead teachers will include one teacher from each grade span at the elementary school, and 
three science teachers at the middle school. They will get training and support to develop curriculum 
units and identify points for integration; get CS PD; pilot test activities. Additional teachers will provide 
input on, get CS PD, and participate in full implementation in year 2. 
 
CS Community Outreach Coordinator: Primary responsibilities include leading the Family Engagement 
Team and working with community coordinators and ELD teachers to plan and run family events.  
 
SCCS Administrators 


The NSF funding requires that this work be carried out as a research-practice partnership (RPP). 
The Directors of Curriculum and Instruction (Mary Anne Robb and Julia Hodges) have played a 
leadership role in the RPP, with input from the Superintendents; we anticipate the Principals will also 
play a role in this next phase of the RPP. The researchers will include Jill Denner (ETR), Kip Téllez (UCSC), 
and Rose Pozos (Stanford). Data will be collected on the process of how teachers develop 
activities/units, the role of the TOSA and PD, how the implementation actually occurs, and the benefits 
to teachers, students, and families. Data will be analyzed and shared on a regular basis to inform 
revisions to the teacher support and training, curricular units, and family engagement activities.   


 
For information on the NSF CS for All Research-Practice Partnership Program, visit this website: 


https://www.nsf.gov/pubs/2018/nsf18537/nsf18537.htm 


 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: (The NSF CS for All Grant would cover the costs listed below) 
 
$159,000 SCCS Total Estimate for Year 1 
 $35,000 Teacher/Staff PD & release planning days 
$120,000 Full Time CS TOSA 
 
$149,000 SCCS Total Estimate for Years 2 and 3 
$29,000 Teacher/Staff PD & release planning days 
$120,000/year Full Time CS TOSA 
 
$4,000/year - CS Outreach Coordinator  estimate 80 hours/year @ $50/hour 
 


$6,600/year - SCEF (Support Family Engagement Events) 
 


131/336







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 


$185,000/year - ETR (includes project coordinator, advisors, & external evaluator) 
$56,000- $59,000/year - ETR personnel + fringe  


-Principal investigator (Jill) 10% 
-Research assistant, 20% 
-Project coordinator  30% 


$2,000/year - Travel to national meetings 
$500/year - Incentives for research participants 
$60,000/year - ETR indirect + facilities & computers 
 


$58,200/year - Consultants 
Rose Pozos: $16,800/year for 25% time  
Kip Téllez  one day/month  $700/day=$8,400 
External evaluator: $30,000/year 
External advisors: 3 x $1000/year=$3,000/year 


 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 


132/336







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.11.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Consultant Services Agreement - Project GLAD 
      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Retroactively approve the Consultant Service Agreement with Project GLAD to provide 
professional staff development at Gault Elementary for four trainings throughout the 2018-19 
school year.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Project GLAD was developed and field-tested for nine years by the United States Department of 
Education. It is a professional development model in the area of language acquisition and literacy. 
The strategies and model promote language acquisition, academic achievement, and cross-cultural 
skills.  
 
Most of the certificated staff at Gault have already been trained in GLAD strategies. Four 
additional follow-up sessions will be offered on January 16th, January 18th, February 8th, and 
February 22nd.  Follow-up sessions will be available to all teachers with the purpose of guiding 
them in specific instructional strategies that will support English Learners to grow and be 
successful in their content area. English Learner (EL) progress is one of our agreed-upon district 
strategic focus areas, and this professional learning opportunity is in direct support of this strategic 
focus area. 
 
The effectiveness of this training will be demonstrated through classroom presentations, peer 
observations, and administrator walkthroughs focused on engagement and accessibility of content 
area in classrooms for English Learners, and all students. Teachers will create lesson plans that 
include GLAD strategies for English language support in core content areas. Professional Learning 
Communities (PLC) will focus on planning GLAD lessons and will provide and analyze EL student 
work samples to determine next instructional steps.  
 
This Consultation Service Agreement is being submitted for retroactive approval, and timelines 
have been reviewed to ensure that in the future, approval is obtained before services. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$6,000 to be paid from Title I Professional Development (Restricted).  
  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 


133/336







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.11.  


Goal #2:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #3:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 


134/336







135/336







136/336







137/336







138/336







1DODD_ATJEUB-2BA12B03A37D45DB95C830075C860F36 


AGENDA ITEM 8.2.12 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Consultant Services Agreement - Jerene Lacey  


MEETING DATE: February 6, 2019 


FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services    


THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Consultant Service Agreement with Jerene Lacey for assistance with budget 
development and other Finance Office matters. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Jerene Lacey is a past Finance Director of SCCS, and she is well acquainted with Digital Schools 
and the District’s budget.  The Finance Office requires her assistance with 2019-20 budget 
development and with other Finance Office matters. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $5,000.00, to be paid from the General Fund (Unrestricted). 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 


139/336







140/336







141/336







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.13. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Elite Interactive Solutions, Inc. Change Order #1 for Additional 
Cameras at Harbor High School as Part of the New Security 
System 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Elite Interactive Solutions, Inc. change order#1 for additional cameras at Harbor High 
School as part of the new security system. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of an additional camera to cover a blind spot near the cafeteria. The 
previously approved contract amount was $36,738.40 and the new total contract, including this 
change order, will be $38,242.94. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1     $1,504.54, (4.09% increase to the contract), LCFF Base Fund 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


142/336







143/336







144/336







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: BSN Sports Quotes for Sports Equipment for the Harbor High 
School Athletic Field Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the BSN Sports quotes for sports equipment as part of the Harbor High School athletic 
field project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
These quotes are for football down markers and pylons, soccer nets and track/field protector 
tarps for the new athletic field at Harbor High School.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$17,529.86, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.05% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


145/336







146/336







Quote


2355 Gold Meadow Way Ste 140
Gold River, CA 95670


Tel: 916-631-1904 Fax: 916-631-1905
Visit us at www.bsnsports.com


Ship To
1635261
HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL            
Hollis O'Brien - AD           
300 La Fonda                  
SANTA CRUZ CA  95062          
USA                           


Sold to
1635261
HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL            
300 La Fonda                  
SANTA CRUZ CA  95062          
USA                           


Payer
1767078
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCH DISTRICT  
Accts Payable                 
133 Mission Street, Ste. 100  
SANTA CRUZ CA  95060          


Cart #: 4553251
Purchase Order #: QUOTE                    


Cart Name: Soccer Goal Quote        
Quote Date: 01/23/2019


Quote Valid-to: 12/30/2019
Payment Terms: NT30


Ship Via:                          
Ordered By: Hollis O'Brien


Contact Your Rep
LJ Gagnier    Email:ljgagnier@bsnsports.com | Phone:831-227-6652


Item Description Qty Unit Price Total


Page: 1 of  1  


4" Stadium Alumagoal                               1 PR $   3,199.99 $   3,199.99 
Item # - SGA403 


TRANSPORT WHEELS (SET OF 2)                        4 SET $     143.99 $     575.96 
Item # - SCGWHLXX 


SOCCER NET 8'X24' 4MM WHITE                        1 PR $     199.99 $     199.99 
Item # - 1367769 


Subtotal: $3,975.94  


Other: $0.00      


Freight: $318.08    


Sales Tax: $367.78    


Order Total: $4,661.80  


Payment/Credit Applied: $0.00      


Order Total: $4,661.80  


______


___


147/336







Quote


2355 Gold Meadow Way Ste 140
Gold River, CA 95670


Tel: 916-631-1904 Fax: 916-631-1905
Visit us at www.bsnsports.com


Ship To
1635261
HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL            
Hollis O'Brien - AD           
300 La Fonda                  
SANTA CRUZ CA  95062          
USA                           


Sold to
1635261
HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL            
300 La Fonda                  
SANTA CRUZ CA  95062          
USA                           


Payer
1767078
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCH DISTRICT  
Accts Payable                 
133 Mission Street, Ste. 100  
SANTA CRUZ CA  95060          


Cart #: 4553274
Purchase Order #: QUOTE                    


Cart Name: Football Quote           
Quote Date: 01/23/2019


Quote Valid-to: 12/30/2019
Payment Terms: NT30


Ship Via:                          
Ordered By: Hollis O'Brien


Contact Your Rep
LJ Gagnier    Email:ljgagnier@bsnsports.com | Phone:831-227-6652


Item Description Qty Unit Price Total


Page: 1 of  1  


Cross-Over Zone Track Protector 15'X40'            2 EA $     740.79 $   1,481.58 
Item # - 1248302 


Bench Zone 50' Turf Tarp                           2 EA $     959.99 $   1,919.98 
Item # - 1239669 


8" BENCH ZONE GET BACK LINE                        2 EA $     467.99 $     935.98 
Item # - 1271232 


POST PAD W/HOOK/LOOP 6-1/2" OD CUSTOM              2 EA $     314.49 $     628.98 
Item # - G808YV6XDS 


SCREENED LETTERING TWO-COLOR                       2 EA $     199.99 $     399.98 
Item # - 1376909 


21' Player Bench w/ Shelf Dk Grn                   4 EA $   1,150.00 $   4,600.00 
Item # - BEPS21CG 


Subtotal: $9,966.50  


Other: $0.00      


Freight: $1,250.00  


Sales Tax: $921.91    


Order Total: $12,138.41 


Payment/Credit Applied: $0.00      


Order Total: $12,138.41 


______


___


148/336







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: CRW Industries, Inc. Contract and Proposal to Install the Stage 
Project Screen at Mission Hill Middle School for Modernization 
Phase 1 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the CRW Industries, Inc. contract and proposal to install the stage projector screen at 
Mission Hill Middle school as part of the Modernization Phase 1.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of the installation of a new stage projector screen at Mission Hill Middle 
School.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$19,336.91, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.10% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


149/336







150/336







151/336







152/336







153/336







154/336







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: CRW Industries, Inc. Change Order #3 to Provide Electrical Power 
at Branciforte Small Schools for the Relocation of Playground and 
Lunch Shelter Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve CRW Industries, Inc. change order #3 to provide electrical power at Branciforte Small 
Schools for the relocation of playground and lunch shelter project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of providing adequate power for three (3) new hand dryers. The 
previously approved contract amount was $263,707.76 and the new total contract, including 
this change order, will be $266,792.24. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #3     $3,084.48, (1.16% increase to the contract), Measure B Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


155/336







156/336







157/336







158/336







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: CRW Industries, Inc. Change Order #4 for the Mission Hill Middle 
School Front Landscape Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve CRW Industries, Inc. change order#4 for the Mission Hill Middle Schools front 
landscape project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of adding foundation vents at the concrete walkway, replacing drain 
pipes, additional structural steel per the Division of the State Architect (DSA) requirements and 
repair to an undocumented AT&T service. The additional structural steel modifications are due 
to DSA structural changes to the drawings after the initial bid. The previously approved contract 
amount was $894,115.08 and the new total contract, including this change order, will be 
$957,433.85. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #4   $63,318.77, (7.08% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


159/336







004


160/336







161/336







162/336







163/336







164/336







165/336







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Enviroplex Change Order #3 to Add Stucco Color and Exterior 
Lights at the New Concession Building for the Harbor High School 
Athletic Field Improvement Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Enviroplex change order#3 to add stucco color and exterior lights at the new 
concession building for the Harbor High School athletic field improvement project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of additional work to add an integrated acrylic stucco color to the 
building exterior, and install four (4) additional lights on the exterior of the new concession 
building at Harbor High School. The previously approved contract amount was $468,998.90 and 
the new total contract, including this change order, will be $471,945.80. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #3     $2,947.00, (0.62% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


166/336







167/336







168/336







169/336







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Leach Group, Inc. Contract and Proposal for Onsite DSA Inspection 
of the Swimming Pool and Weight Room at Harbor High School 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Leach Group, Inc. contract and proposal for onsite DSA inspection services of the 
swimming pool and weight room at Harbor High School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is based on the requirements to have a Division of the State Architect (DSA) 
inspector of records for the new swimming pool and weight room at Harbor High school. The 
proposal is based on the schedule of work provided by the architect and is a best estimate. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$20,000.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.06% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


170/336







1 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES AGREEMENT   


 
 


This Independent Contractor Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered 
into effective February 8th , 2019 (the “Effective Date”) by and between Santa Cruz City 
Schools (“District”) and      Leach Group, Inc.______                          (“Contractor”). 
 


1. Contractor Services.  Contractor agrees to provide the following services: DSA onsite 
inspection services at Harbor high School for the new swimming pool and weight room.  
 


2. Contractor Qualifications.  Contractor represents that it or its principals or employees 
assigned to provide services under this Agreement have or shall have in effect all licenses, 
credentials, permits and has otherwise all legal qualifications to perform this Agreement.  
[OPTIONAL: Contractor shall provide District with a copy of a current curriculum vitae 
for each principal or employee assigned to work on District projects.] 


 
3.    Term.  This Agreement shall begin on February 8th , 2019, and shall terminate upon 


completion of the scope of work.  There shall be no extension of the term of this 
Agreement without express written consent by the District and Contractor.  


 
4.  Termination.  The District may terminate this Agreement immediately at any time by 


giving written notice to the Contractor.  Such written notice shall be sufficient to stop 
further performance of services by Contractor.  In the event of termination prior to the end 
of the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall invoice the District for any work 
performed up to the date of termination, and shall promptly return any District property or 
records, and any copies thereof, in its possession to the District.  The District may then 
proceed with the work in any manner the District deems proper. 


 
5. Payment.  Total payment by District to Contractor shall not exceed $20,000.00 (Twenty 


Thousand Dollars).  District agrees to pay Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of a 
detailed invoice.  


 
6. Indemnity.  The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its 


agents, employees, Board of Education, and members of the Board of Education, from and 
against claims, damages, losses, and expenses (including, but not limited to attorney’s fees 
and costs including fees of consultants) arising out of or resulting from performance of this 
Agreement including, but not limited to, the Contractor’s use of the site; the Contractor’s 
completion of its duties under this Agreement; injury to or death of persons or damage to 
property or delay or damage to the District, its agents, employees, Board of Education, 
members of the Board of Education, for any act, omission, negligence, or willful 
misconduct of the Contractor or its respective agents, subcontractors, employees, material 
or equipment suppliers, invitees, or licensees.  Such obligation shall not be construed to 
negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity, which would otherwise 
exist as to a party, person, or entity described in this paragraph.    
 


7. Comprehensive General Liability and Automobile Insurance.  Without limiting 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 92C02962-5894-45F8-A195-0659411B897D


171/336







 


2 


Contractor’s indemnification as set forth in Section 6 hereof, Contractor shall, before 
beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement, secure 
and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, the following 
insurance: 


 
   □ Comprehensive General Liability, for bodily injury, personal injury and 


property damage in an amount not less than: 
     □ $1,000,000.00 per occurrence 
 
   □ Automobile Insurance, for bodily injury and property damage combined 


single limit in an amount not less than: 
     □ $1,000,000.00 per occurrence 
 
 The District shall be named as an additional insured on Contractor’s insurance policy by 


endorsement.  The policy shall provide that it is primary such that insurance maintained by 
the District, if any, shall be excess and not co-primary.  A copy of the declarations page of 
Contractor’s insurance policy shall be attached to this Agreement as proof of insurance.  
 


8. Independent Contractor Status.  While engaged in carrying out the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement, the Contractor is an independent Contractor, and not an officer, 
employee, agent, partner, or joint venturer of the District.  
 


9. Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Contractor agrees to provide all necessary workers’ 
compensation insurance for Contractor’s principals and employees, if any, at Contractor’s 
own cost and expense. 


 
10. Fingerprinting.  Contractor shall at all times comply with the fingerprinting and criminal 


background investigation requirements of the California Education Code (“Education 
Code”) section 45125.1.  Accordingly, by checking the applicable boxes below, 
Contractor and District agree to the following: 


 
  A.  Contractor and principals, employees, and subcontractors assigned to provide 


services under this Agreement will have only limited or no contact with District 
students at all times during the Term of this Agreement. 


 
11. Taxes.  Contractor agrees that Contractor has no entitlement to any future work from the 


District or to any employment or fringe benefits from the District.  Payments to the 
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement will be reported to Federal and State taxing 
authorities as required.  District will not withhold any money from compensation payable 
to Contractor.  In particular, District will not withhold FICA (social security); state or 
federal unemployment insurance contributions, state or federal income tax or disability 
insurance.  Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold District harmless from all 
State and Federal tax consequences and any related consequences stemming from or 
related to this Agreement.  Contractor is independently responsible for the payment of all 
applicable taxes. 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 92C02962-5894-45F8-A195-0659411B897D


172/336







 


3 


12. Assignment.  The Contractor shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise 
any or all of its rights, burdens, duties or obligations under this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of the District. 
 


13. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the 
Contractor and the District and their respective successors and assigns. 
 


14. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable 
any other provision of this Agreement.  
 


15. Amendments.  The terms of the Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, 
supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed 
by both parties. 
 


16. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of California and any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or 
with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of 
California for Santa Cruz County, subject to any motion for transfer of venue. 
 


17. Written Notice.  Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in 
person to the Contractor, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail to the last 
business address known to the person who sends the notice. 


 
District: Contractor: 


 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
405 Soquel-San Jose Road 
Soquel, CA 95073 
Attn:  Assistant Superintendent,  
Business Services 
 


Leach Group, Inc. 
5016 Monterey Street 
Carmel by the Sea, Ca 93923 


 


18. Compliance with Law.  Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be 
inserted into this Agreement shall be deemed to be inserted herein and this Agreement 
shall be read and enforced as though it were included therein.  Contractor shall comply 
with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, 
including fingerprinting under Education Code section 45125.1, confidentiality of records, 
Education Code section 49406 and others.  Contractor agrees that it shall comply with all 
legal requirements for the performance of duties under this agreement and that failure to 
do so shall constitute material breach. 
 


19. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is intended by the Parties as the final expression of 
their agreement with respect to such terms as are included herein and as the complete and 
exclusive statement of its terms and may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior 
agreement or of a contemporaneous oral agreement, nor explained or supplemented by 
evidence of consistent additional terms. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 92C02962-5894-45F8-A195-0659411B897D


173/336







 


4 


 
20. Execution of Other Documents.  The Parties to this Agreement shall cooperate fully in the 


execution of any and all other documents and in the completion of any additional actions 
that may be necessary or appropriate to give full force and effect to the terms and intent of 
this Agreement. 
 


21. Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the 
signatures may appear on separate signature pages.  A copy, facsimile, or an original, with 
all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully executed Agreement. 


 
22. Board Approval/Ratification.  The effectiveness of this Agreement is contingent upon 


approval or ratification by the District’s Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS CONTRACTOR 


 
 
 


By: ________________________________ 
 
Name:   ____________________________ 
 
Title:  ______________________________ 


 
Date: _______________________________ 


 


 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name: _____________________________  
 
Title:   _____________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________ 


 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 92C02962-5894-45F8-A195-0659411B897D


174/336







Brandon Leach 
DSA # 4924 


5016 Monterey St. 
Carmel by the Sea, Ca 93923 
T 661-599-5393 
leachgroup@me.com 


Proposal
LEACH GROUP INC.


Attention : Santa Cruz City School District 
Date :  01/18/19 
PROJECT TITLE: Harbor High Swimming pool and weight room replacement 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Onsite Inspection   
P.O. NUMBER:  N/A 


Term and conditions : These projections are based on the contractor performing per the 
approved schedule. 


Proposed  :                                                  $ 20,000.00



________________________________________

Brandon Leach , DSA#4924


Description Cost
Onsite inspection. 01-117228
Flat rate for inspection. $	20,000.00


Total $ 20,000.00


175/336







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: M3 Environmental Consulting, LLC Contract and Proposal for Lead 
Paint Survey for Exterior Painting at Gault Elementary School for 
Modernization Phase 1 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the M3 Environmental Consulting, LLC contract and proposal for lead paint surveying 
of exterior paint at Gault Elementary School for Modernization Phase 1. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal and contract are for lead paint survey, specification developments and 
remediation oversight for the exterior paint project at Gault Elementary School.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$12,100.00, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.10% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


176/336







177/336







178/336







179/336







180/336







 
 


9821 Blue Larkspur Lane, Suite 100 Monterey, CA 93940 T: 831-649-4623 www.M3environmental.com 
 


November 27, 2018 
 
Mr. Trevor Miller Via email: 
Director of Facilities trevormiller@sccs.net 
Santa Cruz City Schools  
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
831.429.3904 (p) 
 
Subject: Proposal for a Lead Paint Survey, Specification Development and Remediation Oversight 


for the Exterior Painting Project at Gault Elementary School Located at 1320 Seabright 
Avenue in Santa Cruz, California. 


 M3 Proposal No. 182517 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
M3 Environmental Consulting (M3) is pleased to present this proposal to provide a survey, specification, and 
remediation oversight services for the repainting project at Gault Elementary School located at 1320 
Seabright Avenue in Santa Cruz, California.  This proposal is based on site plans provided by you.   
 
Project Understanding 
 
M3 understands that the exteriors of the main building and the kindergarten building are to be re-painted.  
Paint prep activities will disturb lead paint and require a survey, hazardous material removal specification, 
and subsequent removal oversight services. 
 
The Santa Cruz City Schools District (SCCS) is requesting a quote for a survey, written specification for 
the removal of hazardous materials prior to repainting the school, as well as abatement oversight services.  
 
Scope of Work 
 
This proposal presents the services needed to successfully complete this project based on the above 
understanding.  M3 will provide the following services to successfully complete this project: 
 
Task 1 – Lead Paint Inspection 
 


• Conducted a walk-through inspection of the buildings to delineate the scope of work, and to sample 
suspect lead containing paint (LCP) from the exterior of the two buildings.   
 


• Submitted samples to a laboratory accredited under the National Institute of Standards and 
Technology's (NIST) National Voluntary Lab Accreditation Program (NVLAP) and certified by the 
State of California CDPH Environmental Lab Accreditation Program (ELAP).   
 


• Prepared and submit a written report at the completion of the project that included field floor plans 
showing sample locations, laboratory documentation for all samples collected, and 
recommendations as appropriate.   


 
Task 2 – Lead Related Specification 
 
M3 will design technical specifications for the lead related work.  The specification will identify the: LCP to 
be impacted during this project and will require compliance with regulations issued by the Federal 
Occupational Safety and Health administration (OSHA), California OSHA (Cal/POSHA), and the united 


181/336







  


 
SCCS 


Survey, Hazardous Material Specification & Oversight 
Gault Elementary – Exterior Paint 


M3 Proposal No. 182517 
 


states Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  The specification will describe the scope of work and 
procedures to be followed. 
 
Task 3 – Lead Related Monitoring 
 
M3 proposes to assist with the painting project by providing project air monitoring and observation services 
during lead related activities as follows: 


• Attend pre-bid and pre-construction meeting, as requested.   
• Review the abatement contractor’s submittals for conformance with the project specification.   
• Conduct area air monitoring during lead paint related activities at locations adjacent to the work 


areas to evaluate contractor work practices and to evaluate how well dust is being contained in the 
regulated work areas.  Lead samples will be analyzed by Flame Atomic Absorption (FAA) by and 
independent laboratory.   


• Observe the work practices and procedures of the lead contractor during lead related activities and 
monitor conformance with applicable local, state, and federal regulations.  We will complete daily 
checklists summarizing field observations and will include these in a written report at the completion 
of the project.   


• Conduct a visual clearance following lead related actives. 
• Collect a lead waste stream samples for analysis to determine if the waste is hazardous.   
• Prepare and submit a written report at the completion of the project documenting project activities 


and air monitoring results.   
Fees 
 
All services described will be provided based on the following schedules: 


 
Task 1 – Lead Paint Inspection 
 
 Fixed fee   $2,500.00 
 Inspection Total Fee  $2,500.00 
 
Task 2 – Hazardous Materials Abatement Specification 
 
 Fixed fee   $2,500.00 
 Abatement Specification Total Fee  $2,500.00 
 
Task 3 – Hazardous Materials Abatement Oversight 


 
Staff/Expense Budget Unit Total 
Principal 2 hours $205/hour $410.00 
Staff Environmental Consultants 
(Includes prep, travel, survey, report writing) 60 hours $95/hour 5,700.00 
Clerical 2 hours $65/hour 130.00 
Lead FAA air samples (3-day turnaround) 15 samples $14 each 210.00 
Lead waste stream testing (5-day turnaround) 1 sample $350 each 350.00 
Mileage, FedEx, copies, supplies, etc.   300.00 


 Estimated Oversight Fee $7,100.00 
 
 
 Estimated Project Total  $12,100.00 
 
Our estimated fee is based on the following assumptions: 


 


182/336







  


 
SCCS 


Survey, Hazardous Material Specification & Oversight 
Gault Elementary – Exterior Paint 


M3 Proposal No. 182517 
 


Abatement Oversight 
 


• M3 rates are based on 8-hour work shifts plus travel.  Extra hours for additional or longer shifts, 
meetings outside of the work shift hours, or other necessary activities will be charged according 
to the hourly rates as shown, plus overtime, upon receipt of you prior approval.  The overtime 
rate for a staff consultant is $115/hour.  Costs for M3 to conduct this project are dependent on 
the performance and timeliness of the asbestos abatement contractor. 
 


• As there is no project scope, for the purposes of this proposal it is assumed the contractor will 
complete the abatement within five 8-hour shifts.  Following the receipt of the abatement 
contractor’s schedule the estimated fee is subject to change to fit the appropriate timeline. 


 
Although a reasonable effort will be made to identify suspect materials, this does not guarantee that all 
possible sources of hazardous materials will be identified as certain building materials may be inaccessible 
or hidden by walls, flooring, partitions, etc.  During demolition or renovation operations, building materials 
may be uncovered that may be suspect.  These materials should be sampled and identified before activities 
resume.  
 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit our proposal to you.  If you have any questions please call me at 
831.649.4623. 
  
Sincerely, 
M3 Environmental Consulting LLC 


 
Chris G. Gatward 
Principal 
California CAC No. 92-0216 
 


183/336







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.8. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: M3 Environmental Consulting, LLC Contract and Proposal for 
Hazardous Materials Inspections in Building C at Santa Cruz High 
School for the Modernization Phase 2 Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the M3 Environmental Consulting, LLC contract and proposal for hazardous materials 
inspections in building C at Santa Cruz High School for the Modernization Phase 2 project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal and contract are for hazardous material inspections at Santa Cruz High School’s 
Building C for construction activities associated with the phase 2 Modernization that might 
disturb hazardous materials. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$3,290.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.01% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


184/336







185/336







186/336







187/336







188/336







 
 


9821 Blue Larkspur Lane, Suite 100 Monterey, CA 93940 T: 831-649-4623 www.M3environmental.com 
 


January 18. 2019 
 
Mr. Trevor Miller       Via email: 
Director of Facilities       trevormiller@sccs.net 
Santa Cruz City Schools   
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
831.429.3904 (p) 
 
 
Subject: Proposal for Hazardous Materials Inspections in Building C at Santa Cruz High School 


Located at 415 Walnut Avenue in Santa Cruz, California. 
 M3 Proposal No. 182416 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
M3 Environmental Consulting (M3) is pleased to present this proposal to provide a hazardous material 
(primarily asbestos and lead) inspection services for building C at Santa Cruz High School located at 415 
Walnut Avenue in Santa Cruz, California.   
 
Project Understanding 
 
M3 understands that building C is to be renovated.  The building is a single-story classroom building 
containing several classrooms and offices.  Activities will disturb suspect asbestos containing materials 
(ACM) and lead containing paint (LCP).  M3 understands that no renovation plans were submitted and that 
per your request, the roof and mechanical areas will not be sampled.  
 
The Santa Cruz City Schools District (SCCS) is requesting this quote for a survey of the building prior 
to the renovation.   
 
Scope of Work 
 
This proposal presents the services needed to successfully complete this project based on the above 
understanding.  All work will be performed by, or under the direction of a California Certified Asbestos 
Consultant (CAC).  M3 will provide the following services needed to successfully complete this project: 
 


Asbestos 
 
• Conduct a walk-through inspection of building spaces (interior and exterior) to delineate the scope 


of work, and to sample suspect ACM. 
 
• The inspection will be non-destructive in nature, in that we will not sample or inspect above hard 


ceilings, in wall cavities, layers of flooring etc.   
 


• Analyze collected samples in an American Hygiene Association-accredited laboratory using 
polarized light microscopy (PLM) according to the Environmental Protection Agency-recommended 
method.  Results of analysis will be presented as estimated percentages of asbestos by type (e.g., 
amosite, chrysotile, crocidolite), as well as types of non-asbestos fibrous materials identified. 


 
Lead in Paint  
 
• Paint chip or bulk samples will be collected from selected components throughout the building 


189/336







  


 
SCCS 


Hazardous Material Inspection 
Santa Cruz High School – Bldg C Renovation 


M3 Proposal No. 182416 
 


(interior and exterior) and analyzed to determine if they contain detectable levels of lead prior to 
activities that may impact them, as the California Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
(Cal/OSHA) lower threshold for lead in paint is anything above laboratory detection. 
 


Other Hazardous Materials 
 
• Conduct an inspection for other hazardous materials, including, polychlorinated bi-phenyls (PCB) 


light ballasts, fluorescent light tubes and mercury containing switches. 
 


• Prepare and submit a written report at the completion of the project that will include field floor plans 
showing sample locations, laboratory documentation for all samples collected, and 
recommendations as appropriate.  ACM and lead will be identified by type/component but not 
quantified.  Quantity estimates must be made by contractors submitting bids to remove these 
materials or determined during the development of bid documents.   


Fees 
 
All services described will be provided for a fee of $3,290 based on the following fee schedule: 
 


Staff/Expense Budget Unit Total 
Principal Hygienist 1 hour $225/hour $225.00 
Staff Environmental Consultant 16 hours $95/hour $1,520.00 
(includes prep, travel, survey, report writing) 
Clerical 1 hour $75/hour $75.00 
Asbestos Bulk Samples (3-day turnaround) 60 samples $14 each $840.00 
Lead paint samples (3-day turnaround) 30 samples $16 each $480.00 
FedEx, mileage, supplies, copies, etc. cost plus 15%  $150.00 


 Estimated Total Fee  $3,290.00 
 
**If rush analysis is needed, samples can be analyzed with 24-hour turnaround time for an additional 
fee of $21 per asbestos sample and $24 per sample for lead paint.   
 
Our estimated fee is based on the following assumptions: 
 


• M3 will have unfettered access to the building. 
• Some damage to building materials will be caused by inspection and sampling activities. 
• M3 will not patch sample locations. 
• This inspection does not include asbestos point counting or lead waste profiling. 


 
Limitations 
 
Although a reasonable effort will be made to identify suspect materials, this does not guarantee that all 
possible sources of hazardous materials will be identified as certain building materials may be inaccessible 
or hidden by walls, flooring, partitions, etc.  During demolition or renovation operations, building materials 
may be uncovered that may be suspect.  These materials should be sampled and identified before activities 
resume.  
 


190/336







  


 
SCCS 


Hazardous Material Inspection 
Santa Cruz High School – Bldg C Renovation 


M3 Proposal No. 182416 
 


Thank you for the opportunity to submit our proposal to you.  If you have any questions please call me at 
831.649.4623. 
  
Sincerely, 
M3 Environmental Consulting, LLC 


 
Chris G. Gatward 
Principal 
California CAC No. 92-0216 


191/336







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.9. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: M3 Environmental Consulting, LLC Contract and Proposal for 
Hazardous Materials Inspections in Building D at Santa Cruz High 
School for the Modernization Phase 2 Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the M3 Environmental Consulting, LLC contract and proposal for hazardous materials 
inspections in building D at Santa Cruz High School for the Modernization Phase 2 project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal and contract are for hazardous material inspections at Santa Cruz High School’s 
Building D for construction activities associated with the phase 2 Modernization that might 
disturb hazardous materials. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$3,290.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.01% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


192/336







193/336







194/336







195/336







196/336







 
 


9821 Blue Larkspur Lane, Suite 100 Monterey, CA 93940 T: 831-649-4623 www.M3environmental.com 
 


January 18, 2019 
 
Mr. Trevor Miller       Via email: 
Director of Facilities       trevormiller@sccs.net 
Santa Cruz City Schools   
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
831.429.3904 (p) 
 
Subject: Proposal for Hazardous Materials Inspections in Building D at Santa Cruz High School 


Located at 415 Walnut Avenue in Santa Cruz, California. 
 M3 Proposal No. 182418 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
M3 Environmental Consulting (M3) is pleased to present this proposal to provide a hazardous material 
(primarily asbestos and lead) inspection services for building D at Santa Cruz High School located at 415 
Walnut Avenue in Santa Cruz, California.   
 
Project Understanding 
 
M3 understands that building D is to be renovated.  Activities will disturb suspect asbestos containing 
materials (ACM) and lead containing paint (LCP).  M3 understands that no renovation plans were submitted 
and that per your request, the roof and mechanical areas will not be sampled.  
 
The Santa Cruz City Schools District (SCCS) is requesting this quote for a survey of the building prior 
to the renovation.   
 
Scope of Work 
 
This proposal presents the services needed to successfully complete this project based on the above 
understanding.  All work will be performed by, or under the direction of a California Certified Asbestos 
Consultant (CAC).  M3 will provide the following services needed to successfully complete this project: 
 


Asbestos 
 
• Conduct a walk-through inspection of building spaces (interior and exterior) to delineate the scope 


of work, and to sample suspect ACM. 
 
• The inspection will be non-destructive in nature, in that we will not sample or inspect above hard 


ceilings, in wall cavities, layers of flooring etc.  Per your request, ceramic tiles will not be sampled. 
 


• Analyze collected samples in an American Hygiene Association-accredited laboratory using 
polarized light microscopy (PLM) according to the Environmental Protection Agency-recommended 
method.  Results of analysis will be presented as estimated percentages of asbestos by type (e.g., 
amosite, chrysotile, crocidolite), as well as types of non-asbestos fibrous materials identified. 


 
Lead in Paint  
 
• Paint chip or bulk samples will be collected from selected components throughout the building 


(interior and exterior) and analyzed to determine if they contain detectable levels of lead prior to 
activities that may impact them, as the California Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
(Cal/OSHA) lower threshold for lead in paint is anything above laboratory detection. 


197/336







  


 
SCCS 


Hazardous Material Inspection 
Santa Cruz High School – Bldg D Renovation 


M3 Proposal No. 182418 
 


 
Other Hazardous Materials 
 
• Conduct an inspection for other hazardous materials, including, polychlorinated bi-phenyls (PCB) 


light ballasts, fluorescent light tubes and mercury containing switches. 
 


• Prepare and submit a written report at the completion of the project that will include field floor plans 
showing sample locations, laboratory documentation for all samples collected, and 
recommendations as appropriate.  ACM and lead will be identified by type/component but not 
quantified.  Quantity estimates must be made by contractors submitting bids to remove these 
materials or determined during the development of bid documents.   


 
Fees 
 
All services described will be provided for a fee of $3,290 based on the following fee schedule: 
 


Staff/Expense Budget Unit Total 
Principal Hygienist 1 hour $225/hour $225.00 
Staff Environmental Consultant 16 hours $95/hour $1,520.00 
(includes prep, travel, survey, report writing) 
Clerical 1 hour $75/hour $75.00 
Asbestos Bulk Samples (3-day turnaround) 60 samples $14 each $840.00 
Lead paint samples (3-day turnaround) 30 samples $16 each $480.00 
FedEx, mileage, supplies, copies, etc. cost plus 15%  $150.00 


 Estimated Total Fee  $3,290.00 
 
**If rush analysis is needed, samples can be analyzed with 24-hour turnaround time for an additional 
fee of $21 per asbestos sample and $24 per sample for lead paint.   
 
Our estimated fee is based on the following assumptions: 
 


• M3 will have unfettered access to the building. 
• Some damage to building materials will be caused by inspection and sampling activities. 
• M3 will not patch sample locations. 
• This inspection does not include asbestos point counting or lead waste profiling. 


 
Limitations 
 
Although a reasonable effort will be made to identify suspect materials, this does not guarantee that all 
possible sources of hazardous materials will be identified as certain building materials may be inaccessible 
or hidden by walls, flooring, partitions, etc.  During demolition or renovation operations, building materials 
may be uncovered that may be suspect.  These materials should be sampled and identified before activities 
resume.  
 
 


198/336







  


 
SCCS 


Hazardous Material Inspection 
Santa Cruz High School – Bldg D Renovation 


M3 Proposal No. 182418 
 


Thank you for the opportunity to submit our proposal to you.  If you have any questions please call me at 
831.649.4623. 
  
Sincerely, 
M3 Environmental Consulting LLC 


 
Chris G. Gatward 
Principal 
California CAC No. 92-0216 


199/336







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.10. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Ross Recreation Equipment Quote for a PVC Kick Plate Branciforte 
Small Schools Playground Relocation 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Ross Recreation Equipment quote for a PVC kick plate at Branciforte Small Schools as 
part of the playground relocation project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This quote consists of a 16” PVC kick plate, to be mounted on the underside of the new play 
structure, to prevent children from getting under the structure at Branciforte Small Schools.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$570.01, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.004% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


200/336







201/336







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  ELA Elementary Task Force Update - Revised 
      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The ELA/ELD Design team was formed in the 2017-2018 academic year to guide the decision of 
which instructional materials we would adopt for implementation in the 2019-2020 school year. 
Representing the four elementary comprehensive schools, the task force will gather 
information from all the pilot teachers to ultimately make a recommendation to the Board of 
Trustees.  
 
Our first meetings of the ELA/ELD task force were focused on reviewing data (for example, 
CAASPP test scores, MAP scores, and the number of students in Tier II interventions) and 
studying the key shifts in CC ELA and ELD instruction. 
 
In collaboration with elementary administrators and the ELA/ELD task force, we first identified 
our purpose: To guide the implementation of an articulated K-5 Tier 1 literacy program, 
including adopted instructional materials and effective instructional practices, in order to give 
ELLs and ALL students full access to and engagement in the academic demands of the CCSS. 
 
Next, we articulated the principles we would follow – 1) student learning is the first priority 2) 
meet the needs of all learners, and 3) use an inclusive and respectful process. All teachers 
across the district were invited to participate, and a group of 21 teachers and several 
administrators was formed to guide the selection process. We began meeting in Spring 2018 
and will continue to work through the adoption and implementation of an aligned elementary 
literacy program. 
 
The ELA task force leaders are collecting evidence and observations from all the pilot teachers. 
We have over 40 teachers piloting the different programs. Several teachers have piloted more 
than one program, and one teacher is piloting all three published programs. Each pilot teacher 
must completely transform their reading instruction in order to implement the program under 
consideration. It is a great service to the district to have so many teachers willing to pilot these 
different programs. 
 


202/336







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


The ELA task force is now tasked with compiling and evaluating the evidence and experiences 
from the various pilots. We will be following the protocol laid out in the California County 
Superintendents Educational Services Association (CCSECA) Adoption toolkit as follows: 


● Compile and review data  
● Determine level of support for each program 
● Discuss and cite evidence 
● Work towards consensus 
● Fall back decision-making option  


 
The task force is currently interviewing and surveying teachers, reviewing programs, and 
perhaps most importantly, looking at student work to determine the impact on student 
learning. After gathering input from all the pilot teachers and sharing the feedback, we will be 
working towards consensus.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Hourly pay for ELA/ELD Task force Members: 10 meetings of 1.5 hours each = $600 per teacher 
Total: $12,600 
Meeting each month since Spring, 2018 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
  


203/336







Elementary 
Instructional 


Materials 
Selection 
Process


ELA/ELD Design Team


204/336







1. Purpose:
What are 
we trying 
to achieve?


Purpose to 
Practice 
Protocol
(P2P)


205/336







To implement an articulated K-5 Tier 1 literacy 


program,  including instructional materials and 


effective instructional practices, in order to give 


ELLs and ALL students full access to and 


engagement in the academic demands of the CCSS.


206/336







● Student learning is priority


● Instructional materials need to satisfy the following requirements:


a. Meet the needs of ELs, low income, and SPED students in district


b. Biliteracy Program with integrated ELD


c. Non-negotiables and Alignment Criteria


d. Key Shifts in ELA/ELD/Literacy


● Inclusive process - Representation from educator groups (see below)


● Data/Evidence based decisions


● Examine existing schedules, structures, and programs to determine 


logistics


● Invest in professional development to train on current pedagogy in literacy


2. Principles: What rules must we obey to achieve our purpose?


207/336







3. Participants: Who must be included?


1. ELA/ELD leaders from each site that collectively represent 


all grade levels


2. ELA/ELD leaders from TWI & Puentes


3. Special Education Representative


4. Representative RtI Coordinators


5. Representative Administrators


208/336







Bay View DeLaveaga Gault Westlake


Kinder Linda Aragon


1st Kathy Mitchell Ziesel Saunders Tina McGlashan


2nd Karen Fitzsimmons Dora Gonzalez Katy Scowcroft


3rd Melissa Morales Tatiana Miller


4th Maritza Jimenez Dana Johnson


5th Barbara Novelli


RtI Renee Golder Charlene Oatey Raven Graham Shannon D’Antonio 


SPED Shannon McGuire Kendra Carmichael


CCSS Coach Elizabeth Lindsley Isai Balthazar Naima Leal


Admin Stacy O’Farrell


209/336







4. Process
How must we organize, distribute control, and proceed to achieve our purpose?


1. Determine Timeline


2. Communicate purpose of task to ALL teachers


3. Establish representative committee (Task Force), 


including selected teachers already piloting


210/336







4.    Support teachers in new learning


211/336







5. Prioritize importance of components of instructional materials:


a. ELA/Literacy Standards & Integrated ELD


i. Writing


ii. Foundational Skills


b. Designated ELD


c. Program Organization


d. Assessment


e. Universal Design


f. Instructional Planning and 


Teacher Support


a. English Language Development


b. 21st Century Skills


212/336







6. Pilot programs under consideration: Benchmark  Advance, 


Benchmark Workshop, and McGraw Hill Wonders, Benchmark 


Advancing Language Learning


7. Gather feedback from Pilot teachers: ELA Task force 


distributes survey, interview pilot teachers.


213/336







8. Follow decision making process:


● Compile and review data 


● Determine level of support for 
for each program


● Discuss and cite evidence


● Work towards consensus


● Fall back decision-making 
option 


214/336







● Compile and review data 


○ Plus/Delta each program


○ Pilot Teachers Feedback 
Survey


○ Evidence of Student Work


ELA/ELD Task Force meeting 2/11/19


SCIL, Pilot Teachers, ELA/ELD Task force meeting 
3/11/19


215/336







● Determine level of 
support for each program


● Discuss and cite evidence


ELA/ELD Task Force, SCIL Teams, Pilot 
Teachers March 11


Elementary PD Wednesday


Elementary Grade Level Teams


February - April
216/336







● Work towards consensus


Task Force/SCIL/Grade Level teams


ELA/ELD Task Force meeting 4/15/19


A consensus decision means:


• Each team member agrees 
he/she can support the 
publisher program ultimately 
recommended by the 
committee.


• Each team member has a 
responsibility to support the 
adoption and its 
implementation throughout 
the district.


217/336







● Fall back decision-making option 


1. I strongly agree with this publisher program and can support it.


2. I can support this publisher program. I am willing to go along with this 
choice.


3. I have concerns and cannot support this publisher program.


4. I abstain because I didn’t learn enough about this publisher program to 
have an opinion.


5. Agree that if the adoption committee is unable to reach consensus, the 
district’s Executive Committee will make the final decision.


218/336







5. Practices: What are we going to do?


● Make recommendation to board for adoption of a CCSS 


aligned Instructional materials (ELA/ELD biliteracy 


program) by Spring 2019


● Create implementation plan for ELA/ELD Instructional 


Program, 2019 - 2023: Professional Development, PLC 


focus, ongoing learning, etc.


219/336







Resources
a. ELA/ELD Framework


b. CCSESA Adoption Toolkit


c. Toolkit for Evaluating the Alignment of Instructional and 


Assessment Materials to the Common Core State 


Standards


d. Guidelines for Piloting Textbooks and Instructional 


Materials


e. Instructional Materials FAQ


220/336







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.2.1 
 
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-B61BE03545904A0286ADEBB0B2FA21A6.DOC 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Bond Oversight Committee Annual Report 
 
MEETING DATE: February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the annual Bond Oversight Committee Report. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Bill Tysseling, Chair of the Bond Oversight Committee (BOC) will present the Committee’s 
annual report for fiscal year 2017-18 to the Board of Trustees on February 6, 2019.  Annually, 
in conjunction with Education Code 15278, the Board will receive an annual report from the 
independent bond oversight committee. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 
. 
 


221/336







222/336







223/336







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Bond Projects Update 
 
MEETING DATE: February 6, 2019 
 
FROM: Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
MADI Architects will present an update on the District’s Bond Projects that they are overseeing. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
For the current fiscal year 18-19, MADI Architects fees are estimated at $1,487,239.00 funded 
by Restricted Measure A and $2,769,192.00 for Restricted Measure B bond funds. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management  
 
 
 


224/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


Measure A & B
Santa Cruz City Schools Campus Updates


FEBRUARY 6, 2019225/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


MADI


AGENDA


ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


ALTERNATIVE FAMILY EDUCATION


BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL


A


A


DE LAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOLA


BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLSA


NATURAL BRIDGESA


SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOLA


226/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BAY VIEW
ELEMENTARY


NEW CLASSROOMS


CLASSROOM MODERNIZATION


• NEW FINISHES, 


• HVAC (+COOLING), 


• DUAL PANE WINDOWS, 


• FIRE ALARM, 


• DATA, 


• TV


• ADA UPGRADES


• OTHER…


MODERNIZATION


PLAYGROUND IMPROVEMENTS


FIELD (FUTURE BOND)


NEW FIRE LINE AND HYDRANT 


BLACKTOP EXPANSION


FOR BASKETBALL


PORTABLES TO REMAIN AS


INTERIM HOUSING


PARKING LOT


EXPANSION


MODERNIZATION


PHASE 1B


(FALL 2019)


MODERNIZATION


PHASE 1A


(SUMMER 2019)


MODERNIZATION


PHASE 2B


(SUMMER 2020)


MODERNIZATION


PHASE 2A


(SUMMER 2020)


WPENS


(NON-BOND)


NEW 


KINDERGARTEN (IF 


BUDGET ALLOWS)


227/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BAY VIEW
ELEMENTARY


Bay View Elementary School - Measure B Bond Start Complete $13,961,998


Project Costs


Multi Project Overhead 7-Nov-16 7-Nov-21 $689,100


Re-roofing (complete) $925,529


New Kindergarten Bldg. & Site Work 10-Jun-19 9/31/2019 $1,587,408


New Classroom Bldg. and Site Work 1-Oct-18 23-Aug-19 $3,574,686


Modernization Phase 1 10-Jun-19 31-Dec-19 $2,684,000


Modernization Phase 2 1-Jan-20 21-Aug-20 $2,684,000


Portable Demolition & Site Work 15-Jun-20 23-Aug-20 $732,000


Card Access Security System 10-Jun-19 21-Aug-20 $190,000


Data Infrastructure Improvements 10-Jun-19 21-Aug-20 $300,000


Fire Line 10-Jun-19 24-Aug-19 $488,000


PROJECT BUDGETS


228/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BAY VIEW
ELEMENTARY


User Group Date


Site Plan Meeting - Staff meeting 5/22/2017


DROPS meeting with Principal (Yvette 
Garcia)


11/15/2017


Principal (Yvette Garcia) 12/14/2017


Teachers & Staff 1/24/2018


PTO Meeting 1/25/2018


PTO 2/1/2018


Librarian 2/7/2018


Staff Meeting 2/28/2018


Special Education Walk Through w/Principal 3/21/2018


WPENS Meeting 3/27/2018


Site Council Meeting
Principal Meeting
Principal Meeting


5/17/2018
6/12/2018
9/27/2018


Site Bond Committee Meeting 11/05/2018


Stakeholder meetings


229/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BAY VIEW
ELEMENTARY


RE-ROOFING 230/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BAY VIEW
ELEMENTARY


PLAYGROUND RESURFACING 231/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BAY VIEW
ELEMENTARY


CLASSROOMCLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM


CLASSROOM


CLASSROOM


NEW MODULAR CLASSROOM BUILDING


232/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BAY VIEW
ELEMENTARY


NEW MODULAR CLASSROOM BUILDINGS AT BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
233/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


DELAVEAGA
ELEMENTARY


NEW CLASSROOMS


PORTABLES TO REMAIN FOR 


RESOURCE PROGRAMS


PORTABLES DEMOLISHED / 


PLAYGROUND IMPROVEMENTS


RELOCATION OF CKC


NEW DROP-OFF AND


ADDITIONAL PARKING


ENLARGE CLASSROOMS


FOR HIGHER GRADES


(MOVE WALLS)


M-U EXPANSION / MUSIC


(MAY BE FUTURE BOND


MODERNIZATION


MODERNIZATION


MODERNIZATION


IMPROVE SAFETY AT 


ENTRANCE TO SCHOOL


COVERED WALKWAY /


SHADE


PLAYGROUND RESURFACING


FUTURE


FENCING


STORAGE SHED


FUTURE PARKING EXPANSION


PLAYGROUND IMPROVEMENTS


CLASSROOM MODERNIZATION


• NEW FINISHES, 


• HVAC (+COOLING), 


• DUAL PANE WINDOWS, 


• FIRE ALARM, 


• DATA, 


• TV


• ADA UPGRADES


• OTTHER…


DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CAMPUS MASTER PLAN234/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


DeLaveaga Elementary School Start Complete $14,861,844


Project Budget


Multi Project Overhead 7-Nov-16 7-Nov-21 $743,092


New Shade Structure and Parking Lot 11-Jun-18 24-Aug-18 $1,600,000


New Classrooms 1-Oct-18 23-Aug-19 $367,192


Reroofing Project 10-Jun-19 23-Aug-19 $355,439


Modernization Phase 1 10-Jun-19 31-Dec-19 $3,599,000


Modernization Phase 2 1-Jan-20 21-Aug-20 $3,599,000


Portable Demolition & Site Work 15-Jun-20 23-Aug-20 $854,000


Card Access Security System 10-Jun-19 21-Aug-20 $125,000


Data Infrastructure Improvements 10-Jun-19 21-Aug-20 $330,000


DELAVEAGA
ELEMENTARY


PROJECT BUDGETS


235/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


DELAVEAGA
ELEMENTARY


User Group Date


Site Masterplanning Meeting 4/20/2017


Site Meeting - Staff (designated) 5/10/2017


Principal Masterplanning 5/25/2018


Staff Meeting 6/5/2017


Principal (Robert Greenlee) 12/14/2017


Utilization Meeting (Robert Greenlee) 1/12/2018


Principal - Master plan (Robert Greenlee) 1/30/2018


Staff & Principal 2/13/2018


School Site Committee 2/14/2018


Librarian 3/14/2018


Site Bond Committee Meeting 5/8/2018


Site Bond Committee Meeting 9/24/2018


Stakeholder meetings


236/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


DELAVEAGA
ELEMENTARY


NEW PARKING LOT AT DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
237/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


DELAVEAGA
ELEMENTARY


CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM


FUTURE PLAYGROUND EXPANSION


NEW MODULAR CLASSROOM BUILDING 


238/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


DELAVEAGA
ELEMENTARY


NEW MODULAR CLASSROOM 
BUILDING AT DELAVEAGA 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 239/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


NATURAL
BRIDGES


NEW ARTIFICAL


TURF FIELD


GYMNASIUM 


MODERNIZATION


NEW MODULAR


RESTROOM


BUILDING


MODERNIZATION


BUILDING


MODERNIZATION


BUILDING MODERNIZATION


(TENANT IMPROVEMENTS)


• NEW LED LIGHTING


• NEW INTERIOR PAINT


• NEW EXTERIOR PAINT


• ADA UPGRADES


240/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


Natural Bridges - Measure B Bond Start Complete $5,474,728.87


Project Cost


Multi Project Overhead 7-Nov-16 7-Nov-21 $272,682.00


Campus Reroofing 12-Mar-18 31-Jun-18 $1,438,438.56


Int Gym Mod and Parking lot 18-Jun-18 20-Aug-18 $533,625.54


Ext Gym Repairs and Restroom Addition 1-Sep-18 30-Apr-19 $586,242.78


Repainting and repairs 10-Sep-18 16-Oct-18 $203,740.00


Artificial Field 15-Apr-19 23-Aug-19 $2,440,000.00


NATURAL
BRIDGES


PROJECT BUDGETS


241/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


NATURAL
BRIDGES


BEFORE


AFTER


242/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


Project Name Date Project Milestone


Campus Re-Roofing 6/15/2018 Construction Completion


Gymnasium Minor Repairs 5/16/2018 Bidding


Gymnasium Building Alterations 5/16/2018 DSA Bin Submittal Date


NATURAL
BRIDGES


BEFORE


AFTER


LIGHTING RETROFIT


243/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


NATURAL
BRIDGES


RE-ROOFING


BEFORE


AFTER
244/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


NATURAL
BRIDGES


GYMNASIUM INTERIOR245/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


CAMPUS REPAINTING


BEFORE


AFTER


NATURAL
BRIDGES


246/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


CAMPUS REPAINTING


NATURAL
BRIDGES


247/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BRANCIFORTE 
SMALL 


SCHOOLS


248/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BRANCIFORTE 
SMALL 


SCHOOLS


BUDGET


Branciforte Small Schools - Measure 
A/B Bond Start Complete $10,345,332


Modernization 
Eligibility


Project Budget


Multi-Project Overhead 7-Nov-16 7-Nov-21 $521,068.00


Relocate Playground, shelter and ramp 11-Jun-18 17-Sep-18 $740,215.00


New Modular Classroom Building 1-Oct-18 23-Aug-19 $3,452,475.00


Alternative Family Education Campus 10-Jun-19 6-Jan-20 $2,484,569.00 $675,058


Modernization Phase 1 11-Jun-18 31-Dec-18 $1,159,000.00


Modernization Phase 1 1-Jan-20 21-Aug-20 $902,800.00


Portable Demolition & Site Work 15-Jun-20 23-Aug-20 $671,000.00


Card Access Security System 10-Jun-19 21-Aug-20 $135,000.00


Data Infrastructure Improvements 10-Jun-19 21-Aug-20 $250,000.00


PROJECT BUDGETS


249/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BRANCIFORTE 
SMALL 


SCHOOLS


User Group Date


AFE Data Collection - Librarian 9/19/2017


AFE Utilization Meeting - Principal, Teachers 9/29/2017


Principal & Teachers - AFE Campus Design Meeting 10/5/2017


AFE Campus Design Meeting - Principal & Staff 10/5/2017


AFE Legacy Garden Meeting 1/19/2018


CTE Building Meeting 2/23/2018


Principals 2/23/2018


Principals 3/6/2018


Principals 3/13/2018


Principals 3/20/2018


AFE Legacy Garden Meeting 3/23/2018


Principals 4/17/2018


Principals 5/1/2018


Site Bond Committee Meeting 5/3/2018


Principals 1/8/2019


Stakeholder meetings


250/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BRANCIFORTE 
SMALL 


SCHOOLS


SPECIAL ED.


CLASSROOM


FUTURE PORTABLE DEMOLITION AND 


PLAYGROUND EXPANSION


SPECIAL ED.


CLASSROOM


MUSIC WEIGHTS ART


CLASSROOM


STORAGE STORAGE


STORAGE


STORAGE


INTERVENTION


OFFICE


OFFICE


OFFICE OFFICE


BREEZEWAY


NEW MODULAR CLASSROOM BUILDING 
251/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BRANCIFORTE 
SMALL 


SCHOOLS
NEW MODULAR CLASSROOM BUILDING AT BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS 


252/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BRANCIFORTE 
SMALL 


SCHOOLS


PLAYGROUND
RELOCATION


NEW PLAYGROUND 253/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BRANCIFORTE 
SMALL 


SCHOOLS


NEW
ADA


RAMP


COMPLETION: 
APRIL 2019 


254/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BRANCIFORTE 
SMALL 


SCHOOLS


NEW
ELEVATOR


FUTURE NEW ELEVATOR AT 
BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS


EST. CONSTRUCTION 
SUMMER 2019


255/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BRANCIFORTE 
SMALL 


SCHOOLS FIRST FLOOR SECOND FLOOR THIRD FLOOR


MODERN
-IZATION


BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS MAIN BUILDING MODERNIZATION 
256/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


BRANCIFORTE 
SMALL 


SCHOOLS


NEW 
ALTERNATIVE


FAMILY
EDUCATION


CAMPUS


RENDERING OF FUTURE CLASSROOMS AT ALTERNATIVE FAMILY EDUCATION  


257/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


SOQUEL
HIGH


258/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


SOQUEL
HIGH


NEW MARQUEEPROJECT BUDGETS


Soquel High - Measure A Bond Start Complete $34,908,502.00


Project Budget


Multi Project Overhead 7-Nov-16 7-Nov-21 $1,703,567.00


Pool 1-Mar-19 $7,502,688.90


Site Infrastructure 8-Nov-18 27-Jun-19 $3,256,100.70


New Concessions building and ramp 3-Dec-18 4-Mar-19 $1,842,438.00


Tennis Courts 15-Jun-18 24-Aug-18 $221,361.68


Modernization Phase 1: Reverse TI 3-Dec-18 5-Apr-19 $366,000.00


Modernization Phase 2: Wing 100 10-Jun-19 31-Dec-19 $6,097,267.20


Modernization Phase 3: Wing 200 1-Jan-20 31-Dec-20 $5,878,867.68


Modernization Phase 4: Wing 300 TBD TBD $3,000,000.00


Site Work 8-Jun-20 23-Aug-20 $610,000.00


Card Access Security System 10-Jun-19 21-Aug-20 $310,000.00


Data Infrastructure 10-Jun-19 21-Aug-20 $700,000.00


Fields $1,527,272.00


259/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


SOQUEL
HIGH


User group meetings Date


Principal 9/21/2017


Athletic Director - Concessions Bldg 10/17/2017


Librarian - Modernization 10/17/2017


CTE Teachers 10/24/2017


Student Facilities Meeting 1/17/2018


Principal - Science Classroom Discussion 2/5/2018


Principal/Assistant Principal 3/29/2018


Principal/Assistant Principal 4/17/2018


Site Bond Committee Meeting 5/29/2018


Principal/Assistant Principal 9/18/2018


Science Teachers 10/02/2018


Librarian 10/23/2018


Faculty Meeting 11/26/2018


Site Bond Committee Meeting 12/11/2018


OUTREACH


260/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


SOQUEL 
&


HARBOR
HIGH TENNIS COURTS AT 


HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


261/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


SOQUEL
HIGH


SITE INFRASTRUCTURE


SCOPE: 
➢ NEW FIRE LINE LOOP AND NEW HYDRANTS
➢ MAIN SWITCH BOARD REPLACEMENT


KEY DATES: 
➢ 11/15/18: PROJECT START – POTHOLING AND TESTING
➢ 12/03/19 – 12/28/19: “T” TO HYDRANT #9
➢ 12/18/19 – 01/06/20: “T” TO HYDRANT #8
➢ 12/21/18: OLD SAN JOSE RD. – TRAFFIC CONTROL
➢ 12/27/18 – 01/02/19: FIRE LINE CONNECTION IN ROAD
➢ 01/24/19 – 02/19/19: HYDRANT #7 TO HYDRANT #6
➢ 12/21/18 – 01/14/19: HYDRANT #6 TO HYDRANT #5
➢ 02/08/19 – 03/06/19: HYDRANT #5 TO HYDRANT #3
➢ 02/26/19 – 03/21/19: HYDRANT #3 TO “T”
➢ 03/13/19 – 04/05/19: SUBCON. PARKING TO “T”


➢ 06/10/19 – 6/27/19: MAIN SWITCH BOARD REPLACEMENT
➢ 06/17/19 – 6/21/19: POWER DOWN (GENERATOR?)


262/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


SOQUEL
HIGH


SITE INFRASTRUCTURE263/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


SOQUEL
HIGH


CONCESSIONS BUILDING AND RAMP


SCOPE: 
➢ NEW MODULAR CONCESSIONS BUILDING
➢ RAMP AND ADA PATHWAY REPAIRS


KEY DATES: 
➢ 12/03/18 – 03/04/19: CONCESSIONS BUILDING


264/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


SOQUEL
HIGH


NEW POOL


SCOPE: 
➢ NEW POOL


KEY DATES: 
➢ 03/01/19: Completion


265/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


SOQUEL
HIGH


MODERNIZATION
BLDG 100


FLOOR PLAN


SCOPE: 
➢ CLASSROOM MODERNIZATION
➢ ADMIN ENTRANCE REDESIGN
➢ LIBRARY REDESIGN
➢ OVERALL NEW FINISHES.


KEY DATES: 
➢ SUMMER 2019 START


266/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


SOQUEL
HIGH


MODERNIZATION
BLDG 200


SCOPE: 
➢ CLASSROOM MODERNIZATION


➢ SCIENCE 
➢ COMPUTER LABS
➢ SPECIAL EDUCATION 
➢ WORLD LANGUAGE 
➢ ENGLISH


KEY DATES: 
➢ 2020


267/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


SOQUEL
HIGH


MODERNIZATION BLDG 300 (Reverse Tenant Improvements)


FLOOR PLAN


268/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


SOQUEL
HIGH


FIRE LANE REPLACEMENT


SCOPE: 
REPLACEMENT OF EXISTING 
FIRE LANE WITH NEW WIDER 
FIRE LANE


KEY DATES: 
➢ 2019


269/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


SOQUEL
HIGH


SCOPE: 
➢ NEW FENCING
➢ ADA PATH IMRPOVEMENTS


AGRICULTURE
270/336







MADI
ARCHITECTS + PLANNERS


THANK YOU!


FEBRUARY 06, 2019271/336







 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.3 
1DODD_ATJEUB-899DA29D83F94C9FA50FCB1A9C303C19 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Preliminary Enrollment Projections 
 


MEETING DATE: February 6, 2019 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


BACKGROUND: 
Staff has worked with DecisionInsite, a demography service, to research and develop both 
short and long term enrollment projections. The attached report outlines projections based on 
current district and feeder district data, housing development plans, bond projects and other 
factors. District staff will continue to work with DecisionInsite to audit and monitor these 
projections to inform our future budget and facilities planning. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$11,625.00 annually - Capital Facilities Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goal and its metrics: 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and effective and efficient management. 
 


 


 


272/336







Santa Cruz City Schools


Board Presentation


February 6, 2019


2019-20 Enrollment 


Projections


273/336







SCCS District Information


• SCCS has partnered with DecisionInsite to do a 


demographic study of the school district and make 


both short and long term enrollment projections


• This work is critical for planning for revenue, staffing 


and bond projects


• This initial study reflects current SCCS data, feeder 


district data and plans for new housing


274/336







Prelim Report - Submitted 10/04/2018


Certified Report - Submitted 12/04/18


PK TK K 1       2       3      4       5       6       


 18-19 


Elem 


CBEDS 


 Cert. 


17-18 


Elem. 


CBEDS 


 Yr. to Yr. 


Diff. 7       8       9       10     11    12    


 18-19 Sec. 


CBEDS 


 Cert. 17-


18 Sec. 


CBEDS 


 Yr. to 


Yr. Diff. 


 2018-19 


TOTALS 


 Certified 


2017-18 


TOTALS 


Bay View 39 14 54    59    71    69   97    78    481          473     8          481         473          8          


DeLaveaga 16 99    86    79    72   100  76    528          550     (22)       528         550          (22)       


Gault 13 42    66    40    73   45    63    342          375     (33)       342         375          (33)       


Westlake 16 74    91    79    87   96    86    529          555     (26)       529         555          (26)       


Elementary total 39 59 269 302  269  301 338  303 1,880       1,953 (73)       1,880      1,953       (73)       


Branciforte Middle 155 155          164     (9)         152  158  310           318      (8)         465         482          (17)       


Mission Hill Middle 186 186          221     (35)       238  184  422           394      28        608         615          (7)         


Middle School total 341 341          385     (44)       390  342  732           712      20        1,073      1,097       (24)       


-           


Harbor High 217  254 192 179 842           926      (84)       842         926          (84)       


Santa Cruz High 323  276 275 268 1,142        1,062   80        1,142      1,062       80        


Soquel High 343  314 247 269 1,173        1,154   19        1,173      1,154       19        


High School Total 883  844 714 716 3,157        3,142   15        3,157      3,142       15        


-           


Costanoa 2      9      39   36   86             89        (3)         86           89             (3)         


Ark IS 3      7      18   30   58             61        (3)         58           61             (3)         


AFE 2      3      4      1      7      5      10    32            38       (6)         10    19    10    11    18   11   79             90        (11)       111         128          (17)       


Monarch 24    22    20    26   22    27    141          144     (3)         141         144          (3)         


Small Schools Total 26    25    24    27   29    32    10    173          182     (9)         10    19    15    27    75   77   223           240      (17)       396         422          (26)       


District total 39 295 327  293  328 367  335 351 2,394       2,520 (126)     400  361  898  871 789 793 4,112        4,094   18        6,506      6,614       (108)    


Elementary Secondary


Santa Cruz City Schools


2018-19 Enrollment Report 
Preliminary Enrollment Count


CBEDS Information Day - 10/03/2018


275/336







“CONSERVATIVE”


PROJECTIONS


276/336







Bayview ES


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


TransK 11 12 14 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 12 12 12 12


K 84 74 63 55 57 58 59 61 61 59 59 58 57 56


1 99 68 70 59 52 54 55 57 57 56 56 55 54 53


2 81 98 70 71 59 52 56 57 57 57 57 56 55 54


3 77 80 95 67 71 60 54 57 57 57 58 57 56 55


4 110 73 75 95 65 69 58 53 56 56 57 57 56 55


5 90 112 72 77 95 65 70 59 53 56 56 56 57 56


Subtotals: 552 517 459 437 412 371 365 357 354 354 355 351 347 341


Pct Chg: -6.3% -11.2% -4.8% -5.7% -10% -1.6% -2.2% -0.8% 0% 0.3% -1.1% -1.1% -1.7%


SDC: 0 5 10 6 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5


Totals: 552 522 469 443 418 376 370 362 359 359 360 356 352 346


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -552 -522 -469 -443 -418 -376 -370 -362 -359 -359 -360 -356 -352 -346


Delaveaga ES


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


TransK 21 18 19 16 16 16 16 16 16 15 15 15 15 14


K 100 96 93 99 96 98 99 101 100 99 98 96 94 92


1 115 93 84 86 88 88 90 91 92 91 90 88 87 85


2 93 108 85 79 83 86 86 88 90 91 90 88 87 85


3 92 87 99 71 74 79 82 83 86 88 89 87 86 84


4 108 91 84 100 73 78 82 86 84 87 90 90 88 87


5 106 107 85 76 96 71 76 80 85 83 86 88 88 87


Subtotals: 635 600 549 527 526 516 531 545 553 554 558 552 545 534


Pct Chg: -5.5% -8.5% -4% -0.2% -1.9% 2.9% 2.6% 1.5% 0.2% 0.7% -1.1% -1.3% -2%


SDC: 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Totals: 637 603 549 527 526 516 531 545 553 554 558 552 545 534


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -637 -603 -549 -527 -526 -516 -531 -545 -553 -554 -558 -552 -545 -534


“Conservative” Projections


277/336







Gault ES


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


TransK 16 14 6 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 12 12 12 12


K 79 48 66 42 44 44 44 44 44 43 43 42 41 40


1 53 77 45 66 39 42 41 42 42 42 41 40 39 39


2 64 53 75 40 62 37 40 40 41 41 41 40 39 38


3 71 63 57 73 38 60 36 39 40 41 41 40 39 38


4 64 72 61 45 64 35 55 33 38 38 39 39 38 37


5 63 61 62 63 45 64 35 55 34 38 38 39 39 38


Subtotals: 410 388 372 342 305 295 264 266 252 256 255 252 247 242


Pct Chg: -5.4% -4.1% -8.1% -10.8% -3.3% -10.5% 0.8% -5.3% 1.6% -0.4% -1.2% -2% -2%


SDC: 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Totals: 411 389 372 342 305 295 264 266 252 256 255 252 247 242


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -411 -389 -372 -342 -305 -295 -264 -266 -252 -256 -255 -252 -247 -242


Monarch El Alt


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


TransK 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


K 14 18 24 24 24 24 25 25 25 25 24 24 24 23


1 19 19 22 22 23 23 23 24 24 24 23 23 23 22


2 21 22 23 20 21 22 23 23 24 24 23 23 23 22


3 19 21 22 26 19 20 21 22 23 23 23 23 23 22


4 17 22 28 22 26 19 20 22 22 23 23 23 23 22


5 10 17 25 27 22 25 19 20 22 22 23 23 23 22


6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Subtotals: 100 123 144 141 135 133 131 136 140 141 139 139 139 133


Pct Chg: 23% 17.1% -2.1% -4.3% -1.5% -1.5% 3.8% 2.9% 0.7% -1.4% 0% 0% -4.3%


SDC: 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Totals: 100 124 144 141 135 133 131 136 140 141 139 139 139 133


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -100 -124 -144 -141 -135 -133 -131 -136 -140 -141 -139 -139 -139 -133


“Conservative” Projections


278/336







Westlake ES


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


TransK 18 18 18 14 14 14 14 14 14 13 13 13 13 13


K 73 79 85 76 75 74 78 83 84 82 81 80 78 77


1 93 76 74 86 71 72 75 79 81 79 78 77 76 74


2 90 92 87 79 86 72 77 80 81 81 80 78 77 76


3 110 90 90 84 76 84 74 78 80 80 80 78 77 76


4 97 104 83 94 82 74 86 76 79 80 79 79 78 76


5 94 98 103 83 91 80 75 87 77 78 78 78 78 76


Subtotals: 575 557 540 516 495 470 479 497 496 493 489 483 477 468


Pct Chg: -3.1% -3.1% -4.4% -4.1% -5.1% 1.9% 3.8% -0.2% -0.6% -0.8% -1.2% -1.2% -1.9%


SDC: 16 12 13 13 12 12 12 13 13 12 12 12 12 12


Totals: 591 569 553 529 507 482 491 510 509 505 501 495 489 480


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -591 -569 -553 -529 -507 -482 -491 -510 -509 -505 -501 -495 -489 -480


Branciforte MS


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


6 174 167 163 153 152 160 146 121 147 134 134 138 141 141


7 172 160 159 150 142 144 151 139 121 147 134 134 137 140


8 155 169 153 152 146 139 142 150 138 121 146 133 133 136


Subtotals: 501 496 475 455 440 443 439 410 406 402 414 405 411 417


Pct Chg: -1% -4.2% -4.2% -3.3% 0.7% -0.9% -6.6% -1% -1% 3% -2.2% 1.5% 1.5%


SDC: 17 13 5 9 9 9 9 8 8 8 8 8 8 8


Totals: 518 509 480 464 449 452 448 418 414 410 422 413 419 425


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -518 -509 -480 -464 -449 -452 -448 -418 -414 -410 -422 -413 -419 -425


“Conservative” Projections


279/336







Mission Hill MS


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


6 221 186 221 182 163 176 159 159 156 138 144 144 143 143


7 198 219 176 226 181 163 178 162 179 184 165 170 170 170


8 218 189 218 181 218 174 160 175 160 176 180 162 166 167


Subtotals: 637 594 615 589 562 513 497 496 495 498 489 476 479 480


Pct Chg: -6.8% 3.5% -4.2% -4.6% -8.7% -3.1% -0.2% -0.2% 0.6% -1.8% -2.7% 0.6% 0.2%


SDC: 0 0 0 17 16 15 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14


Totals: 637 594 615 606 578 528 511 510 509 512 503 490 493 494


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -637 -594 -615 -606 -578 -528 -511 -510 -509 -512 -503 -490 -493 -494


Costanoa Continuation High School


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


9 0 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 1


10 3 4 17 11 7 6 7 6 6 6 6 6 6 6


11 35 24 22 42 33 27 27 27 26 26 26 24 25 26


12 54 51 49 37 51 45 39 38 39 38 36 38 35 36


Subtotals: 92 80 90 92 93 80 75 73 73 71 70 69 67 69


Pct Chg: -13% 12.5% 2.2% 1.1% -14% -6.2% -2.7% 0% -2.7% -1.4% -1.4% -2.9% 3%


SDC: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Totals: 92 80 90 92 93 80 75 73 73 71 70 69 67 69


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -92 -80 -90 -92 -93 -80 -75 -73 -73 -71 -70 -69 -67 -69


“Conservative” Projections


280/336







Harbor High School


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


9 207 232 257 213 224 223 211 205 211 194 183 203 194 189


10 237 197 226 247 200 211 210 200 198 204 188 177 196 187


11 201 230 200 183 225 184 196 194 186 185 191 175 165 182


12 259 198 228 166 173 212 172 183 186 178 177 182 167 158


Subtotals: 904 857 911 809 822 830 789 782 781 761 739 737 722 716


Pct Chg: -5.2% 6.3% -11.2% 1.6% 1% -4.9% -0.9% -0.1% -2.6% -2.9% -0.3% -2% -0.8%


SDC: 54 46 15 31 32 33 32 31 31 31 30 30 29 29


Totals: 958 903 926 840 854 863 821 813 812 792 769 767 751 745


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -958 -903 -926 -840 -854 -863 -821 -813 -812 -792 -769 -767 -751 -745


Santa Cruz High


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


9 274 286 274 318 259 296 272 255 271 248 249 264 239 244


10 267 266 286 271 309 252 291 268 252 266 244 245 258 235


11 232 244 258 268 255 290 245 280 262 246 260 238 238 252


12 217 214 243 262 256 245 281 237 274 256 240 254 232 233


Subtotals: 990 1010 1061 1119 1079 1083 1089 1040 1059 1016 993 1001 967 964


Pct Chg: 2% 5% 5.5% -3.6% 0.4% 0.6% -4.5% 1.8% -4.1% -2.3% 0.8% -3.4% -0.3%


SDC: 15 15 0 20 19 19 20 19 19 18 18 18 17 17


Totals: 1005 1025 1061 1139 1098 1102 1109 1059 1078 1034 1011 1019 984 981


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -1005 -1025 -1061 -1139 -1098 -1102 -1109 -1059 -1078 -1034 -1011 -1019 -984 -981


“Conservative” Projections


281/336







Soquel High School


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


9 346 299 351 334 321 318 332 294 309 287 341 341 329 315


10 259 334 286 308 323 310 307 321 288 304 282 334 334 323


11 249 234 296 243 280 292 282 279 302 272 286 265 313 313


12 216 241 217 264 230 265 276 267 269 291 262 276 256 301


Subtotals: 1070 1108 1150 1149 1154 1185 1197 1161 1168 1154 1171 1216 1232 1252


Pct Chg: 3.6% 3.8% -0.1% 0.4% 2.7% 1% -3% 0.6% -1.2% 1.5% 3.8% 1.3% 1.6%


SDC: 8 5 0 19 19 20 20 20 20 19 20 20 21 21


Totals: 1078 1113 1150 1168 1173 1205 1217 1181 1188 1173 1191 1236 1253 1273


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -1078 -1113 -1150 -1168 -1173 -1205 -1217 -1181 -1188 -1173 -1191 -1236 -1253 -1273


Totals


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


K 350 315 331 296 296 298 305 314 314 308 305 300 294 288


1 379 333 295 319 273 279 284 293 296 292 288 283 279 273


2 349 373 340 289 311 269 282 288 293 294 291 285 281 275


3 369 341 363 321 278 303 267 279 286 289 291 285 281 275


4 396 362 331 356 310 275 301 270 279 284 288 288 283 277


5 363 395 347 326 349 305 275 301 271 277 281 284 285 279


6 395 353 384 335 315 336 305 280 303 272 278 282 284 284


7 370 379 335 376 323 307 329 301 300 331 299 304 307 310


8 373 358 371 333 364 313 302 325 298 297 326 295 299 303


9 827 818 884 867 806 839 817 756 793 730 775 809 763 749


10 766 801 815 837 839 779 815 795 744 780 720 762 794 751


11 717 732 776 736 793 793 750 780 776 729 763 702 741 773


12 746 704 737 729 710 767 768 725 768 763 715 750 690 728


TransK 66 66 57 56 56 56 56 56 56 54 52 52 52 51


Subtotals: 6466 6330 6366 6176 6023 5919 5856 5763 5777 5700 5672 5681 5633 5616


Pct Chg: -2.1% 0.6% -3% -2.5% -1.7% -1.1% -1.6% 0.2% -1.3% -0.5% 0.2% -0.8% -0.3%


SDC: 113 101 43 115 114 113 112 109 110 108 107 107 106 106


Totals: 6579 6431 6409 6291 6137 6032 5968 5872 5887 5808 5779 5788 5739 5722


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -6579 -6431 -6409 -6291 -6137 -6032 -5968 -5872 -5887 -5808 -5779 -5788 -5739 -5722


“Conservative” Projections


282/336







“MODERATE”


PROJECTIONS


283/336







Bayview ES


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


TransK 11 12 14 13 13 13 14 14 14 14 14 13 13 13


K 84 74 63 55 56 56 58 61 60 59 59 58 58 57


1 99 68 70 59 52 53 55 57 57 56 56 55 55 54


2 81 98 70 71 60 53 55 57 57 57 56 56 55 55


3 77 80 95 67 72 61 55 57 57 57 57 56 56 55


4 110 73 75 95 66 71 60 56 57 56 56 56 55 55


5 90 112 72 77 96 67 73 62 56 57 56 56 56 56


Subtotals: 552 517 459 437 415 374 370 364 358 356 354 350 348 345


Pct Chg: -6.3% -11.2% -4.8% -5% -9.9% -1.1% -1.6% -1.6% -0.6% -0.6% -1.1% -0.6% -0.9%


SDC: 0 5 10 6 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5


Totals: 552 522 469 443 421 379 375 369 363 361 359 355 353 350


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -552 -522 -469 -443 -421 -379 -375 -369 -363 -361 -359 -355 -353 -350


Delaveaga ES


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


TransK 21 18 19 16 16 17 17 17 17 17 17 16 16 16


K 100 96 93 99 100 103 106 107 106 106 105 105 104 103


1 115 93 84 86 91 94 97 99 99 100 99 98 97 96


2 93 108 85 79 83 91 93 96 98 99 98 97 96 95


3 92 87 99 71 75 81 88 90 93 96 97 96 95 94


4 108 91 84 100 74 80 85 93 92 96 98 98 98 97


5 106 107 85 76 98 74 80 85 92 92 95 98 98 97


Subtotals: 635 600 549 527 537 540 566 587 597 606 609 608 604 598


Pct Chg: -5.5% -8.5% -4% 1.9% 0.6% 4.8% 3.7% 1.7% 1.5% 0.5% -0.2% -0.7% -1%


SDC: 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Totals: 637 603 549 527 537 540 566 587 597 606 609 608 604 598


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -637 -603 -549 -527 -537 -540 -566 -587 -597 -606 -609 -608 -604 -598


“Moderate” Projections


284/336







Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


TransK 16 14 6 13 13 13 14 14 14 14 14 13 13 13


K 79 48 66 42 49 50 50 51 51 51 50 50 49 49


1 53 77 45 66 40 47 48 49 49 49 48 48 47 47


2 64 53 75 40 63 38 44 46 48 48 48 47 47 46


3 71 63 57 73 38 61 37 44 45 47 47 47 46 46


4 64 72 61 45 67 37 58 36 42 44 46 46 45 45


5 63 61 62 63 45 67 37 58 36 42 44 45 45 45


Subtotals: 410 388 372 342 315 313 288 298 285 295 297 296 292 291


Pct Chg: -5.4% -4.1% -8.1% -7.9% -0.6% -8% 3.5% -4.4% 3.5% 0.7% -0.3% -1.4% -0.3%


SDC: 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Totals: 411 389 372 342 315 313 288 298 285 295 297 296 292 291


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -411 -389 -372 -342 -315 -313 -288 -298 -285 -295 -297 -296 -292 -291


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


TransK 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


K 14 18 24 24 25 26 27 27 27 27 27 26 26 26


1 19 19 22 22 23 24 25 26 26 26 26 25 25 25


2 21 22 23 20 21 23 24 25 25 26 25 25 25 25


3 19 21 22 26 19 21 22 24 24 25 25 25 25 24


4 17 22 28 22 27 20 21 23 24 25 25 25 25 25


5 10 17 25 27 22 27 20 21 23 24 25 25 25 25


6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Subtotals: 100 123 144 141 137 141 139 146 149 153 153 151 151 150


Pct Chg: 23% 17.1% -2.1% -2.8% 2.9% -1.4% 5% 2.1% 2.7% 0% -1.3% 0% -0.7%


SDC: 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Totals: 100 124 144 141 137 141 139 146 149 153 153 151 151 150


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -100 -124 -144 -141 -137 -141 -139 -146 -149 -153 -153 -151 -151 -150


Gault ES


Monarch El Alt


“Moderate” Projections


285/336







Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


TransK 18 18 18 14 14 15 15 15 15 15 15 14 14 14


K 73 79 85 76 82 83 90 94 93 93 92 91 90 90


1 93 76 74 86 73 80 87 91 91 90 90 89 88 87


2 90 92 87 79 88 75 88 92 92 92 91 90 90 89


3 110 90 90 84 77 86 80 90 91 91 91 90 89 88


4 97 104 83 94 83 76 91 83 89 91 90 90 89 89


5 94 98 103 83 94 83 81 95 83 89 91 90 90 89


Subtotals: 575 557 540 516 511 498 532 560 554 561 560 554 550 546


Pct Chg: -3.1% -3.1% -4.4% -1% -2.5% 6.8% 5.3% -1.1% 1.3% -0.2% -1.1% -0.7% -0.7%


SDC: 16 12 13 13 13 13 13 14 14 14 14 14 14 14


Totals: 591 569 553 529 524 511 545 574 568 575 574 568 564 560


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -591 -569 -553 -529 -524 -511 -545 -574 -568 -575 -574 -568 -564 -560


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


6 174 167 163 153 160 171 161 134 162 148 152 158 162 162


7 172 160 159 150 144 154 164 154 135 164 149 153 159 162


8 155 169 153 152 146 142 152 163 153 135 162 148 152 158


Subtotals: 501 496 475 455 450 467 477 451 450 447 463 459 473 482


Pct Chg: -1% -4.2% -4.2% -1.1% 3.8% 2.1% -5.5% -0.2% -0.7% 3.6% -0.9% 3.1% 1.9%


SDC: 17 13 5 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 10


Totals: 518 509 480 464 459 476 486 460 459 456 472 468 482 492


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -518 -509 -480 -464 -459 -476 -486 -460 -459 -456 -472 -468 -482 -492


Westlake ES


Branciforte MS


“Moderate” Projections


286/336







Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


6 221 186 221 182 167 185 172 173 169 150 159 160 160 160


7 198 219 176 226 184 170 192 177 195 202 182 190 192 191


8 218 189 218 181 220 178 170 190 174 192 198 179 187 189


Subtotals: 637 594 615 589 571 533 534 540 538 544 539 529 539 540


Pct Chg: -6.8% 3.5% -4.2% -3.1% -6.7% 0.2% 1.1% -0.4% 1.1% -0.9% -1.9% 1.9% 0.2%


SDC: 0 0 0 17 16 15 15 16 16 16 16 15 16 16


Totals: 637 594 615 606 587 548 549 556 554 560 555 544 555 556


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -637 -594 -615 -606 -587 -548 -549 -556 -554 -560 -555 -544 -555 -556


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


9 0 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 2 1 1


10 3 4 17 11 7 6 7 7 7 7 6 6 7 6


11 35 24 22 42 33 28 28 28 28 27 28 26 27 29


12 54 51 49 37 51 45 39 39 40 40 38 40 37 39


Subtotals: 92 80 90 92 93 81 76 76 77 75 74 74 72 75


Pct Chg: -13% 12.5% 2.2% 1.1% -12.9% -6.2% 0% 1.3% -2.6% -1.3% 0% -2.7% 4.2%


SDC: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Totals: 92 80 90 92 93 81 76 76 77 75 74 74 72 75


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -92 -80 -90 -92 -93 -81 -76 -76 -77 -75 -74 -74 -72 -75


Mission Hill MS


Costanoa Continuation High School


“Moderate” Projections


287/336







Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


9 207 232 257 213 226 227 218 213 222 207 194 218 212 214


10 237 197 226 247 203 217 216 209 207 216 201 193 217 211


11 201 230 200 183 228 189 204 203 195 194 201 189 182 206


12 259 198 228 166 174 216 178 191 195 188 185 193 182 174


Subtotals: 904 857 911 809 831 849 816 816 819 805 781 793 793 805


Pct Chg: -5.2% 6.3% -11.2% 2.7% 2.2% -3.9% 0% 0.4% -1.7% -3% 1.5% 0% 1.5%


SDC: 54 46 15 31 33 34 33 33 33 32 31 32 32 32


Totals: 958 903 926 840 864 883 849 849 852 837 812 825 825 837


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -958 -903 -926 -840 -864 -883 -849 -849 -852 -837 -812 -825 -825 -837


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


9 274 286 274 318 263 302 282 268 288 268 269 288 261 274


10 267 266 286 271 312 259 302 281 265 285 270 273 292 266


11 232 244 258 268 257 297 255 293 274 258 277 263 267 286


12 217 214 243 262 257 248 288 248 287 271 255 273 262 266


Subtotals: 990 1010 1061 1119 1089 1106 1127 1090 1114 1082 1071 1097 1082 1092


Pct Chg: 2% 5% 5.5% -2.7% 1.6% 1.9% -3.3% 2.2% -2.9% -1% 2.4% -1.4% 0.9%


SDC: 15 15 0 20 20 20 20 20 20 19 19 20 19 20


Totals: 1005 1025 1061 1139 1109 1126 1147 1110 1134 1101 1090 1117 1101 1112


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -1005 -1025 -1061 -1139 -1109 -1126 -1147 -1110 -1134 -1101 -1090 -1117 -1101 -1112


Harbor High School


Santa Cruz High


“Moderate” Projections


288/336







Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


9 346 299 351 334 327 324 343 307 325 302 359 363 357 353


10 259 334 286 308 326 319 316 335 302 321 298 354 360 355


11 249 234 296 243 281 296 291 289 316 286 299 278 329 336


12 216 241 217 264 231 268 281 276 279 305 271 283 264 312


Subtotals: 1070 1108 1150 1149 1165 1207 1231 1207 1222 1214 1227 1278 1310 1356


Pct Chg: 3.6% 3.8% -0.1% 1.4% 3.6% 2% -1.9% 1.2% -0.7% 1.1% 4.2% 2.5% 3.5%


SDC: 8 5 0 19 19 20 21 20 21 20 21 22 22 23


Totals: 1078 1113 1150 1168 1184 1227 1252 1227 1243 1234 1248 1300 1332 1379


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -1078 -1113 -1150 -1168 -1184 -1227 -1252 -1227 -1243 -1234 -1248 -1300 -1332 -1379


Grade 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


K 350 315 331 296 312 318 331 340 337 336 333 330 327 325


1 379 333 295 319 279 298 312 322 322 321 319 315 312 309


2 349 373 340 289 315 280 304 316 320 322 318 315 313 310


3 369 341 363 321 281 310 282 305 310 316 317 314 311 307


4 396 362 331 356 317 284 315 291 304 312 315 315 312 311


5 363 395 347 326 355 318 291 321 290 304 311 314 314 312


6 395 353 384 335 327 356 333 307 331 298 311 318 322 322


7 370 379 335 376 328 324 356 331 330 366 331 343 351 353


8 373 358 371 333 366 320 322 353 327 327 360 327 339 347


9 827 818 884 867 818 855 845 790 837 778 824 871 831 842


10 766 801 815 837 848 801 841 832 781 829 775 826 876 838


11 717 732 776 736 799 810 778 813 813 765 805 756 805 857


12 746 704 737 729 713 777 786 754 801 804 749 789 745 791


TransK 66 66 57 56 56 58 60 60 60 60 60 56 56 56


Subtotals: 6466 6330 6366 6176 6114 6109 6156 6135 6163 6138 6128 6189 6214 6280


Pct Chg: -2.1% 0.6% -3% -1% -0.1% 0.8% -0.3% 0.5% -0.4% -0.2% 1% 0.4% 1.1%


SDC: 113 101 43 115 116 116 117 116 117 116 115 116 117 118


Totals: 6579 6431 6409 6291 6230 6225 6273 6251 6280 6254 6243 6305 6331 6398


Capacity: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Open Seats: -6579 -6431 -6409 -6291 -6230 -6225 -6273 -6251 -6280 -6254 -6243 -6305 -6331 -6398


Soquel High School


Totals


“Moderate” Projections


289/336







Next Steps


• Staff will continue to work with 


DecisionInsite to update information


• Staff will calculate and send staffing 


projections to sites


• Staff will update budget information for 


the 2019-20 year


290/336







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.2.4 
 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Investment Report for the Quarter Ending 12/31/18  
 
MEETING DATE: February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the 2nd Quarter Investment Report for 2018-19. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
SB564, effective January 1, 1996, requires local governments in California, including school 
districts, to make quarterly reports to the Governing Board on the investments of the agency. 
 
District cash for all funds is on deposit with and is invested by the Santa Cruz County Auditor-
Controller.  The report of interest rates for the period 7/1/18 through 12/31/18 is attached.  
The Quarterly Investment Report from the Santa Cruz County Treasurer's Office is an insert to 
the Board agenda book.  
 
The quarterly interest rate that applies to all funds has been: 
 


   1st Q 2nd Q 3rd Q 4th Q   


  2012-13 0.398% 0.374% 0.317% 0.293%   


  2013-14 0.324% 0.334% 0.384% 0.396%   


  2014-15 0.409% 0.425% 0.498% 0.517%   


  2015-16 0.623% 0.585% 0.676% 0.723%   


  2016-17 0.777% 0.764% 0.912% 0.965%   


  2017-18 0.977% 1.081% 1.307% 1.456%   


  2018-19 1.610% 1.863% - -   


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The table above shows the interest rates in all funds since 2012-13. The interest earned year to 
date through the 2nd Quarter of 2018-19 was $643,706.00. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


291/336







292/336







293/336







294/336







295/336







296/336







297/336







298/336







299/336







300/336







301/336







302/336







303/336







304/336







305/336







306/336







307/336







308/336







309/336







310/336







311/336







312/336







313/336







314/336







315/336







316/336







317/336







318/336







319/336







320/336







321/336







322/336







323/336







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


  


  
AGENDA ITEM:                    Public Hearing Regarding Potential Composition of Trustee Areas 


Prior to Drawing of Maps 


  
MEETING DATE:                   February 6, 2019 


  
FROM:                                  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
THROUGH:                           Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Conduct the public hearing regarding the potential composition of Trustee Areas prior to the 
drawing of maps. 
  
  
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Education Code 35012, the District’s Board of Education is currently elected under 
an “at-large” election system, where Trustees are elected by voters of the entire District. 
Trustees are elected in even-numbered years and serve staggered, four-year terms, such that 
the next election for two Trustee seats is scheduled for November 20, 2022.  
 
On January 16, 2019, the Board adopted Resolution 14-18-19, declaring its intent to transition 
from at-large to  by-Trustee area Board elections, where each Board member must reside 
within the designated Trustee area boundary, and is elected only by the voters in that Trustee 
area. 
 
The District’s demographers, the National Demographics Corporation, will present information 
on the process and criteria for drawing the Trustee-area map creation process, pursuant to 
Elections Code section 10010, subdivision (a)(1). 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 


  
  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
  
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


324/336







01.30.2019 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 


POTENTIAL COMPOSITION OF 
TRUSTEE AREAS PRIOR TO  


DRAWING OF MAPS 


DATE: 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2019 


TIME: 
7:00 P.M. 


LOCATION: 
SCCS BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 


Santa Cruz County Office of Education 
Board Room 


400 Encinal St. Santa Cruz 


The purpose of the hearing is to provide a public forum for community input regarding 
the potential composition of Trustee Areas prior to the drawing of maps. 


You are invited to attend. 


325/336







01.30.2019 


AVISO DE AUDIENCIA PUBLICA 


COMPOSICIÓN POTENCIAL 
DE LAS ÁREAS DEL 


FIDEICOMISO ANTES DEL 
DIBUJO DE MAPAS 


FECHA: 
MIERCOLES, FEBRERO 6, 2019 


HORA: 
7:00 P.M. 


LUGAR: 
JUNTA DE LA MESA DIRECTIVA DE SCCS 


Oficina de educacion del condado de Santa Cruz


400 Encinal St. Santa Cruz 


El propósito de la audiencia es proporcionar un foro público para la opinión de la 
comunidad sobre la posible composición de las Áreas de Fideicomisarios antes de 


dibujar los mapas. Usted está invitado a asistir.


326/336







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Settlement Agreement – California Voting Rights Act 
 
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Settlement Agreement and general release of claims related to the California 
Voting Rights Act (CRVA) matter. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Education Code section 35012, the Santa Cruz City Schools’ Board of Education is 
currently elected under a modified “at-large” election system.   
 
On January 16, 2019, the Board adopted Resolution 14-18-19, declaring its intent to transition 
from at-large to by-Trustee Area Board elections, where each Board member must reside 
within the designated Trustee area boundary, and is elected only by the voters in that Trustee 
area. 
 
Pursuant to Elections Code 10010, subdivision (e)(3)(C) and subdivision (e)(3)(B), parties may 
extend the time period for a total of 180 days to provide the Board additional time to conduct 
public outreach and encourage and receive public input, while composition of Trustee Area 
maps are drafted by the National Demographics Corporation. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Legal fees, demographer fees and staff hours to be determined; funding source LCFF Base 
(Unrestricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


327/336







328/336







329/336







330/336







331/336







332/336







333/336







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Board Policy 3515: Campus Security 
      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the new Board Policy 3515: Campus Security as submitted for first and possible final 
reading.   


 
BACKGROUND: 
The Governing Board is committed to providing a school environment that promotes the safety 
of students, employees, and visitors to school grounds. The Board also recognizes the 
importance of protecting district property, facilities, and equipment from vandalism and theft. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


334/336







CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
Campus Security 
 
BP 3515  
Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 
The Governing Board is committed to providing a school environment that promotes the safety 
of students, employees, and visitors to school grounds. The Board also recognizes the 
importance of protecting district property, facilities, and equipment from vandalism and theft. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop campus security procedures which are consistent 
with the goals and objectives of the district's comprehensive safety plan and site-level safety 
plans. Such procedures shall be regularly reviewed to reflect changed circumstances and to 
assess their effectiveness in achieving safe school objectives. 
 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
 
Surveillance Systems  
 
The Board believes that reasonable use of surveillance cameras will help the district achieve its 
goals for campus security. Cameras shall not be placed in areas where students, staff, or 
community members have a reasonable expectation of privacy. Any audio capability on the 
district's surveillance equipment shall be configured so that sounds are not recorded.   
 
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 
(cf. 5145.12 - Search and Seizure) 
 
Prior to the operation of the surveillance system, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure 
that signs are posted at conspicuous locations at affected school buildings and grounds. These 
signs shall inform students, staff, and visitors that surveillance may occur and shall state 
whether the district's system is actively monitored by school personnel. The Superintendent or 
designee shall also provide prior written notice to students and parents/guardians about the 
district's surveillance system, including the locations where surveillance may occur, explaining 
that the recordings may be used in disciplinary proceedings, and that matters captured by the 
camera may be referred to local law enforcement, as appropriate. 
 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
 
To the extent that any images from the district's surveillance system create a student or 
personnel record, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the images are accessed, 
retained, and disclosed in accordance with law, Board policy, administrative regulation, and any 
applicable collective bargaining agreements. 


335/336







 
(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
32020  Access gates 
32211  Threatened disruption or interference with classes 
32280-32288  School safety plans 
35160  Authority of governing boards  
35160.1  Broad authority of school districts  
38000-38005  Security patrols 
49050-49051  Searches by school employees 
49060-49079  Student records 
PENAL CODE 
469  Unauthorized making, duplicating or possession of key to public building 
626-626.10  Disruption of schools 
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION  
Article 1, Section 28(c) Right to Safe Schools 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
COURT DECISIONS 
New Jersey v. T.L.O. (1985) 469 U.S. 325 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS  
83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 257 (2000)  
75 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 155 (1992) 
 
Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Safe Schools:  A Planning Guide for Action, 2002 
NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 
The Appropriate and Effective Use of Security Technologies in U.S. Schools: A Guide for Schools 
and Law Enforcement Agencies, 1999 
WEB SITES  
CSBA: http://www.csba.org  
California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss  
National Institute of Justice:  http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/nij 
 
 
Board Policy: Santa Cruz City Schools, Santa Cruz, CA 
Adopted:    January 16, 2019 


336/336





		Agenda 02-06-19 REVISED FINAL

		Minutes of January 16, 2019 


		Minutes of Study Session January 23, 2019 


		Personnel Actions - Certificated 


		Personnel Actions - Classified 


		Purchase Orders, Bids &amp; Quotes 


		8.1.3 POs over $2500 list

		Warrant Register 


		8.1.4 Vendor warrants list

		Disposition of Surplus Property 


		8.1.5 Surplus MH computers

		Transportation Safety Plan 


		8.1.6 TRANSPORTATION SAFETY PLAN 2019

		8.1.6 Transp safety plan 2009

		Superintendent_ Contract_ Clifford Moss – Pre-electoral Services

		8.2.1. Clifford Moss Contract 02.06.19

		Educational Services_Special Education_ Agreement for Professional Services – Deborah Bell

		8.2.2. APS - D Bell Contract 02.06.19

		Educational Services_Student Services_ Agreement for Professional Services – Balance4Kids

		8.2.3. APS - Balance4Kids Contract 02.06.19

		Educational Services_Student Services_ Memorandum of Understanding – Healthy Kids

		8.2.4. MOU - Healthy Kids Contract 02.06.19

		Educational Services_Soquel High_ Over Night Field Trip

		8.2.5. ONFT Soquel Itinerary

		Educational Services_Costanoa_ Consultant Service Agreement – Anna Paganelli

		8.2.6. CSA - A Paganelli p1 02.06.19

		8.2.6. CSA - A Paganelli p2 02.06.19

		Educational Services_Santa Cruz High_ Consultant Service Agreement_ Planned Parenthood

		8.2.7. CSA - Planned Parenthood p1 02.06.19

		8.2.7. CSA Planned Parenthood p2 02.06.19

		Educational Services_Bay View_ Memorandum of Understanding – Corre La Voz

		8.2.8. MOU UCSC Contract 02.06.19

		Educational Services_Curriculum_ College Readiness Block Grant-CIA Plan Revision

		Educational Services_ NSF Computer Science for All Grant

		Education Services_Gault_ Consultant Service Agreement – Project GLAD

		8.2.11. CSA - GLAD Request 02.06.19

		Business Services_ Consultant Services Agreement – Jerene Lacey

		8.2.12 CSA Jerene Lacey

		Elite Interactive Solutions_ Change Order #1_ Harbor High Additional Camera Locations

		8.2.13. Elite Interactive Solutions CO1 HH  Security (PE)

		BSN Sports_ Quote_ Harbor High Sports Equipment

		8.3.1. BSN Quote Sports Equip HH Athletic Field

		CRW Industries, Inc._ Proposal &amp; Contract_ Mission Hill Projector Screen Installation

		8.3.2. CRW Industries Inc Contract &amp; Proposal MHMS Projector Screen Modernization Ph 1 (PE)

		CRW Industries, Inc._ Change Order #3_ Branciforte Small Schools_ Power for Dryers

		8.3.3. CRW Change Order 3 B40SS Relocate Playground and Lunch Shelter (PE)

		CRW Industries, Inc._ Change Order #4_ Mission Hill DSA Structural Requirements

		8.3.4. CRW Industries Change Order 4 Mission Hill Middle School

		Enviroplex_ Change Order #3_ Harbor High Integrated Stucco to Concession

		8.3.5. Enviroplex Harbor CO3 (PE) 

		Leach Group_ Proposal &amp; Contract_ Harbor High Pool DSA Inspector of Record

		8.3.6. Leach Contract &amp; Proposal HH Pool (PE)

		M3 Environmental_ Proposal &amp; Contract_ Gault Lead Abatement Oversight

		8.3.7. M3 Environmental Contract and Proposal Exterior Paint Gault Mod Ph1(PE)

		M3 Environmental_ Proposal &amp; Contract_ Santa Cruz Hazardous Materials Inspection

		8.3.8. M3 Environmental Contract &amp; Proposal Hazardous Waste Insp. Bldg C SCH Mod Ph2 (PE)

		M3 Environmental_ Proposal &amp; Contract_ Santa Cruz Hazardous Materials Inspection

		8.3.9. M3 Environmental Contract &amp; Proposal Hazardous Waste Insp. Bldg D SCH Mod Ph2(PE)

		Ross Recreation_ Quote_ Branciforte Small Schools Playground Kickplates

		8.3.10. Ross Recreation Quote B40SS Kickplates for Playground Relocation

		Elementary ELA Task Force Update 


		8.5.1.1. ELA_ELD Task Force for Board 2 5 19

		Bond Oversight Committee Annual Report 


		8.5.2.1 2017-18 Bond Oversight Committee Annual Report

		Bond Projects Update 


		8.5.2.2. Bond Project Update MADI presentation

		Preliminary Enrollment Projections 2019-20 


		8.5.2.3 19-20 Enrollment Projections presentation

		2nd Quarter Investment Report 


		8.5.2.4 COE Interest Memo

		8.5.2.4 Co Treasurer&apos;s 2nd Qtr Investment Report - 123118

		Public Hearing_ Potential Composition of Trustee Areas Prior to Drawing of Maps

		8.5.4.1. Public Hearing #1 Trustee Areas 02.06.19

		8.5.4.1. Public Hearing #1 Trustee Areas 02.06.19 Spanish

		Settlement Agreement and General Release of Claims related to California Voting Rights Act

		8.5.4.2. Trustee Area Settlmt Agrmt 02.06.19

		Board Policy 3515_ Campus Security - First and Possible Final Reading

		8.5.4.3. BP 3515 Campus Security.NEW




